Public Document Pack

O) Brent

Alcohol and Entertainment
Licensing Sub-Committee

Friday 13 June 2025 at 10.00 am
Boardrooms 7 & 8 - Brent Civic Centre, Engineers
Way, Wembley HA9 OFJ

Please note that this meeting will be held in person with members
of the Sub-Committee required to attend in person.

Membership:

Members Substitute Members:

Councillors Councillors:

Ahmed (Chair) Bajwa, Chohan, Long, Mahmood, Rajan
Akram Seelan, L. Smith, Clinton

Hylton

For further information contact: Devbai Bhanji, Governance Assistant
Tel: 020 8937 6841; Email: devbai.bhanji@brent.gov.uk

For electronic copies of minutes and agendas please visit:
Council meetings and decision making | Brent Council

Please note proceedings for this meeting are not being
webcast.
The press and public will, however, be welcome
to attend the open parts of this meeting in person

(vrecydle

for Brent



https://www.brent.gov.uk/the-council-and-democracy/council-meetings-and-decision-making

Notes for Members - Declarations of Interest:

If a Member is aware they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business, they
must declare its existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent and
must leave the room without participating in discussion of the item.

If a Member is aware they have a Personal Interest** in an item of business, they must declare its
existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent.

If the Personal Interest is also significant enough to affect your judgement of a public interest and
either it affects a financial position or relates to a regulatory matter then after disclosing the
interest to the meeting the Member must leave the room without participating in discussion of the
item, except that they may first make representations, answer gquestions or give evidence relating
to the matter, provided that the public are allowed to attend the meeting for those purposes.

*Disclosable Pecuniary Interests:

€) Employment, etc. - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for
profit gain.

(b)  Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of expenses in carrying
out duties as a member, or of election; including from a trade union.

(c) Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between the Councillors or
their partner (or a body in which one has a beneficial interest) and the council.

(d) Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area.

(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or longer.

)] Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in which the
Councillor or their partner have a beneficial interest.

(@)  Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place of business or
land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or of any one class of its issued
share capital.

**Personal Interests:

The business relates to or affects:

(a) Anybody of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management, and:

To which you are appointed by the council;

which exercises functions of a public nature;

which is directed is to charitable purposes;

whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or policy (including a

political party of trade union).

(b) The interests a of a person from whom you have received gifts or hospitality of at least £50 as
a member in the municipal year;

or
A decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or
financial position of:
e You yourself;
e a member of your family or your friend or any person with whom you have a close
association or any person or body who is the subject of a registrable personal interest.



Agenda

Introductions, if appropriate.

ltem

1

Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members
Declarations of Interests

Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, the nature
and existence of any relevant disclosable pecuniary or personal interests
in the items on this agenda and to specify the item(s) to which they relate.

Application for the Review of a Premises Licence following
Expedited Review by Metropolitan Police for the premises known as
Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay), 232-234 Kingsbury Road, NW9 OBH,
pursuant to the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003

Please note the agenda has been republished on 12 June 2025 to include
the detailed representation from the Nuisance Control Team and to
amend the representations listed in the original agenda.

Exclusion of the Press & Public

The following items are not for publication as they relate to the category of
exempt information set out below, as specified under Part 1, Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972:

Agenda Item 3: Application for the Review of a Premises Licence
following Expedited Review by Metropolitan Police for
the premises known as Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay),
232-234 Kingsbury Road, NW9 OBH — attachments
3.2.1 — 3.2.22 containing police representations

These representations have been classified as
exempt under Paragraph 7 of Part 1 Schedule 12A of
the Local Government Act 1972, namely: “Information
relating to any action taken or to be taken in
connection with the prevention, investigation or
prosecution of crime”.

If identified as required during the review hearing being conducted under
Agenda Item 3 above, the Sub Committee will be asked to consider the
exclusion of the press and public from the meeting on the basis that
detailed consideration of the application and supporting representations
will also involve disclosure of the following category of exempt information

3

Page

1-564



as specified in Paragraph 7, Part 1 Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972, namely:

“Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with
the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime”.

Please remember to SWITCH OFF your mobile phone during the meeting.
e The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for
members of the public during the open session of the meeting..




Agenda Iltem 3

LICENSING ACT 2003

Application for the Review of a Premises Licence following Expedited
Review

Name of Applicant: Metropolitan Police

Name & Address of Premises: | Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay), 232-234 Kingsbury Road, NW9
OBH

Applicants Agent:

Application

The application is for the review of a premises licence held by Carlton Lounge (UK) Ltd.
The premises are known as Carlton Lounge (Tiber Bay), 232-234 Kingsbury Road, NW9
OBH

Grounds for Review

The grounds for summary review are serious crime/ disorder involving incidents which took
place on 18" May 2025.

Relevant Representations

Representation has been received from the Metropolitan Police and local residents.

Background

Police officers applied for an expedited review which was heard by the licensing committee
on 23rd May 2025. As an interim measure, members added six conditions to the licence
until the full review hearing.

The Designated Premises Supervisor is Mr Tavi Thevarajah.

Determination

The steps the Committee may take are:

To modify, remove or add conditions

To exclude the sale of alcohol or other licensable activity
Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor

Suspend the licence for up to 3 months.

Revoke the licence

Page 1



Associated Papers

moow»

Review Application
Police Rep
Licensing Rep
Resident Reps

OS Map

Page 2



”"3", METROPOLITAN MORE LESS HIGH
m’é POLICE TRUST CRIME STANDARDS

PROTECTIVE MARKING

Form 693

Form for Applying for a Summary Licence Review
Application for the review of a premises licence under section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003
(premises associated with serious crime, serious disorder or both)

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are completing the form by
hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in
black ink.

Use additional sheets if necessary.

Insert name and address of relevant licensing authority and its reference number:

Name: London Borough of Brent

Address:

Brent Civic Centre

Post town: Wembley Post code: HA9 OFJ
Ref. No.: 210836/TJW

| _Police Sergeant NG

on behalf of the chief officer of police for the Metropolitan Police area apply for the review of a premises
licence under section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003.

1. Premises details

Postal address of premises or club premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description:

Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay)
232 - 234 Kingsbury Road, London

Post town: Brent F.'OSt code: NW9 0BH
(if known)

2. Premises licence details

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known):
Carlton Lounge (UK) Ltd

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known):

362998

3. Certificate under section 53A(1)(b) of the Licensing Act 2003 (Please read guidance note 1)

| confirm that a certificate has been given by a senior member of the police force for the police area above
that in his opinion the above premises are associated with serious crime or serious disorder or both, and the
certificate accompanies this application.

Please tick the box to confirm:  [X]

Page 3



%5, | METROPOLITAN MORE LESS HIGH
é@\? POLICE TRUST  CRIME STANDARDS

PROTECTIVE MARKING

4. Details of association of the above premises with serious crime, serious disorder or both

(Please read guidance note 2)

Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay) 232 - 234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 0BH, is a restaurant, night club, and Shisha
bar, the premises benefits a Premises Licence for the following licensable activities and hours.

Reglulated Entertainment: Live Music, Recorded Music, or anything of a similar description.

Times Monday - Thursday 11:00 - 03:00
Friday - Saturday 11:00 - 04:00
Sunday 11:00 - 03:00

Provision of Late Night Refreshments:

Times Monday - Thursday 23:00 - 03:30
Friday - Saturday 23:00 - 04:30
Sunday 23:00 - 03:30

Sale or Supply of Alcohol:

Times Monday - Thursday 11:00 - 03:00
Friday - Saturday 11:00 - 04:00
Sunday 11:00 - 03:00

The opening hours of the premises

Times Monday - Thursday 11:00 - 03:30
Friday - Saturday 11:00 - 04:30
Sunday 11:00 - 03:30

The Premises Licence Holder, (PLH) is a registered company called Carlton Lounge (UK) Ltd, the company
director is Mr Thavatheva Thevarajah also known as ‘Tavi Thevarajah’, who is also the Designated Premises
Supervisor (DPS). Mr Thevarajah has been responsible for the Premises Licence since 29™ May 2008.

On Sunday, 18™ May 2025, at 03:31 hours Police were contacted by the London Ambulance Service (LAS) to a
male that had been taken to hospital with a stab wound, and in a critical condition, it was then established that
a fight at the Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay) 232 - 234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 0BH, a fight started inside the
venue, SIA door staff ejected both groups of males who continued fighting across the road from the venue,
which resulted in people using weapons and a male being stabbed, resulting in the male later losing his life to
his injuries.

Police opened a murder investigation, and a crime scene closing Kingsbury High Road, outside the venue, and
surrounding roads were cordoned off.

Currently, there is an ongoing live investigation and at the time of writing this review, the exact facts around
the incident are still being established Connect [ €29 I rcfers-

What has so far been established is that no one from the venue called Police, the SIA appear to have removed

the fighting groups from inside the premises, and made little to no attempt to take control of the incident that
then escalated outside.

Page 4




v METROPOLITAN MORE LESS HIGH
POLICE TRUST CRIME STAMDARDS

PROTECTIVE MARKING

The following failings have been noted:

1) Police were called at 03:31 hours on Sunday 18" May 2025 by LAS - which had in turn received a 999
call from a man reporting a stabbing at Tiger Bay. On police and medic arrival, no casualty was present.
At 03:40 police had a call from a nurse at Northwick Park Hospital to report a man had come in with stab
wounds.

2) CCTV shows a large-scale disorder immediately outside the venue from about 03:25 to 03:30, during
which the victim received a stab wound and collapsed at the scene. He was taken to hospital by other
people, before emergency services arrived. Estimated 20-25 people involved in the disorder.

3) There was no call from the venue staff or management to reports of the disorder, or anything else. Staff
were present and witnessing events, and security personnel were involved in the disorder, in apparent
attempts to separate people.

4) The suspect can be seen entering the venue at 02:00am, with others. There is no search of any of them,
frisk, metal detector, wand or otherwise.

5) The suspectis later seen outside with a large knife, which was used in the disorder and appears to have
been used to stab the victim, ultimately killing him (subject to pathology confirmation on cause of death).

6) Appears likely that the knife was in the suspect’s possession inside the venue.

7) Police body worn video (BWV) shows a manager telling an attending CID officer that the groups involved
in the disorder had not been inside Tiger Bay before the disorder. This was untrue, as they had been
and indeed most, if not all, of the people had come from inside Tiger Bay, some having been specifically
ejected by the staff/security.

8) Police BWV shows the manager | s2ying he thinks a bottle/bottles were involved. A
customer approaches and says a knife was used and had been pulled out inside the venue. He was
promptly ushered away by another manager/member of staff.

9) House to house enquiries revealed local residents complain there is frequently noisy anti-social
behaviour from the venue.

Summary

This incident on 18 May 2025, constitutes serious crime and disorder, which has triggered this review. The
Metropolitan Police have serious concerns that the premises management and staff members demonstrated a
lack of control and failing to undertake pro-active searches. The staff initially indicated that the incident did not
start in the venue and later retracted their statement, admitting that both groups were in fact inside the venue,
where the altercation started.

Due to the ongoing criminal investigation, it is currently difficult to establish the full facts from a licensing
perspective. However, from the information we have gathered so far, the Police have that the aforementioned
points above demonstrate that the licensing objectives are not being upheld.

Police Recommendation — The Police request an immediate suspension of Carlton Lounge’s premises licence
pending a full review due the level of seriousness of the incident.

Page 5




METROPOLITAN MORE LESS HIGH
m POLICE TRUST CRIME STANDARDS

PROTECTIVE MARKING

Signature of applicant
Signature: _ Date: 21/05/2025

Capacity: Police Sergeant

Contact details for matters concerning this application

Surname: [ ] First Names: [
Address:

Wembley Police Station, 603 Harrow road

Post town: London Post code: HAO 2HH
Tel.No. [ Email: I

Notes for guidance

1. A certificate of the kind mentioned in the form must accompany the application in order for it to be valid under
the terms of the Licensing Act 2003. The certificate must explicitly state the senior officer’s opinion that the
premises in question are associated with serious crime, serious disorder or both.

Serious crime is defined by reference to section 81 of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000. In

summary, it means:

e conduct that amounts to one or more criminal offences for which a person who has attained the age of
eighteen and has no previous convictions could reasonably be expected to be sentenced to imprisonment for
a term of three years or more; or

e conduct that amounts to one or more criminal offences and involves the use of violence, results in substantial
financial gain or is conduct by a large number of persons in pursuit of a common purpose.
Serious disorder is not defined in legislation, and so bears its ordinary English meaning.

2. Briefly describe the circumstances giving rise to the opinion that the above premises are associated with serious
crime, serious disorder, or both.

Retention Period: 7 years
MP 146/12

Page 6



Police Representations

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 175



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 197



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 209



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 211



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 215



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank



Brent Civic Centre
4 Engineers Way
D‘ Wembley
5 & HA9 0OFJ
M re n email edwin.maldoom@brent.gov.uk
’ web www.brent.gov.uk

Business Licence
Regulatory Services
Brent Council
Engineers Way
Wembley

HA9 OFJ

3 June 2025

Ref: 35010

Dear Business Licence,

Representation in support of the application to review the premises licence for Carlton
Lounge (Tiger Bay), 232-234 Kingsbury Road, NW9 OBH (Premises licence number:
362998).

The above-mentioned application has been made under section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003.
As the delegated officer of the Licensing Authority, acting as a defined ‘Responsible Authority’
under the Licensing Act 2003, | confirm my representation in support of the application submitted

by Metropolitan Police Service.

This representation is made on the grounds that the continued operation of this premises licence,
without further intervention, could undermine one out of the four below licensing objectives:

* The prevention of crime and disorder.
* Public safety.

» The prevention of public nuisance.

* The protection of children from harm.

Licence History

The current premises licence is held by a limited company, namely, Carlton Lounge (UK) Limited.
The sole listed director of the company is Thavatheva Thevarajah. Carlton Lounge (UK) Limited
has held the premises licence since June 2016. Thavatheva Thevarajah is also the designated
premises supervisor and has held that position since July 2013.

The premises licence was subject to a review hearing on 26 June 2014 following an application
made by the Metropolitan Police Service. The review was sought on the grounds that all four
licensing objectives were being undermined. The Licensing Sub-Committee subsequently agreed
to adjourn the meeting on the condition that the premises implemented an effective action plan to
improve management, including staff training and building improvements.

Page 1 of 5

Page 221


mailto:edwin.maldoom@brent.gov.uk
http://www.brent.gov.uk/

The Licensing Authority acknowledges that this review hearing took place over 10 years ago and
is therefore of limited relevance to the current review application.

On 8 August 2024, an application to vary the premises licence was submitted to the Licensing
Authority. The application sought to extend all licensable activities by one hour and to amend the
condition relating to last entry, proposing an extension to 01:30 from Sunday to Thursday and to
02:30 on Fridays and Saturdays. A representation was initially made by the Licensing Authority;
however, this was subsequently withdrawn following agreement on amended conditions prior to
a Licensing Sub-Committee hearing.

A further minor variation application was submitted on 11 October 2024, seeking to amend the
last entry times to 02:30 from Sunday to Thursday, and to 03:30 on Fridays and Saturdays.

Summary

The Licensing Authority supports the Metropolitan Police Service’s application for a summary
review of the premises licence, following the tragic incident on 18 May 2025 in which a man lost
his life. A review under section 53A of the Licensing Act 2003 is reserved for only the most serious
cases involving crime and disorder, and the events of that night clearly meet this threshold. Both
the victim and the suspect are believed to have been inside the premises prior to the incident.

It is accepted that premises cannot be held responsible for the actions of every individual
customer. Nonethless, there are significant concerns about how the premises was being
managed and the extent to which it failed to uphold the licensing objective of the prevention of
crime and disorder on the evening in question.

The Licensing Authority notes the following concerns raised in the Police’s review application:

- Approximately 20-25 individuals were involved in the disorder.

- Security and staff were present and witnessed the events, yet no call was made to
emergency services.

- CCTV shows the suspect entering the premises at 02:00. There is no evidence of any
search or frisk being conducted. It is alleged that a large knife was in the suspect's
possession whilst inside the premises.

- The suspect is later seen outside with a large knife, which was reportedly used to fatally
wound the victim.

- Initial statements by management to attending Police Officers denied any altercation inside
the premises. This was later retracted, with staff acknowledging that the individuals
involved had in fact been inside and some were even ejected.

- A customer informed Police Officers that a knife had been pulled inside the premises. He
was allegedly ushered away by staff.

- Local residents have reported concerns anti-social behaviour linked to the premises.

These issues point to a clear failure in management and alludes to a possible problematic
operating culture on the night of the incident in which staff underestimated the seriousness of the
incident that had unfolded. While it is acknowledged that the premises were not under a legal
obligation to conduct searches of customers, the absence of any proactive measures to mitigate
against such a risk, especially given the late hour, demonstrates poor judgement at best, and a
clear disregard for the promotion of the licensing objectives at worst.

Page 2 of 5

Page 222



In addition to this, staff interactions with emergency services on that evening also raise further
concern. Failing to notify the police of major disorder, initially misleading officers about the events,
and the instance of ushering a member of the public who claimed that a knife had been pulled
inside the premises before being ushered away by other staff — all represent a complete failure in
how to deal with emergency responders and show a complete inability to act appropriately in a
critical situation.

The Licensing Authority refers the Licensing Sub-Committee to paragraph 11.23 of the Section
182 Guidance, which advises where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly, the Licensing
Sub-Committee should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough action to tackle the
problems at the premises and, where other measures might be deemed insufficient, to revoke the
premises licence.

While the Police have not explicitly requested revocation, the Licensing Authority recommends
that the Sub-Committee give serious consideration to this option. If the Sub-Committee does not
consider revocation to be a proportionate or necessary course of action, it is the view of the
Licensing Authority that a number of robust conditions should be imposed. These conditions
should go beyond the interim steps already taken and be aimed at preventing a recurrence of the
failings identified. A list of proposed conditions recommended by the Licensing Authority can be
found at the rear of this representation. In addition, the Licensing Authority also invites the Sub-
Committee to consider bringing forward the terminal hour for all licensable activities.

Yours sincerely,

-~

L Maldoom

Edwin Maldoom
Licensing Enforcement Officer

Page 3 of 5

Page 223



Licensing Authority’s Proposed Conditions for Annex Three — For Consideration by the Licensing
Sub-Committee.

1. The CCTV system shall be capable of capturing clear images of all patrons entering and exiting
the premises. Additional CCTV cameras shall cover all publicly accessible internal and external
areas, as outlined on the premises plan. A further CCTV camera shall be installed to monitor the
immediate frontage of the premises on Kingsbury Road.

[Additional]

2. A member of staff who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system shall always be
available at the premises whilst the premises are open to the public. CCTV footage shall be made
available for immediate viewing upon request by the Police and any authorised Officers from
Brent Council. [Additional]

3. CCTV footage shall be provided immediately upon request by Police and any authorised
Officers from Brent Council, in a readily accessible format on removable media (l.e., USB, hard
drive, CD etc..) or via digital transfer.
[To replace Annex Two, Condition 2]

4. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available for inspection on request by
an authorised officer of Brent Council or the Police, which shall record the following:

. any incidents of crime and disorder.

. any ejections from the premises.

. any complaints received.

. any faults in the CCTV system.

. any seizures of drugs or offensive weapon.

f. any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

[To replace Annex Two, Condition 7]

OO O T

5. Any entries into the log shall be made as soon as reasonably possible after any incident and
shall contain the time/date of the incident, the nature of the incident, a description of the people
involved, the action taken and details of the person responsible for the management of the
premises at the time of the incident.

[To replace Annex Two, Condition 7]

6. There shall be no entry to the premises by patrons after 00:30 on Sunday to Thursday and
after 01:30 on Friday and Saturday. Re-entry to the premises shall not be permitted to any patron
after these times. [To Replace Annex Two, Condition 11]

7. A personal licence holder from senior management shall be always present whilst the premises
are undertaking licensable activities.
[Additional]

8. An ID scanning system shall be in operation from 21:00 each day. All individuals entering the
premises via either the Tiger Bay or Carlton Lounge entrance must present verifiable 1.D, which
shall be scanned and recorded on the system prior to entry.

[Additional]

9. The premises licence holder shall undertake a written search policy as a preventative measure
to negate patrons from bringing in any illicit drugs, weapons, or any other unlawful item onto the
premises. Such measures shall include the use of a detection wand after 21:00.

Page 4 of 5

Page 224



[Additional]

10. Notices shall be conspicuously displayed at the entrance notifying patrons that the premises
reserves the right to undertake searches upon entry to the premises and that the premises has a
"no weapons policy”.

[Additional]

11. A log shall be kept of the SIA door supervisors working on any night to include their full name,
date of birth, Security Industry Authority licence number, company and booking on-off times. A
copy of SIA door supervisor log shall be available upon request by Police and authorised officers
from Brent Council.

[Additional]

12. All staff involved in licensable activities shall receive training relevant to their role. Refresher
training shall be provided at least every 12 months. Training shall include, but not be limited to,
the following topics:

a. Age verification policy

b. CCTV operation (If deemed appropriate by management)

c. Conflict management

d. Operating procedures

e. Permitted hours and relevant conditions

f. Responding to emergency situations

[To Replace Annex Two, Condition 27 & Annex Three, Condition 31]

13. Training records shall include the time/date of the training, staff members name, training topic
and must be signed off by the relevant staff member and the respective premises licence
holder/designated premises supervisor/duty manager. A copy of staff training shall be available
upon request by Police and authorised officers from Brent Council.

[To Replace Annex Two, Condition 27 & Annex Three, Condition 31]

Page 5 of 5

Page 225



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Martin, Wood <Martin.Wood®@brent.gov.uk>
Sent: 05 June 2025 12:28
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>; ENS Noise Team

<ens.noiseteam@brent.gov.uk>

Cc: Michael.).Sullivan@met.police.uk

Subject: FW: CONSULT: Expedited Review - Carlton Lounge/Tiger Bay, 232-234
Kingsbury Road, NW9 0BH - 35010

Dear Licensing

NCT have reviewed the Metropolitan Police’ Review Application. Through discussion
with Seargeant Sullivan we are aware that public nuisance arising from noise
associated with the premises is a significant feature of formal statements made by
neighbouring residents. Following a case review including our Brent Noise App records
we are concerned the premises is failing to uphold the licensing objective to prevent
public nuisance by failing to meet relevant licensing conditions. Please accept this
email as a holding response to our full application and supporting evidence.

Yours

Martin Wood
Principal Nuisance Control Officer

Children, Young People and Community Development

Page 227


mailto:Martin.Wood@brent.gov.uk
mailto:business.licence@brent.gov.uk
mailto:ens.noiseteam@brent.gov.uk
mailto:Michael.J.Sullivan@met.police.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Statement of Witness
Statement of: Martin Wood
Occupation of Witness: Principal Nuisance Control Officer

Address: Brent Council, Nuisance Control Team, Brent Civic Centre, Engineers
Way, Wembley, Middlesex, HA9 OFJ.

Tel No: (020) 8937 5561

This statement consisting of TWO pages signed by me is true to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

Dated: 11 June 2025

Licensing Act 2003. Premises lLicence Review. Nuisance Control Team {(NCT)

Statement and Evidence Pack. Carlton Lounge / Tiger Bay, 232-234 Kingsbury
Road, L.ondon, NW9 0BH (the premises)

| am employed as the Principal Nuisance Control Officer for the Nuisance Control
Team (NCT) at the London Borough of Brent. NCT are a Responsible Authority under
the Licensing Act 2003. We are supporting the Metropolitan Police’ Premises License
Review application because evidence held on our records demonstrates the premises
is failing in its duty to uphold relevant noise-controlling conditions in place to prevent
public nuisance. NCT have two Music Noise cases on our premises reporting
database: NC/08126/19 and NC/08440/21. We also have four Brent Noise App cases
from separate households which include noise recordings and comments from the
residents. The venue holds a Premises Licence (PL No.362998), wherein Annex 2 —

Conditions consistent with the operating schedule, include:

15. No noise or vibration shall be detectable at any neighbouring noise sensitive
premises.
16. The relevant areas where regulated entertainment or making music takes place

shall be adequately sound proofed to prevent noise breakout.

A copy of the Premises Licence Part A is exhibited at MW/01. There is presently no
Statutory Noise Nuisance Abatement Notice in force against the premises. Such a

Notice was served July 2019, prohibiting statutory nuisance from loud amplified music

Page 229




and speech. A copy of that Notice along with covering letter is Exhibit MW/02. The
Notice was not subject to appeal. In August 2022, following a noise complaint
investigation where at 22.40hrs an annoying level of loud music was noted in the
complainant’s bedroom, compromising reasonable enjoyment and making sleep
impossible. The NCT officer visited the premises and spoke to the manager in an
advisory capacity. In Sept 2022, we wrote to the premises per Exhibit MW/03, formally
withdrawing the 2019 Notice due to a limitation in its scope. A revised Notice was
served (also Exhibit MW/03). In the accompanying covering letter, we reminded the
manager and the business of Condition 15 to Annex 2 of the Premises Licence. A
formal appeal was lodged against that Notice. Exhibit MW/04 is a letter dated October
2022 formally withdrawing the Notice following a volume setting exercise with the
business and commitment from the same to prevent public nuisance from regulated
entertainment by adhering to relevant conditions on the Premises Licence. Case
record NC/08126/19 contains a Nuisance Investigatory Visit 18 September 2021
where NCT officer noted: Visit made fo premises. Montitired from lay-by adjacent to
premises. Witnessed people entering (after permitted entry/ re-entry time) - both
restaurant & shisha lounge. Music clearly heard. Exhibit MW/05 is a letter dated 29
September 2021 to the premises referring to Nuisance Investigatory Visits and
drawing reference to condition 15 of the Premises Licence. A Nuisance Investigatory
Visit 05 March 2022 noted: Visit made to rear of the premises. Could hear music
coming from the shisha area, considerably loud & likely to be heard within the flats.
Exhibit MWI/06 is an email thread dated September 2022. The email dated 14
September is authored by a Licensing Compliance Officer for the attention of the
manager Prash Theva, wherein is referenced a meeting and discussion at the
premises. During that meeting the Licensing Compliance Officer and NCT Officer
identified two conditions (the conditions 15 and 16) that the premises would have
difficulty complying with in its current style of operation and making clear those need
to be addressed as a matter of urgency to avoid the risk of enforcement intervention
or formal review of Premises Licence. Below is a table summarising the four Noise
App cases from separate households, which are also exhibited. NCT contend that
these demonstrate the premises has historically and continues to fail in its duty to meet

those conditions and thereby prevent public nuisance.

Page 230




Exhibit
CaseRef. |

Status

: Staﬁ d_ate_ |

“End date

No.

| r'e"porté_

: .:ﬁ.._:' 3 USE_I’

- Comments -

MW/ 07
VTI2GVSG

Triage

03.07.2019

Open

Yes

MW/08
KV3JEVMO

Closed

09.08.2021

05.11.2021

Yes

MW/09
C10X1KOO

Closed

23.02.2020

04.04,2021

Yes

MWI10
LFTHAMEN

Triage

30.04.2023

Open

114

Yes

Date: 11 June 2025

Page 231




Page 232



Regulatory Services
Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way

Wembley
Brent oo

TEL: 020 8937 5359
EMAIL: business.licence@brent.gov.uk
WEB: www.brent.gov.uk

London Borough of Brent
Premises Licehce
Pari A

This Premises Licence was granted by Brent Counctl, Licensing Authority for the area of the Borough of Brent under the
Licensing Act 2003

Original grant date: 29 May 2008
Current issue date: 17 June
2020

Authorised signatory

Premises licence number:
362998

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordinance survey map reference or
description

232 - 234 Kingsbury Road, London, Brent, NW3 0BH

Where the licence is time limited the
dates

Licensable activities authorised by the iicence

Section E: Live music
Section F: Recorded music Page 233




Section G: Performances of dance

Section H: Anything of a similar description to that falling within (E), (F} or
(G)

Section I: Provision of late night refreshment: Indoors

Section J: Sale of alcohol: Both

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Section E: Live music
Start End
ED—aK Time Time
iMonday  [11:00 02:00
Tuesday [11:00 02:00
Wednesday(! 1:00 02:00
Thursday [11:00 02:00
jFriday 11:00 03:00
Saturday  {11:00 (03:00
Sunday 11:00 02:00

Section F: Recorded music
Start End
Da . -
I_! Time Time
Monday [t11:00  {02:00
Tuesday  [t1:00 02:00
Wednesday(t1:00 0200
Thursday [t11:00 02:00
iFriday 11:00 03:00
Saturday [11:00 03:00
Sunday 11:00 02:00

Section G: Performances of
ddance

(Day Start Time [End Time
iMonday 11:00 02:00
Tuesday 11:00 02:00
fWednesday [11:00 02:00
Thursday  |11:00 (02:00
JFriday 11:00 03:00
Saturday  |11:00 03:00
Sunday 11:00 02:00

Section H: Anything of a similar description _to that falling within (E), (F) or
(G)

Day Start Time End Time
Monday 11:00 02:00
Tuesday 11:00 02:00
Wednesday 11:00 02:00
Thursday 11:00 02:00
Fape Zs4




[Friday 11:00 03:00
Saturday 11:00 03:00
Sunday 11:00 02:00

Section I: Provision of Late Night
Refreshments:Indoors

{Day Start Time [End Time
iMonday 23:00 02:00
Tuesday 23:00 02:00
[Wednesday 23:00 02:00
Thursday 23:00 02:00
[Friday 23:00 03:00
Saturday 23:00 03:00
Sunday 23:00 02:00
Section J: Sale or Supply of Alcohol:
Both
[Day Start Time  [End Time
IMonday 11:00 02:00
Tuesday 11:00 02:00
fwednesday  [11:00 02:00
Thursday 11:00 02:00
Friday 11:00 03:00
Saturday 11:00 03:00
Sunday 11:00 02:00
The opening hours of the
premises
Start End
Day Time Time
IMonday 11100 02:30
Tuesday [11:00 02:30
Wednesday{11:00 02:30
Thursday [11:00 02:30
fFriday 11:00 03:30
Saturday |11:00 03:30
Sunday 11:00 02:30
\Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are an and/or off
supplies
Both
Part 2

Page 235




Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email {where relevant} of holder of the premises
licence

Carlton Lounge (UK) Lid
232-234 Ki ry Road, NW9 0BH

Registered number of holder, for example company humber, charity number (where
applicable})

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply
of alcohol ‘

avi T

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises supervisor where the
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol

Licence Number: 95
Issuing authotity: Three Rivers

Annex 1 — Mandatory conditions

No Irresponsible Drinks Promotions

(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any
irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or substantially similar
activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises—

(a)games or other activities which require or encourage,

or are designed to require or encourage, individuals to— (i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit {other than to drink
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to
sell or supply alcohol}, or {il) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unfimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or far a fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group
defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective,

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase and
consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a

licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, ar in the vicinity of, the premises which
can reasonably be considered to condons, encourage or glamorise anti-social hehaviour or to refer to the effects of
drunkenness in any favourable manner,

(e} dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another {other than where that other person is unable to
drink without assistance by reason of disability}.

Page 236




Free Water

The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where it is reasonably
available.

Age Verification Policy

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in
respect of the premises in refation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the
premises is cartied on in accordance with the age veritication policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age
as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohal, identification bearing their
photograph, date of birth and either—

(a) a holographic mark, or

(b} an ultraviclet feature.

Small Measures to be Available

The responsible person must ensure that—

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied {or consumption on the premises (other than alccholic
drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed containet) it is
available to customers in the following measures—

(i} beer or cider: V2 pint;
(i) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price fist or other printed material which is available to customers on the
premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohaol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is
made aware that these measures are available

Minimum Price of Alcohol

1.A relevant person shall ensure that no aleohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises for & price which
is foss than the permitted price.

2 For the purposes of the candition set out in paragraph 1—

(a)—duty|| is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1879,
(o)—-permitted pricel] is the price found by applying the formula—

P=D+{DxV)

where—

(HP is the permitted price,

(i))D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcofol as if the duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply
of the alcohol, and

(iii)V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were charged on the date
of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c)—relevant person| means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence—

Page 237




(iYthe holder of the premises licence,
{ilthe desighated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii)the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(d) —relevant person|| means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises certificate, any
member or officer of the club present on tha premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the
supply in question; and

(e)—valued added tax|| means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994,

3.Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b} of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be a whole
number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-
paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4.(1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day {(—the first dayf)
would be different from the permitted price on the next day {(~~the second day||) as a result of a change 1o the rat & of duty
or value added tax.

(2)The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take place before the
expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Requirement for a DPS
(1) No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence-
(a)at a time when there is no designated premisas supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or

(b)at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or their persanal licence is
suspended.

(2) Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal
licence,

Door Supervisors and Security Staff to be Licensed by the SIA (when required)

Whare the licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a
security activity, each individual must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority, with the following exceptions:

a) premises where the premises licence authorises plays or films

1) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b} or (¢} of Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 2001 {premises
heing used exclusively by a club with a club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising plays or films
or under a gaming licence), or

c) any occasion within paragraph 8(3){(d) of Scheduie 2 to the Private Securlty Industry Act 2001
Film Classification When required

(i) The admission of children to the exhibition of any film must be restricted in accordance with the recommendation of the
designated film classification body unless section (i) applies.

(ii) Where the licensing authority notifies the holder of the licence that this subsection applies the admission of children must
be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the licensing authority,

In this section-
"children" means persons aged under 18; and
"film classification body" means the person or persons designated as the authority

under sectian 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c. 38} (authority to determine suitability of video works for classification).

Page 238




Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the operating schedule
1 GCTV shall be installed to Home Office Guidance standards and maintained in a good working condition and recordings
shall be kept for 31 days and shall be made available to police and authorised Officers from Brent Councit on demand.

2 A minimum of 2 door supervisors shall be employed from 22:00 hours when the premises are open for the sale of
alcohol past 01.00hrs and will remain in place until the last customer has left the premises.

3 Customers shall not be permitted to take open glass containers outside the premises as defined on the plan submitted
to and approved by the Licensing Authority.

4 The licensee shall keep an incident book which shall be made available to the Police and Licensing Authority on
demand.

5 Notices clearly explaining the licensee's policy on admission and searching shall be displayed at each entrance.
5 Signs alerting customers to theft shall be displayed.
7 The outside drinking areas (including rear garden} shall cease at 2300 hours excluding the shisha area.

3 A capy of the premises licence summary including the hours which licensable activities are permitted shall be visible
from the outside of each entrance to the premises.

9 Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages (including free drinking water) shall be available during the whole of
licensed hours in alt parts of the premises where intoxicants are provided.

10 On major event days at Wembley Stadium the following shall apply:
*  Customers shall not be allowed to congregate outside the premises.
*  No glass bottles shall be handed over the bar but decanted into toughened glass or plastic vessels.

*  The DPS shall work in partnership with the Police and if necessary comply with any direction given by a senior Police
Officer on duty at the event.

11 Notices clearly explaining the licensee"s drugs policy shall be displayed at the entrance and at suitable places through
out the premises.

12 Windows within the bar and restaurant areas shall be kept closed after 22:00 hours,

13 Notices asking customers to leave quietly shall be cciﬂﬁ)éjém?lggisplayed at all exits.




14 The playing of live ot recorded music shall not be permitted in any garden or external area after 2200 hours excluding
the Shisha area.

15 No noise or vibration shall be detectable at any neighbouring noise sensitive premises.

16 The relevant areas where regulated entertainment or making music takes place shall be adequately sound proofed to
prevent noise breakout.

17 Doors and windows shall be kept closed during entertainment to reduce noise breakout {ensuring there is adequate
ventilation within the premises). Staff shall check prior to entertainment and periodically during entertainment, that all
windows and doors are shut.

18 Lobbied entrances shall have automatic door closures.

19 Nudity, striptease and other entertainment of an adult nature shall not be permitted on the premises.

20 The advertised smoking of shisha through "alcoholic drinks" shall not take place on the premises

21 The maximum number of persons permitted on the Ground Floor shall not exceed 300 persons including staff.

The maximum number of persons permitted on the First Floor shall not exceed 150 persons including staff.

22 The locks and flush latches on the exit doors and gates shall be unlocked and kept free from fastenings other than
push bars or pads whilst the public are on the premises.

23  The socket outlets {or other power supplies used for DJ equipment, band equipment and other portable equipment)
that are accessible to perfarmers, staff or the public shall be suitably prolected by a residual current device (RCD having a
rated residual operating current not exceeding 30 milliamps).

24 No children shall be admitted unless accompanied by a responsible aduli.

25 No rubbish or empty bottles shall be placed in the outside bins after 23:00 hours

26 The Licensee shall undertake a risk assessment of any significant promotion or event, using the Metropolitan Police
Service Promotion/Event Risk Assessment Form {(Form 696) or an equivalent and provide a copy to the Metropolitan Paolice
and Brent Council"s Licensing Unit not less than 14 days before the event is due to take place.

27 Whare an event has taken place the licensee shall complete a Debrief Risk Assessment Form (Form 696A) and
submit this to the Metropolitan Police and Brent Courﬁﬁgﬁeﬁsﬁl@ Unit within 3 days of the conclusion of the event.




28 No entry or re-entry shall be permitted after 860:00 hours on Sunday to Thursday and 00.30hrs on Friday and Saturday

Fallowing Review -- condition added
20 Staff training schedule as agreed with Metropolitan Police shall be implemented.

1 CCTV shall be installed to Home Office Guidance standards and maintained in a good working condition and recordings
shall be kept for 31 days and shall be made available to police and authorised Officers from Brent Council on demand.

2 A minimum of 2 door supervisors shall be employed from 22:00 hours when the premises are open for the sale of
alcohol past 01.00hrs and will remain in place unti the last customer has left the premises.

3 Customers shall not be permitted to take open glass containers outside the premises as defined on the plan submitted
to and approved by the Licensing Authority.

4 The licensee shall keep an incident book which shall be made available to the Police and Licensing Authority on
demand.

5 Notices clearly explaining the licensee"s policy on admission and searching shall be displayed at each entrance.

& Signs alerting customers to theft shall be displayed.

7 The outside drinking areas (including rear garden) shall cease at 2300 hours excluding the shisha area.

8 A copy of the premises licence summary including the hours which licensable activities are permitted shall be visible
from the outside of each entrance to the premises.

9 Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages (including free drinking water) shall be available during the whole of
licensed hours in all parts of the premises where intoxicants are provided.,

10  On major event days at Wembley Stadium the following shall apply:
“  Customers shall not be allowed to congregate oulside the premises.
*  No glass bottles shall be handed over the bar but decanted into toughened glass or plastic vessels.

*  The DPS shall work in partnership with the Police and if necessary comply with any direction given by a senior Palice
Officer on duty at the event.

11 Notices clearly explaining the licensee"s drugs policy shall be displayed at the entrance and at suitable places through
out the premises.

12 Windows within the bar and restaurant areas shall be kept closed after 22:00 hours.

Page 241




13 Notices asking customers to leave quietly shall be conspicuously displayed at all exits.

14 The playing of live or recorded music shall not be permitted in any garden or external area after 2200 hours excluding
the Shisha area.

15 No noise or vibration shall be detectable at any neighbouring noise sensitive premises,

16 The relevant areas where regulaied entertainment or making music takes place shall be adequately sound proofed to
prevent noise breakout.

17 Doors and windows shall be kept closed during entertainment to reduce noise breakout (ensuring there is adequate
ventilation within the premises). Staff shall check prior to entertainment and periodically during entertainment, that all
windows and doors are shut.

18 Lobbied entrances shall have automatic door closures.

19 Nudity, striptease and other entertainment of an adult nature shall not be permitted on the premises.

20 The advertised smoking of shisha through "alcoholic drinks" shall not take place on the premises

21 The maximum number of persons permitted on the Ground Floor shall not exceed 300 persons including staff.

The maximum number of persons permitted on the First Floor shall not exceed 150 persons including staff.

22 The locks and flush latches on the exit doors and gates shall be unlocked and kept free from fastenings other than
push bars or pads whilst the public are on the premises.

23 The socket outlets {or other power supplies used for DJ equipment, band equipment and other portable equipment)
that are accessible {o performers, staff or the public shall be suitably protected by a residual current device {RCD having a
rated residual operating current not exceeding 30 milliamps).

24 Mo children shall be admitted unless accompanied by a responsible adult.

25 No rubbish or empty bottles shall be placed in the outside bins after 23:00 hours

26 The Licensee shall undertake a risk assessment of any significant promotion or event, using the Metropolitan Police
Service Promotion/Event Risk Assessment Form (Form 696) or an equivalent and provide a copy to the Metropolitan Police
and Brent Council®s Licensing Unit not less than 14 days before the event is due to take place.

Page 242




27 Where an event has taken place the licensee shall complete a Debrief Risk Assessment Form (Form 696A) and
submit this to the Metropolitan Police and Brent Council"s Licensing Unit within 3 days of the conclusion of the event,

28 No entry or re-entry shall be permitied after 00:00 hours on Sunday to Thursday and 00.30hrs on Friday and Saturday.

Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

Following Review -- condition added

29  Staff training schedule as agreed with Metropolitan Police shall be
implemented.

Annex 4 — Plans

See attached

Page 243




Page 244




LONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT

Environmenial Protection Act 1990
Section B0

it ——

Abatement notice in respect of statutory nuisance

Mr Prash Theva (Manager)
Carlton Lounge

232-234 Kingsbury Road
London

NW9 0BH

TAKE NOTICE that under the provisions of the Environmental Protection Act 1980 the
Coungcit of the London Borough of Brent being satisfied of the likely occurrence of noise
amounting to a statutory nuisance under section 79(1)(g) of that Act at the premises known
as neighbouring residential units at Mead Court behind Carlton Lounge, 232-234
Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 0BH within the district of the said Council arising from the
playing of amplified music and amplified speech,

HEREBY REQUIRE YOU as the person responsible of the premises from which the noise
is or would be emitted forthwith from the service of this notice, to abate the same and also

HEREBY PROHIBIT the occurrence of the said nulsance and for that purpose require you
to: Cease or cause to cease the playing of amplified music and amplified speech at
such a level as to constitute a nuisance

IN the event of an appeal this notice shall NOT be suspended until the appeal has
been abandoned or decided by the Court, as, in the opinion of the Council, the expenditure
which would be incurred by any person in carrying out works in compliance with this notice
before any appeal has been decided would not be disproportionate to the public benefit to
be expected in that period from such compliance.

IF without reasonable excuse you contravene or fail to comply with any requirement
of this notice you will be guilty of any offence under section 80(4) of the Environmental
Protection Act 1990 and on summary conviction will be liable to a fine not exceeding level 5
on the Standard Scale (currently £5,000), together with a further fine of an amount equal to
one-tenth of that level for each day on which the offence continues after conviction. A
person who commits an offence on industrial, trade or business premises will be liable on
summary conviction to a fine not exceeding £20,000,

The Council may also take proceedings in the High Court for securing the abatement,
prohibition or restriction of the nuisance. Further, if you fail to execute all or any of
the works in accordance with this notice, the Council may execute the works and
recover from you the necessary expenditure incurred.

Dated: 07/07/2018 Signed:

Print Name
Hegulatory Services
Authorised Officer

Page 245




Regulatory Services, Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way, Wembley HAS 0JF

Tel: 0208 837 5252

Email:ens.noiseteam @brent.gov.uk

Ref: EH/19/08126/MW

NB The person served with this notice may appeal against the notice to Brent

Magistrates'Court, 448 High Road, London NW10 2DZ within twenty-one days
heginning with the date of service of the notice (see notes attached).

If you require further information or have a query in respect of this notice, please ¢
i on 020 8837 5252

- e S
Tlwe Motice Of Wiicl Th's = 1\ Trie Copy Was Served By
Me On The Wik Natsd 7 The ., Day Of

ByPasn. s oy PEASIAUTAENA. ..

By Afiiang o 7 s @2.2,*‘\-}'0!4:‘&3‘

Qh:u::ﬂﬂu:\f-ur»‘ulﬂ FEe Al AN S mam R eyt d b e A - vAdedoddio=dilsda

Of The Prg

By Sending ey oy Addressed
foThe Witiat 20 ., Aadrezs O Tne Notice Fof

Ragorded Delyzw b Soa @ gisbaton Sook No,

tpewsdiladgn

Page 246



Brenl Civic Centre, Enginesrs Way,
Wembley, Middlesex, HAS OFJ

Tal: (020) 8937 5252
Direct Line 020-8937 5561

Email: ens.noiseteam @brent.gov.uk

REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT

Webh: www.brent.gov.uk
Date: 07/07/2019

Mr Prash Theva (Manager)

Carlton Lounge Your Ref;
232-234 Kingsbury Road Our Ret:
London Contact:
NW9 0BH

Dear Mr Prash Theva (Manager),

Environmental Protection Act 1990
Carlion Lounge, 232-234 Kingsbury Road, Londen, NW9 0BH

On the 08 July 2019, Officers from Environmental Health responded to a complaint and noted loud
music emanating from the above premises at such a level as to constitute the likely occurrence of
a statutory nuisance within the meaning of the law.

Therefore | am obliged to serve the enclosed Notice under Section 80 of the Environmental
Protection Act 1980. This is intended to deal with this matter by enabling the Council to take
formal legal action should there be any occurrence of statutory noise nuisance from loud music,

Should further complaints be received, we will investigate by monitoring the situation. Monitoring
will either take the form of periodic visits, to be carried out day or night, by officers who will engage
in non-intrusive monitoring (i.e. without alerting you prior to the visit) usually by visiting the person
making the complaint, and/or the use of remote monitoring equipment which measures and
records the nolse being complained about.

Contravention of the notice could lead to the instigation of criminal proceedings against you, The
maximum fine for each offence is now unlimited upon conviction. The previous maximum fine was
£20,000

Please note that there is a right of appeal to the notice. Application has to be made to the
Magistrates Court within 21 days. The details are provided on the noles fo the notice.

If there continues to be a persistent noise nuisance, the council will also consider applying to the
Courts far a warrant in order to seize all audio equipment from your premises.

Accordingly, | would strongly advise that you cease to cause noise nuisance and refrain from
playing loud music at such a level as to disturb your neighbours.

Should you require any further information, please do not hesitate to contact me at the above
address.

Yours sincerely,

Principal Nuisance Control Officer
Regeneration and Environment

¥ -, [ ¢ koo, . 8rent - building a beller
g { sunans D &g el AV borough
Sy .2 A e LK & &
- M? 150 (4001 PG
ISVESTOR [ PEDPLE Awnrtiat o cxlienes [ TN




27 %O

Page 248




MW/02

Brent Civic Cenfre, Engineers Way,
Wembley, Middlesex, HAS OF}

Tel; (020) 8937 5252
Direct i.ine 020-8837 5561

Emai; ens.noiseteam@brent.gov.uk

REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT

Wel: www.brent.gov.uk
Date; 14/09/2022

Mr Prash Theva (Manager)

Carlton Lounge/Tiger Bay Your Ref:

232-234 Kingsbury Road OurRefi NC/08126/19
Landon Contact:

NWO OBH

Dear Mr Theva,

Environmental Protection Act 1990
Carlton Lounge!/Tiger Bay, 232-234 Kingsbury Road, L.ondon, NW9 0BH

it was good to meet with you, your father, and@ . 3(Head of Security) on Saturday 27 Aug. You
will recall my visit was made at approx. 22:40hr , in response to a noise complaint. My prior
assessment indicated a statutory nuisance-level of noise from loud amplified music. During our
discussion, you informed me of due diligence measures you are taking by measuring noise levels
at the boundary, and unsuccessful altempts you have made to engage with one resident i
particutar. | acknowledge that Carlton Lounge was celebrating its 10th anniversary.

Following a later review of the noise abatement notice served on you in July 2018 (copy attached),
I observed its scope is limited to noise nuisance affecting residential occuplers at Mead Court. As
explained during our mesting, the complaint received on Saturday evening was in response to g

complaint from a different location.

| am therefore writing to formally withdraw the 2019 notice and serve the enclosed revised notice
under Section 80 of the Environmental Protection Act 1980, This is intended to deal with the
matter by enabling the Council to take formal fegal action should there be any occurrence of noise
nuisance from loud amplified music.

Contravention of the netice could lead to the instigation of criminal proceedings against you. The
maximum fine for each offence, upon conviction, is unlimiled. The previous maximum fine was

£20,000 (business).

Please note that there is a right of appeal fo the notice. Application has fo bhe made fo the
Maaistrates Court within 21 days. The details are provided on the nofes to the nofice.

We remind you of Condition 15 (Annex 2) of your Premises Licence: No noise or vibration shall be
detectable at any neighbouring noise sensitive premises. We also remind you of your duty under
the Licensing Act 2003 to prevent pubic nuisance

Accordingly, 1 would strongly advise that you ensure the playing of amplified music does not
constitute statutory noise nuisance or breach of premises licence.

Should you require any further information, please do noi hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

&3 - Brent « bullding a better
borotigh

© ()(}TPRlNT

IS0 p4001

zoau
Lruay

INYISTOR W PRAOPLE Avwarded fovexeellence




Principal Nuisance Control Officer
Regeneration and Environment

i h i
‘\l}p” Ny J— d 25Q %, ., Brent - building a better
i BMTRADA o (Yo borough
Q‘ SERYIFIZAT RN, [ "s
P > ooy Lasew| % .
150 14001 : Bpor 1Y
INVESTOR IN PEOPLD Avarded for excellence ol ShbY syaar Doge




PROOF-OF ~ SeRVICS

LONDON BORQUGH OF BRENT

Environmental Protection Act 1990
Section 80

Abatement hotice in respect of statutory nuisance

Mr Prash Theva (Manager)
Carlton Lounge/Tiger Bay
232-234 Kingsbury Road
London

NW9 0BH

TAKE NOTICE that under the provisions of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 the
Coungcil of the London Borough of Brent being satisfied of the likely occurrence of noise
amounting to a statutory nuisance under section 7¢(1){g) of that Act from the premises
known as Carlton Loungel/Tiger Bay, 232-234 Kingshury Road, London, NYV9 0BH
within the district of the said Council arising from the playing of amplified music and
amplified speech.

HEREBY REQUIRE YOU as the person responsible of the premises from which the noise
is or would be emitted forthwith from the service of this notice, to abate the same and also

HEREBY PROHIBIT the occurrence of the sald nuisance and for that purpose require you
ta: Cease or cause to cease the playing of amplified music and amplified speech at
such a level as fo constitute a nuisance

IN the event of an appeal this notice shall NOT be suspended until the appeal has
been abandoned or decided by the Court, as, in the opinion of the Council, the expenditure
which would be incurred by any person in carrying out works in compliance with this notice
before any appeal has been decided would not be disproportionate to the public benefit fo
he expected in that period from such compliance.

IF without reasonable excuse you contravene or fail to comply with any requirement
of this notice you will be guilty of any offence under section 80(4) of the Environmental
Protaction Act 1990 and on summary cohviction will be liable to a fine not exceeding laevel &
on the Standard Scale (currently £5,000), together with a further fine of an amount equal fo
one-tenth of that level for each day on which the offence continues after conviction. A
person who commits an offence on industrial, frade or business premises will be Kable on
summary conviction to a fine not exceeding £20,000.

The Council may also take proceedings in the High Court for securing the abatement,
prohibition or restriction of the nuisance. Further, if you fail to execute all or any of
the works in accordance with this notice, the Council may execute the works and

recover from you the necessary expenditure incurred.

Dated: 14/09/2022 Signed:

Print Nari
Regulatofy erv
Authorised Officer

Page 251




Regulatory Services, Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way, Wembley, HA9 0JF

Tel: 0208 937 5252

Email:ens.noiseteam@brent.gov.uk

Ref: EH/19/08426/MWW

NB The person served with this notice may appeal against the notice to Brent

Magistrates’Court, 448 High Road, London NWI0 2DZ within twenty-one days
beginning with the date of service of the notice (see notes attached).

If you require further Information or have a query in respect of this notice, please ca
n 020 8937 6252

o Nollvo OF Which This 13 A Trie Clog{‘_\}v’al;sﬁamed By
E\gﬂ /Wﬁh@biﬁ‘ On Tha, Lt Day Of‘

By Pe atvary T MU RRASIA TAEN X
By Affixing 17 1o ¥ \g@@\/ﬂ%

- iemsrsuvaaTaABARAN

OfThe Prer: o - ..
By Sendie] i 1
To The Wulvn

- Addressed
Natice For
o Mo,

Page 252




Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way,
Wemblay, Middlesex. HAS OF

Tal: (020) 8937 5252
Direct Line 020-8937 5561

Emaile  ens.noiseleam@brent.gov.uk

REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT

Web: www.brent.gov.uk
Date: 140972022

Carlton Lounge (UK) Ltd

Carlton Lounge/Tiger Bay Your Ref:
232-234 Kingsbury Road Our Ref:
L.ondon Gonfact: §
NWO 0BH

Dear Sirs

Environmental Protection Act 1990
Carlton Lounge/Tiger Bay, 232-234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 0BH

I met with Mr Prash Theva (Manager) on Saturday 27 Aug 2022, as outlined in the attached
correspondence.

We are concerned that statutory noise nuisance from loud amplified music - particularly after
11pm - is likely to ocour. We are therefore obliged to serve the enclosed notice under Section 80
of the Environmental Protection Act 1890. This is intended to deal with the matter by enabling the
Council to take formal legal action should there be any occurrence of noise nuisance from loud

ampiified music.

Contravention of the notice could lead to the instigation of criminal proceedings against you. The
maximum fine for each offence, upon conviction, is unlimited. The previous maximum fine was

£20,000 (business).

Please note that there is a right of appeal to the nofice. Application has fo be made fo the
Mauaistrates Court within 21 days. The defails are provided on the nofes fo the hofice.

We remind you of Condition 15 (Annex 2) of your Premises Licence: No noise or vibration shall be
detectable at any neighbouring noise sensitive premises. We also remind you of your duty under
the Licensing Act 2003 to prevent pubic huisance

Accordingly, 1 would strongly advise that you ehsure the playing of amplified music does not
constitute statutory noise nuisance or breach of premises licence.

Should you require any further information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

Principal Nuisancg Control
Regeneration and\Environme

= Brent - building = heiter
e borough

A S

PFOAOTPRINT

f“‘wp

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE Awarded for exvellenco

yeITET D (
k BM TRADA y
cll‘|’|ﬂh’|l)ll A
UEAS

Tt

1SC 14001 Les==

3]

3 a
ATNAY HOGS




Page 254




[.ONDON BOROUGH OF BRENT

Environmental Protection Act 1920
Section 80

Abatement notice in respect of statutory nuisance

Carlton Lounge (UK) Ltd
Carlton Lounge/Tiger Bay
232-234 Kingshury Road
London

NW9 OBH

TAKE NOTICE that under the provisions of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 the
Council of the London Borough of Brent being satisfied of the likely occurrence of noise
amounting to a statutory nuisance under section 79(1){(g) of that Act from the premises
known as Carlton Lounge/Tiger Bay, 232-234 Kingshury Road, London, NW9 0BH
within the district of the said Council arising from the playing of amplified music and
amplified speech.

HEREBY REQUIRE YOU as the person responsible of the premises from which the noise
is or would be emitted forthwith from the service of this notice, to abate the same and also

HEREBY PROMHIBIT the occurrence of the said nuisance and for that purpose require you
to: Cease or cause to cease the playing of amplified music and amplified speech at
such a level as to constitute a nuisance

IN the event of an appeal this notice shall NOT be suspended until the appeal has
been abandoned or decided by the Court, as, in the opinfon of the Council, the expenditure
which would be incurred by any person in carrying out works in compliance with this notice
before any appeal has been decided would not be disproportionate to the public benefit to
be expected in that period from such compliance.

IE without reasonable excuse you contravene or fail to comply with any requirement
of this notice you will be guilty of any offence under section 80(4) of the Environmental
Protection Act 1990 and on summary conviction will be liable to a fihe not exceeding level 5
on the Standard Scale (currently £5,000), together with a further fine of an amount equal to
one-tenth of that level for each day on which the offence continues after conviction, A
person who commits an offence on industrial, trade or business premises will be fable on
summary conviction to a fine not exceeding £20,000.

The Council may also take proceedings in the High Court for securing the abatement,
prohibition or restriction of the nuisance. Further, if you fail to execute all or any of
the works in accordance with this notice, the Council may execute the works and

recover from you the necessary expenditure incurred. L

Dated: 14/09/2022 Signed:

Regulatory Services
Authorised Officer

Page 255




Regulatory Services, Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way, Wembley, HA9 0JF
Tel: 0208 937 5252
Email:ens.noiseteam@brent.gov.uk

Ref: EH/19/08126/MW

NB The person served with this notice may appeal against the notice to Brent
Magistrates'Court, 448 High Road, London NWI0 2DZ within twenty-one days
beginning with the date of service of the notice {see notes attached).

If you require further information or have a query In respect of this notice, please ¢
801 020 8937 5252

(%1 OO MRS -

The Nolice OF Which Thiz |

s ATre Copy Was Served By

Mg On The \giu ‘i? On T ...} bde.... Day Of
8 rol - Q- v’ -
[%?«‘ T ey 1o MR, BEA S TGN A

Of The
Ry Sea

Page 256




M [ 0%

Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way,
Wembley, Middlesex, HAS OFJ

Tel: (020) 8937 5252
Direct Line 95561

Email: brent.gov.uk

REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT

Web: www. brent.gov.uk
Date: 19/10/2022

Mr Prash Theva {Manager)

Carlton Lounge / Tiger Bay Your Ref.
232-234 Kingsbury Road Our Ref: NC/08126/19
London Contact: &
NWOY 0BH
By post and email
Dear Prash,

Carlton Lounge / Tiger Bay, 232-234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 0BH
Formal withdrawal of noise nuisance abatement notices.

Thank you once again for your co-operation in setting a suitable music noise volume on Saturday
15th October.

| have since received summons to attend Willesden Magistrates Court on 17 November following
appeal lodged against the enclosed noise abatement notices, dated and served 14 September
2022.

Having thought carefully about this matter and being mindful of your evident willingness to
cooperate and meet your legal duty to prevent public nuisance, and adhere to conditions upon your
premises licence, we have taken the decision to formally withdraw both noise abatement notices.

For the avoidance of doubt, there are no active noise abatement notices against Carlton Lounge /
Tiger Bay.

Yours sincerely,

r Nsance Control Officer
Community Protection
cc Borough Solicitor

Page 257




Page 258




Mw [05

Brent Civic Centre, Enginesers Way,
Wembley, Middlesex. HAQ OFJ
Tep (020} 8937 6252
Direct Line 020-8937 1096

Emall: ens.nolseteam@brent.gov.uk

REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT

Weh: www.brent.gov.uk
Date: 29/09/2021

Mr Thavatheva Thevarajah

Tigerbay Shisha Lounge Your Ref:
234 Kingsbury Road Our Ref:  NC/08440/21
{ondon Contact

NWa 0BH

Dear Mr Thevarajah,

Noise Nuisance - Environmental Profection Act 1980
Tigerbay Shisha Lounge, 234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 0BH

Thank you for your time during our telephone cll on 29 September. As discussed, we have several
received complaints from local residents alleging noise caused by loud ampilified music and voices
from your premises is causing a nuisance.

On the 18th September 2021 at 0021 hours and at 2314 hours, | visited the area and monitored
noise levels from outside of the premises. | can confirm that on both occasions, the noise from
both music and from volces could clearly be heard.

Since our telephone discussion, 1 was pleased to hear from a local resident that the noise from
music had reduced over the past two weeks,, '

If the terms of that notice are broken and you continue to cause unacceptable noise, the Council
may then fake Court action. A successful prosecution can result in an unfimited fine and a criminal
record being imposed, The oplion lo seek a formal review of your premises licence is also an
option available to the council and local residents.

I would like to draw your attention to condition 15 of your premises licence below:

"156  No noise or vibration shall be detectable at any neighbouring noise sensitive
premises."

You are therefore required to ensure that activities at your premises do not cause a disturbance to
your neighbours and, if so, take any measures necessary to reduce the noise.

! would be pleased to discuss the matter with you and welcome you to contact me on the above
telephone number.

Thank you for your co-operation.

Yours sincerely,

Nuisance Control Officer
Regeneration and Environment

' ‘A“"l‘f’ T i, Brent - building & better
§ }; {{BM A ) borough
Y S
- =2 150 14801 A roovzain
INVISTOR IN PROTPLE Aowvarded for exeellence o1z ,Sﬂﬂ\-" ety fa‘r’.tﬁ'g




Page 260



FromBl B0
Sent: 14 September 2022 15:45

Cepl 2 .
Subject: RE: FAO Prash Theva

Dear Prash,

It was lovely to meet with you and your team earlier. | feel it was a constructive meeting
and | hope it gave you some perspective on what you need to do to address the issues
discussed.

| was able to carry out an inspection of the conditions attached to your premises
licence and this highlighted some areas of concern, relating to the following conditions.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule

1 CCTV shall be installed to Home Office Guidance standards and maintained in a good
working condition and recordings shall be kept for 31 days and shall be made available
to police and authorised Officers from Brent Council on demand.

When reguested, you were unable to show me CCTV footage from yesterday evening. |
appreciate that you have now resolved this and this will not be a problem for any future

similar requests.

4. The licensee shall keep an incident book which shall be made available to the Police
and Licensing Authority on demand.

Your SIA Manager showed me your incident book where the last recorded incident was
on 02/01/2022. During conversation there appeared to be some confusion as to what
neaded to be recorded. Just to confirm that ANY incident, whether emergency services
have been called or not, that involves some form of intervention/assistance by any

Page 261



member of staff should be recorded. Recording of all incidents is so important in todays
“Where’s there’s blame, there’s a claim” culture that we live in.

During the meeting | identified the following two conditions that 1 feel your
premises, in its current style of operation, will have difficulty to comply with.

15. No noise or vibration shall be detectable at any neighbouring noise sensitive
premises.

16. The relevant areas where regulated entertainment or making music takes place
shall be adequately sound proofed to prevent noise breakout.

Condition 15 & 16 have always been on the premises licence since it was converted to
the new Licensing Act 2003. They were also on the licence when it was transferred to
Cartton Lounge (UK} Ltd in 2016. So, it is cbvious that these conditions were not taken
into consideration when changing the style of operation to its current mode. This needs
to be addressed as a matter of urgency as, if not, your premises could be at risk of
enforcement action being taken and/or your licence being reviewed.

Please keep and updated with any measures you plan on imptementing to make
sure that you are in compliance with your licence conditions.

Kind Regards

Licensing Officer

Regulatory Services

Brent Council

Page 262




Tel: k

www. brent.gov.uk

@Brent_Council

Subject: RE: FAO Prash Theva

Hi Prash

Look forward to seeing you and your team on Weds from 12:30pm.

Licensing Officer, £ will be joining me.

Kind regards

Principal Nuisance Control Officer
Community Protection
Resident Services

020 8937 5561

From: prash theva <[
Sent: 12 September 2022 12:39

Page 263




Subject: Re: FAO Prash Theva

Thanks for your reply and hope you had a good weekend.

Thank you for wanting to meet sooner. We are more than happy to meet at Carlton
Lounge on Wednesday 14 September. Given the current commitments of the
management team a meeting between 12.30 and 1.30pm would work well.

We are more than happy to invite whoever you feel can help contribute to the meeting
and helps support our current measures which includes our head of security and sound
engineer if you believe this will be beneficial in arder to resolve the matter, so please let
me know and we will reach out accordingly to them.

Should you feel there is anything else please feel free to contact me.

Look forward to meeting you on Wednesday.

Thanks

Prash

On Mon, 12 Sep 2022 at 11:45,

Hi Prash

Thank you for your email.

Page 264




We welcome your request for a meeting; although I consider meeting at Carlton Lounge
would be more helpful than meeting at Brent Civic Centre.

Are you possibly free on Wednesday, sometime between noon and 2pm?

Kind regards

Principal Nuisance Gontrol Officer
Community Protection
Resident Services

020 8837 5561

From: prash theva
Sent: 09 Septermber 2022 18:41

Subject: Re: FAO Prash Theva

Thank you for your email eartier today and trust you are keeping well.

| have tried to contact you twice to speak directly as sometimes that is easier to do
though | believe your voice mailbox is full.

Thank you for your offer to meet on the 23rd September 2022. As mentioned to Diana
last week we are keen to maintain and continue to build a relationship with yourselves
and our local community.

Page 265




| had expressed to hat | would like to meet you with my management team and

the external sound team we have been working with, to discuss and resolve this matter.

We have been putting in place additional measures to monitor sound and additional
secUrity which was shown to your team, alongside conversations withE 3 throughout
this period to work with you. Given our work within the community we do too, we want
to ensure we work with you in the appropriate way that supports our community and as
a local business that has now been running for 10 years.

Would you be free between Monday and Wednesday next week to have a meeting to
discuss this matter in your offices? Please do let me know and happy to meet.

Kind regards

On Fri, 9 Sep 2022 at 14:21,

Hello Prash

Trusting you are well,

My colleague - explained you refused to accept the revised noise
abatement notices when she visited last week. We do acknowledge your efforts to
ensure neighbours are not unreasonably disturbed by noise from your business.
However, as the notice is revised, merely to consider a wider residential neighbourhood
than Mead Court (and would entail withdrawal of the earlier 2019 notice - which
remains in force) we consider it is necessary to follow through with this. | do helieve
serving a revised notice would provide you with opportunity to ladge an appeal - though
| am not sure on what grounds that could succeed as we do not consider the
requirements of the revised abatement notice is otherwise unreasonable in character or
extent, or uhnecessary.

| will hold-off serving the revised notice until evening of Friday 23 September, when |
would be happy to meet with you in person again.

Page 266




All good wishes

Principal Nuisance Control Officer
Community Protection
Resident Services

020 8937 5561

The use of Brent Council's e-mail system may be monitored and communications read
in order to secure effective operation of the system and other lawful purposes.

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links
or open attachments unless you recoghise the sender and know the content is safe

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links
or open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe

Page 267




Page 268




Case details

Status:

Triage

Reference:

VTI2ZGVIG

Source address:

Carlton lounge, Kingsbury road, London, NWS

Assigned officer(s):

Case created:

3 Jul 2019 18:45

Reporter details

Name:

Email:

Telephone:

Reporter address:

B Mead Court, Buck Lane, London, NW9 0XN

Prepared by: EEEE

223 (Brent Councl} on 6 Jun 2025 21:51

Page 269




Source address:Carlton lounge, Kingsbury road, London, NW9

Reporter: r

Report 9

Recorded: 30 Jul 2024 12:24
Uploaded: 30 Jul 2024 12:32
Source: Commercial music
Location: Living room
Duration: 1 hour

Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 17.6m

Additional evidence

Comments

| do not want to hear really loud music in my flat, When it is coming from a business premises. It
is really loud and annoying | cannot hear my own radio

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Prepared by: EEER @l (Brent Council) on 6 Jun 2025 21:51

Page 270




Source address:Carlton lounge, Kingsbury road, London, NW9
Reporter:

Report 8

Recorded: 24 Aug 2019 21:05
Uploaded: 24 Aug 2019 21:06
Source: Domestic music
Location: Living room
Duration: 10 minutes
Intensity: &

GPS Accuracy: 3.7m

Additional evidence

Comments

N/A

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 271

Prapared by: B B8 (Brent Councli) on 6 jun 2025 21:51




Source address:Carlton lounge, Kingshury road, London, NW$
Reporter: -

Report 7

Recorded: 24 Aug 2019 21:01
Uploaded: 24 Aug 2019 21:02
Source: Domestic music
Location: Living room
Duration: 15 minutes
Intensity: 5

GPS Accuracy: 3m

Additional evidence

Comments

N/A

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 272

Prepared by:E # (Brent Councll) on 6 Jun 2025 21:51




Source address:Carlton lounge, Kingsbury road, London, NW9
Reporter: i

Report 6

Recorded: 24 Aug 2019 20:57
Uploaded: 24 Aug 2019 21:00
Source: Damestic music
Location: Living room
Duration: 0 seconds
Intensity: 5

GPS Accuracy: 3m

Additional evidence

Comments

Really inconsiderate fed up it's hot and all | can hear is this racket

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 273

Prapared by: ESESSEER (Brent Councii) on 6 Jun 2025 21:51



Source address:Carlton lounge, Kingsbhury road, London, NW9
Repaorter: -

Report 5

Recorded: 17 Aug 2019 18:38
Uploaded: 17 Aug 2019 18:47
Source: Live music
Location: Dining room
Duration: 10 minutes
intensity: 5

GPS Accuracy: Im

Additional evidence

Comments

It gives me a headache and cannot hear my TV properly

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 274

8 {Brent Councll} on 6 Jun 2025 21:51

Prepared by: E




Source address:Carlton lounge, Kingsbury road, London, NW9
Reporter: .

Report 4

Recorded: 7 Jul 2019 00:03
Uploaded: 7 Jul 2019 00:03
Source: Domestic music
Location: Living room
Duration: 1 hour
Intensity: 3

GPS Accuracy: 3m

Additional evidence

Comments

N/A

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 275

Prepared by: BEgSREEER (Brent Council) on & Jun 2025 21:51



Source address:Carlton lounge, Kingsbury road, London, NW9

Reporter:

Report 3

Recorded: 5]Jul 2019 22:38
Uploaded: 5Jul 2019 22:38
Source: Domestic music
Location: Living room
Duration: 4 hours 10 minutes
intensity: 5

GPS Accuracy: 3m

Additional evidence

Comments

It's really annoying can even hear it in my bedroom been like it ever since | got in from work

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 276

Prepared by S 8 (Brent Council) on & Jun 2025 21:51




Source address:Carlton lounge, Kingsbury road, London, NW9
Reporter: :

Report 2

Recorded: 5Jul 2019 21:28
Uploaded: 5 Jul 2019 21:28
Source: Domestic music
Location: Dining room
Duration: 4 hours
Intensity: 5

GPS Accuracy: 3m

Additional evidence

Comments

Can't watch TV in peace

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 277

Prepared by: BESssRmsm (Brent Councll) on 6 Jun 2025 21:51




Source address:Carlton lounge, Kingsbury road, London, NWS
Reporter: ' :

Report 1

Recorded: 3 jul 2019 18:45
Uploaded: 3 Jul 2019 18:45
Source: Domestic music
Location: Dining room
Duration: 30 minutes
Intensity: 5

GPS Accuracy: 3m

Additional evidence

Comments

it gives me a headache | want to be able to have my windows open on a hot day

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 278

Prepared by; EE 2 (Brent Council) on 6 jun 2025 21:53




Source address:Carlton lounge, Kingshury road, London, NW9

Reporter:

Audit Trail

Case grouped: 6 jun 2025 21:50

Status change: Triage - 6 Jun 2025 21:50

Status change: Triage - 6 Jun 2025 21:50

Status change: Triage - 6 Jun 2025 21:50

Status change: Triage - 6 jun 2025 21:50

Status change: Triage - 6 Jun 2025 21:50

Status change: Closed - 22 Nov 2024 14:18

Message: From B8 - 22 Nov 2024 14:18
Report sent: 30 Jul 2024 12:20

Status change: Closed - 5 Sep 2019 16:43

Status change: Pending review - 24 Aug 2019 21:00
Status change: Closed - 21 Aug 2019 07:43

Status change: Pending review - 17 Aug 2019 18:47
Status change: Closed - 27 Jul 2019 18:54

Status change: Under investigation - 7 Jul 2019 23:39
Status change: Pending review - 3 Jul 2019 18:48
Messages

Camments

Page 279

Prepared by EIESEEEER (Drent Council) on 6 Jun 2025 21:51

11




£

We regret we were unable to respond to these at the time reported. We will log this for
monitoring as a one-off or infrequent noise incident. We usually require three or four separate
nuisance-level incidents within a four-week period to open an investigation.

- 27 Jul 2019 18:53

Thank you for using the Brent Noise App. | can confirm we visited Mead Court and the Carlton
Lounge on 07 July and witnessed unreasonably loud music. A Noise Abatement Notice was
served on the person responsible for playing loud music at a level causing nuisance. That notice
prohibits the recurrence of the nuisance and a breach of the notice is an offence. If the noise
problem recurs, please contact us again whilst the noise is audible and disturbing you. If this is
during our service hours, we will again endeavour to visit you as soon as possible - usually
within two working hours - to make an assessment from your premises. We cannot respond to
calls outside our service hours.

Page 280

Prepared by: EEEETgE (Brent Councll) on 6 Jun 2025 21:51 12




Source address:Carlton lounge, Kingsbury road, London, NW9
Reporter:

Internal case notes

Comments

Page 281

B (Brent Council) on 6 Jun 2025 21:51

Prepared by: B8

13




Declaration

- confirm that this report and the recording | am submitting through The Noise
App are a true representation of the noise nuisance | have experienced.

Page 282

g (Brent Council) on 6 Jun 2025 21:51 14

Prepared by: BES




Case details

Status: Closed

Reason for closure: Case unresolved

Reference: KV3JEVMO

Source address: Tiger Bay Shisha Bar, 234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 OBH

Assigned officer(s): N/A

Case created: 9 Aug 2021 00:26

Reporter details

Name:

Email:

Telephone:

Prepared by BE s (Brent Council} on 6 Jun 2025 21:51

Page 283



Reporter address:

Kingsbury , London , NW9 0BW

Page 284

Prepared by: EEESSRIEREN (Brent Council) on 6 Jun 2025 21:51




Source address:Tiger Bay Shisha Bar, 234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 0BH

Reporter:

Report 5

Recorded: 9 Aug 2021 00:26
Uploaded: 9 Aug 2021 00:33
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 30 minutes
Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: Im

Additional evidence

Comments

This is the Tiger Bay Shisha Bar yet again. Monitoring their activities in the evening is of little
use when they crank the volume up after midnight. | expect a full report from you as to what
action you have taken against this continuing disturbance, Failing that, | will file an Fol request
for all complaints about these premises, consult my MP, and consider whether there is a case
for collusion.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 285

Prepared by:E &8 (Brent Councll) on 6 jun 2025 21:51 3




Source address:Tiger Bay Shisha Bar, 234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 0BH
Reporter: '

Report 4

Recorded: 20 Jul 2021 00:45
Uploaded: 20 Jul 2021 00:53
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 30 minutes
Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.9m

Additional evidence

Comments

This us from the Tiger Bay Shisha Bar. They crank the volume up after midnight. It is not
possible to remain asleep when they do this. It is likely to continue until 3am and then we have
to contend with the noise of their customers hanging around the car park for another hour.
What are you doing about this? It is entirely unacceptable. | expect to hear from you during the
course of the day, Next stop will be my MP to find out why you have taken no action to stop this
appalling antisocial commercial activity.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 286

Preparad by: BEEBEEEER (Brent Council) on 6 Jun 2025 231:51 4




Source address:Tiger Bay Shisha Bar, 234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 0BH
Reporter;

Report 3

Recorded: 19 Jun 2021 23:46
Uploaded: 19 jun 2021 23:48
Saurce: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 45 minutes
Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: am

Additional evidence

Comments

No chance of an early night here, thanks to the Tiger Bar again.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 287

Prepared by: S 28 (Brent Council) on 6 jun 2025 21:51




Source address:Tiger Bay Shisha Bar, 234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 OBH
Reporter; -'

Report 2

Recorded: 19 jun 2021 00:28
Uploaded: 19 Jun 2021 00:30
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour 20 minutes
Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 13.3m

Additional evidence'

Comments

Yet another sleepless night of torture curtesy of the Tiger Bar in Kingsbury Road.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 288

2 (Brent Council) on 6 Jun 2025 21:51

Prepared by:




Source address:Tiger Bay Shisha Bar, 234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 0BH
Reporter:

Report 1

Recorded: 5 jun 2021 01:31
Uploaded: 5Jun 2021 01:39
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours
Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 3.5m

Additional evidence

Comments

The noise is coming from The Tiger Bar alongside the Carlton Rooms on Kingsbury Rd. As well
as the loud music there are drunken people screaming, jeering and shouting periodically. It's
now 1.35am and sleep is not possible. When the club disgorges, their customers make noise in
their car park often as late as 3.30am.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 289

{Brent Council) on 6 Jun 2025 21:51 7

Prepared by EEETEEES




Source address:Tiger Bay Shisha Bar, 234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 0BH
Reporter: j

Audit Trail

Status change: Closed - 6 Jun 2025 21:51

Status change: Closed - 5 Nov 2021 13:01

Status change: Pending review - 9 Aug 2021 00:33
Messages

Comments

Bl - 26 Jul 2021 12:46

We are giving priority to cases where there is persistent or widespread actionable nuisance. We
are already aware of the history of this premises and will monitor from time to time during our

evening duties.

= - 20 Jul 2021 09:31

To be fair, they ceased at 1.00am on this occasion, with little noise afterwards.

20 Jui 2021 09:30

To be fair, they ceased at 1.00am on this occasion, with little noise afterwards.

Page 290

Prepared by: EERSRER (Drent Council) on 6 Jun 2025 21:51




Source address:Tiger Bay Shisha Bar, 234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 0BH

Reporter:

Internal case notes

Comments

Page 291

Prepared by: ESESEREH (Srent Councll) on 6 Jun 2025 21:51 a




Declaration

I B confirm that this report and the recording | am submitting through The Noise
App are a true representation of the noise nuisance | have experienced.

Page 292

Prepared byi Martin Wood {8rent Councif) on 6 jun 2025 21:51

10




Case details

Status: Closed

Reason for closure:  Case unresolved

Reference: C10X1KOO

Source address: The Carlton Lounge, , 232 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH

Assigned officer(s):

Case created: 23 Feb 2020 02:11

Reporter details

Name:

Email:

Telephone:

Prepared by: EEEEEREA (Bront Council) on 6 jun 2025 21:52

Page 293



Reporter address:

B Mead Court, Buck Lane, Kingsbury, NW9 0XN

Page 294

Prepared by: EEFgE= {Brent Council) on & Jun 2025 21:52




Source address: T

he Carlton Lounge, , 232 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH

Reporter: .

Report 5

Recorded: 21 Mar 2020 01:47
Upioaded: 21 Mar 2020 01:51
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 6 hours 30 minutes
Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 13.2m

Additional evidence

Comments

I have not been able to sleep.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Prepared by: BT

{Brent Councii) on 6 jun 2025 21:52

Page 295




Source address:The Carlton Lounge, , 232 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter; -

Report 4

Recorded: 23 Feb 2020 02:14
Uploaded: 23 Feb 2020 02:34
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 5 hours 40 minutes
Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 4.6m

Additional evidence

Comments

I have not slept at all. | have requested the council to move me. It is unfair to do a houseswap
for someone else to endure, what | have for years. | will be taking this matter up with legal
advisors , not with the club, because Brent Council has permit them an extension which letters
were posted to myself as a council tenant. | have been a tenant at this address for going 26
years and had no problem before this club moved, next to these flats. It is 2:23 am Sunday
Morning. How wicked and heartless. They even have the audacity to raise the volume higher.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 296

Prepared by: B 388 (Brent Coundil) en 6 Jun 2625 21:52 4




Source address:The Carlton Lounge, , 232 Kingsbury Road, London , NWS OBH
Reporter: e : i

Report 3

Recorded: 2 Oct 2019 00:32
Uploaded: 2 0ct 2019 00:34
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 3 hours 50 minutes
Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 4.6m

Additional evidence

Comments

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 297

Prepared by B & (Brent Councli) an 6 Jun 2025 21:;52




Source address:The Carlton Lounge, , 232 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter:

Report 2

Recorded: 15 Sep 2019 01:16
Uploaded: 15 Sep 2019 01:19
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 1 hour 25 minutes
Intensity: g

GPS Accuracy: -

Additional evidence

Comments

The Carlton Lounge Club have increased their volume, please do something about it. | am
unable to sleep.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 298

Prepared by: RS g (HBrent Council) on 6 Jup 2625 21:52




Source address:The Carlton Lounge, , 232 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter: = P

Report 1

Recorded: 15 Sep 2019 00:23
Uploaded: 15 Sep 2019 00:31
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 3 hours 50 minutes
Intensity: 5

GPS Accuracy: -

Additional evidence

Comments

| want to sleep. The base is heavy and the loud chattering voices are too much. | want to sleep.
What is being done about this problem. My sleep pattern has been affected by them for years.
They are causing health problems.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 299

Prepared by: BEESEEREES (Brent Coundll) on 6 Jun 2025 21:52 7




Source address:The Carlton Lounge, , 232 Kingsbury Road, London , NW2 OBH
Reporter: e

Audit Trail

Status change: Closed - 4 Apr 2020 23:08

Status change: Under investigation - 24 Feb 2020 14:14
Status change: Pending review - 23 Feb 2020 02:34
Messages

Comments

1 - 4 Apr 2020 23:08

This premises should be closed now due to the pandemic. If you find the premises is still
operating during lockdown please notify the Police via 101.

- 4 Oct 2019 15:59

Thank you for using the Brent Noise App. We have a backlog of recordings. This was my earliest
opportunity to listen to these recordings. The perceived volume of music noise was not
especially substantial, but low bass thuds and voices were evident in your 15th September
recordings. We have noted the time of your recordings. Please continue to use the Brent Noise
App or use our emergency noise service (6pm - 2am Friday to Sunday). We will decide what
action to take based on the scale of the problem, how frequently it happens, who is atted by
the noise and how. You (and other neighbours) are able to request a formal review of the
premises licence at any time based on your own anecdotal evidence or in the form of noise
incident diaries. Please contact me if you would like more information abouthat

- 19 Sep 2019 18:49

Thank you for using the Brent Noise App. W will review your recordings as soon as possible and
come back to you.

Page 300

Prepared by: EEESEEEES] (Brent Council) on 6 jun 2025 21:52 8




Source address:The Carlton Lounge, , 232 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter:

Internal case notes

Comments

Page 301

Prepared by: BEEEEEEEEE (Brent Council} on 6 jun 2025 21:52 9




Declaration

i confirm that this report and the recording | am submitting through The Naoise
App are a true representatfon of the noise nuisance | have experienced.

Page 302

ze (Brent Council) on 6 Jun 2025 21:52 10

Prepared by: BB




Case details

Status:

Triage

Reference:

LFTHAMEN

Source address:

Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH

Assigned officer(s):

Auto Botl, B

Case created:

30 Apr 2023 23:57

Reporter details

Name:

Email:

Telephone:

Reporter address:

B Kingsbury, London , NW9 0BW

Prepared hy:pss

Page 303

g (Brent Council) on 9 jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge ,

234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH

Reporter:

Report 114

Recorded: 31 May 2025 01:18
Uploaded: 31 May 2025 01:19
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 9m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Prapared by:|[Exmes

ey (Brent Councell) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00

Page 304




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NWS 0BH
Reporter: =

Report 113

Recorded: 24 May 2025 01:43
Uploaded: 24 May 2025 01:44
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 13.5m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep due to the loud music

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 305

Prepared by:EEmmEsEss (Brent Counclf) on 9 jun 2625 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge
Reporter:

. 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH

Report 112

Recorded: 21 Jul 2024 02:09
Uploaded: 21 jul 2024 02:09
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 4 hours

Intensity: 9

GPS Accuracy: 6.3m

Additional evidence

Comments

tam unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Prepared by gy (Brent Councll} on 9 Jun 2025 12:00

Page 306




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 O0BH
Reporter: S L

Report 111

Recorded: 10 jun 2024 00:58
Uploaded: 10 Jun 2024 00:58
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 9.1lm

Additional evidence

Comments

I'm am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 307

Prepared by pEmmmesmsy (Brent Council) en 9 Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter:

Report 110

Recorded: 9 Jun 2024 02:11
Uploaded: 9 Jun 2024 02:12
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 3 hours
Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 9.1Im

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 308

PFrepared by: s (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge
Reporter: fé

, 234 Kingsbhury Road, London , NWS O0BH

Report 109

Recorded: 4 Jun 2024 23:02
Uploaded: 4 Jun 2024 23:02
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours
Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 8.1m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Prepared by Epggmggges (Brent Councll} on § Jun 2025 12:00

Page 309




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NWS OBH
Reporter:

Report 108

Recorded: 3 Mar 2024 02:07
Uploaded: 3 Mar 2024 02:07
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 4 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 6.6m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 310

Prepared by:gms g {Brent Council) on @ jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NWS 0BH
Reporter: '

Report 107

Recorded: 29 Feb 2024 01:07
Uploaded: 29 Feb 2024 01:08
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 6.6m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 311

Prepared by jEmmmemg (Srent Councli) en 9 jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter: :

Report 106

Recorded: 24 Feb 2024 01:12
Uploaded: 24 Feb 2024 01:13
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 4 hours

Intensity; S

GPS Accuracy: 6.7m

Additional evidence

Comments

[ am unable to sleep,

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 312

Prepared by: s, {Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:0¢




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: - :

Report 105

Recorded: 18 Feb 2024 02:15
Uploaded: 18 Feb 2024 02:15
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 5 hours

intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 6.7m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 313

Prepared by pEmpsmEEs (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter; .

Report 104

Recorded: 17 Feb 2024 01:30
Uploaded: 18 Feb 2024 02:13
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 4 hours

Intensity: 9

GPS Accuracy; 6.7m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep as the music is very loud.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 314

Prepared by s ® (8rent Council} oh 9 Jun 2025 12:00

12




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH

Reporter:

Report 103

Recorded: 12 Feb 2024 00:22
Uploaded: 12 Feb 2024 00:22
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 6.6m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 315

Preparad by EEgpsmEE (8rent Councif) on 9 jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: -

Report 102

Recorded: 11 Feb 2024 02:11
Uploaded: 11 Feb 2024 02:12
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 6.7m

Additional evidence

Comments

I'm am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 316

Prepared by:pammmesmme (Brent Council) ery 9 jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: .

Report 101

Recorded: 4 Feh 2024 23:51
Uploaded: 4 Feb 2024 23:51
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 3 hours
Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 10.3m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep due to loud music

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 317

Prepared by: g (Brent Councll) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbhury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: i

Report 100

Recorded: 10 Dec 2023 23:31
Uploaded: 10 Dec 2023 23:32
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 5m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep due to live music

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 318

Prepared bygms g (Brent Council) en 9 Jun 2625 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: o

Report 99

Recorded: 29 Oct 2023 01:50
Uploaded: 29 Oct 2023 01:50
Source: Live music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 12.5m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 319

Prepared by g (Brent Council} on 9 Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: i i

Report 98

Recorded: 15 Oct 2023 23:44
Uploaded: 15 Oct 2023 23:45
Source: Commercial music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 8.5m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 320

Prepared by:|gms g (Brent Council} on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NWS 0BH
Reporter: .

Report 97

Recorded: 31 Jul 2023 00:01
Uploaded: 31 jul 2023 00:02
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedrocom
Duration: 2 hours
Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 3.5m

Additional evidence

Comments

I can't sleep.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 321

Prepared by pgssmmsmy (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: ]

Report 96

Recorded: 29 jul 2023 02:06
Uploaded: 29 Jul 2023 02:06
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.6m

Additional evidence

Comments

I can’t sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 322

Prepared by: g (Brent Council} on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbhury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter:

Report 95

Recorded: 20 Jul 2023 01:10
Uploaded: 20 jul 2023 01:12
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 9

GPS Accuracy: 4.6m

Additional evidence

Comments

{ can't sleep. The music is very loud. It is 1am in the morning. | have called to put the music
lower but it's still loud.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 323

Prepared by pmpEmEasg (Brent Councll} on 8 Jun 2025 12:00

21




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH

Repaorter: e
Report 94

Recorded: 17 Jul 2023 00:48
Uploaded: 17 jul 2023 00:49
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 3.5m

Additional evidence

Comments

| can't sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Prepared by EEmEEEEEE (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12;00

Page 324

22




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH

Reporter: e
Report 93

Recorded: 14 Jul 2023 23:34
Uploaded: 14 ful 2023 23:35
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 4.6m

Additional evidence

Comments

I can’t sleep

Phote and video

N/A

internal report notes

N/A

Prepared by:pEmmgEEEEs (Brent Councily an 9 Jun 2025 12:00

Page 325

23




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH

Reporter:

Report 92

Recorded: 6 Jul 2023 22:42
Uploaded: 6 Jul 2023 22:43
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours
intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 4.3m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 326

Prepared by:pigsssemay {Brent Council) on 9 jun 2625 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: ' e

Report 91

Recorded: 28 Jun 2023 23:14
Uploaded: 28 jun 2023 23:15
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.6m

Additional evidence

Comments

| cant sleep.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 327

Prepared by:gEmpemegs (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9S OBH
Reporter: : -

Report 90

Recorded: 19 Jun 2023 23:11
Uploaded: 19 jun 2023 23:11
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 3.5m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 328

Prepared hy:gzmsmmmemy (Brent Council} on 9 Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, tondon , NW9 OBH
Reporter:

Report 89

Recorded: 18 Jun 2023 23:27
Uploaded: 18 jun 2023 23:27
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 3.5m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 329

Prepared by g (Brent Council) an 9 Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbhury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter: E

Report 88

Recorded: 17 jun 2023 00:03
Uploaded: 17 jun 2023 00:03
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 3.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 330

Prepared by S gz (Brent Council) on 8 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: é:

Report 87

Recorded: 14 May 2023 23:55
Uploaded: 14 May 2023 23:56
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 1 hour

intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.6m

Additional evidence

Comments

| can't sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 331

Prepared by:pumggEsseay (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 O0BH
Reporter:

Report 86

Recorded: 7 May 2023 00:36
Uploaded: 7 May 2023 00:36
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour

Intensity: 9

GPS Accuracy: 4.6m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 332

Prepared by [ (Brent Councit) on 9 jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: .

Report 85

Recorded: 30 Apr 2023 23:58
Uploaded: 30 Apr 2023 23:59
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 3.5m

Additional evidence

Comments

j unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 333

Prepared by S (Srent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NWS 0BH

Reporter:

Report 84

Recorded: 12 Feb 2023 00:53
Uploaded: 12 Feb 2023 00:54
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 3.5m

Additional evidence

Comments

| can’t sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 334

Prepared by Emmmmmmen (Brent Counclf) on 9 jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NWS 0BH
Reporter:

Report 83

Recorded: 30 Jan 2023 23:44
Uploaded: 30 jan 2023 23:44
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 3.5m

Additional evidence

Comments

| can’t sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 335

Prepared by jiEEmmmmey (Brent Council} on 8 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH

Reporter:
Report 82

Recorded: 8 Jan 2023 00:35
Uploaded: 8 Jan 2023 00:36
Source: Domaestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 3.5m

Additional evidence

Comments

| can sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Prapared by:pEsmsmeses (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00

Page 336

34




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH

Reportern

Report 81

Recorded: 2 ]an 2023 23:38
Uploaded: 2 Jan 2023 23:39
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 30 minutes
Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 4.6m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Prepared by:Esmpemsms (Brent Councll) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00

Page 337

35




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter: = : '

Report 80

Recorded: 2 Jan 2023 23:19
Uploaded: 2jan 2023 23:19
Source: Domestic music
LLocation: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour 30 minutes
Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 4.6m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 338

Prepared by:jm g (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NWS OBH

Reporter:

Report 79

Recorded: 1Jan 2023 03:36
Uploaded: 1jan 2023 03:36
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour 30 minutes
Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 3.5m

Additional evidence

Comments

| can sleep due to the loud music!

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 339

Prepared by: e (Brent Councll) an @ Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter: 5

Report 78

Recorded: 4 Dec 2022 00:21
Uploaded: 4 Dec 2022 00:22
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 3.5m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 340

Preparad by jjsssmmess (Brent Council} on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge

, 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH

Repaorter:

Report 77

Recorded: 2 Dec 2022 23:32
Uploaded: 2 Dec 2022 23:34
Source: Domaestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

} am unable to sleep.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Prepared by:pagEmmmmms (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00

Page 341

39




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH

Reporter: 1'

Report 76

Recorded: 3 Sep 2022 01:06
Uploaded: 3 Sep 2022 01:06
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 7.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Prepared by:psimmms (Brent Council) on & Jun 2025 12:00

Page 342

40




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH

Reporter:

Report 75

Recorded: 27 Aug 2022 22:10
Uploaded: 27 Aug 2022 22:11
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 1 hour 30 minutes
Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 343

Prepared by:EEsgEgags (Brent Councll) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00

41




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter:

Report 74

Recorded: 26 Aug 2022 00:25
Uploaded: 26 Aug 2022 00:25
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 7.4m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 344

Praepared by {Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12;00
p V-




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NWS OBH
Reporter: s . -

Report 73

Recorded: 22 Aug 2022 22:34
Uploaded: 22 Aug 2022 22:34
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 1 hour

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Camments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 345

Prepared by g (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: 5:

Report 72

Recorded: 22 Aug 2022 00:50
Uploaded: 22 Aug 2022 00:51
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 1 hour

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 7.2m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 346

Prepared by:Egipassmm {Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: - T

Report 71

Recorded: 20 Aug 2022 01:34
Uploaded: 20 Aug 2022 01:34
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 6.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

[ am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 347

Prepared by:EEmgesEEy (Brent Councif) on 9 jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: ' _ ]

Report 70

Recorded: 19 Aug 2022 00:27
Uploaded: 19 Aug 2022 00:28
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 9

GPS Accuracy: 4.7m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 348

Prepared by |Emmmsspmesy (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingshury Road, London , NWS 0BH
Reporter: :

Report 69

Recorded: 14 Aug 2022 23:20
Uploaded: 14 Aug 2022 23:21
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 9

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep due to the loud music. The music has been loud all weelk until 2:00am.

Photo and video

N/A
Internal report notes

N/A

Page 349

Prepared by EEzmmmgee (Brent Council) on 9 jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter;

Report 68

Recorded: 11 Jul 2022 22:46
Uploaded: 11 jul 2022 22:46
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 5.3m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 350

Prepared by pEEsmmssm (Brent Council) on 9 Jup 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: ? .

Report 67

Recorded: 8 Jul 2022 23:53
Uploaded: 8 Jul 2022 23:53
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour
intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 6.4m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 351

Prepared by:psememmsm (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: =

Report 66

Recorded: 6 Jul 2022 23:30
Uploaded: 6 Jul 2022 23:30
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours
Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 6.2m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 352

Prepared by:jgmmeesmes (Brent Council) on 9 jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter: -

Report 65

Recorded: 3jul 2022 01:22
Uploaded: 3Jjul 2022 01:23
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours
Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 5.4m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 353

Prepared by:EggEEEmms {Brent Councit) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter:

Report 64

Recorded: 21 Jun 2022 22:23
Uploaded: 21 Jun 2022 22:24
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour 30 minutes
intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 354

Prepared by g (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00

52




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter: S

Report 63

Recorded: 18 jun 2022 01:09
Uploaded: 18 jun 2022 01:10
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 6.7m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 355

Prepared by ggEmmeg (Rrent Council) on ¢ Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NWS 0BH
Reporter: T

Report 62

Recorded: 16 Jun 2022 00:54
Uploaded: 16 Jun 2022 00:54
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 6.1m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

[nternal report notes

N/A

Page 356

Prepared by pggessmms (Brent Councll) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: : L

Report 61

Recorded: 14 jun 2022 01:29
Uploaded: 14 jun 2022 01:30
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 6m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 357

Prepared by:pgEmmmmmge (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingshury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter:

Report 60

Recorded: 5un 2022 01:58
Uploaded: 5 Jjun 2022 01:59
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour

Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 6.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 358

Prepared by EEmmmemmm (Brent Councll) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, L.ondon , NWS OBH

Reporter:

Report 59

Recorded: 4 Jun 2022 01:25
Uploaded: 4 jun 2022 01:26
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours
Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 6.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Prepared by :gEEEREgEEsg (Brent Council) on 8 Jun 2025 12:00

Page 359

57



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: e

Report 58

Recorded: 29 May 2022 01:26
Uploaded: 29 May 2022 01:26
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 3 hours

intensity: 9

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 360

Prepared by pEEmmmesss (Brent Councit) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH

Reporter: 5 .

Report 57

Recorded: 27 May 2022 23:32
Uploaded: 27 May 2022 23:33
Source: Domestic music
lLocation: Bedroom

Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 6.2m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 361

Prepared by ;s (Brent Counci) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter:

Report 56

Recorded: 23 May 2022 01:08
Uploaded: 23 May 2022 01:09
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 6.4m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 362

Frepared by:gemmeemm (Drent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reparter: e P

Report b5

Recorded: 21 May 2022 23:25
Uploaded: 21 May 2022 23:25
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 9

GPS Accuracy: 4.7m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 363

Prepared by (Brent Council} an 9 Jun 2025 12;00
P -




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter:

Report 54

Recorded: 21 May 2022 02:12
Uploaded: 21 May 2022 02:13
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 4.7m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable and | sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 364

Prepared by Epmeesme (Drent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: e

Report 53

Recorded: 7 May 2022 01:13
Uploaded: 7 May 2022 01:14
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 30 minutes
ntensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 4.7m

Additional evidence

Comments

The music has become louder and is preventing me from sleeping.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 365

Prepared by} {Brent Council) en % Jun 2025 12:0¢
i )




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: e

Report 52

Recorded: 7 May 2022 00:44
Uploaded: 7 May 2022 00:45
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 4,7m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am still unable to sleep due to the loud music, evening after requesting for the music to be put
lower. The music is very loud.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 366

Prepared by:pmemmmm (Brent Councll} on 9 jun 2025 12:00 64




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingshury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: S

Report 51

Recorded: 6 May 2022 22:35
Uploaded: 6 May 2022 22:36
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour 30 minutes
Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

| can't sleep and the music has been the loudest it’s ever been

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 367

Prepared by EEEmeaEg (Brent Coundii) on @ Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter: -

Report 50

Recorded: 6 May 2022 00:31
Uploaded: 6 May 2022 00:31
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 6.5m

Additional evidence

Comiments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 368

Frepared by gmmems {Brent Council} an 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter:

Report 49

Recorded: 5 May 2022 00:51
Uploaded: 5 May 2022 00:52
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.7m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable and to sleep. There has been loud music emanating from the premises everyday
this week.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 369

Prepared by: g (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter;

Report 48

Recorded: 2 May 2022 23:39
Uploaded: 2 May 2022 23:40
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 5.6m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 370

Prepared by (Brent Councily an 9 Jun 2025 12:00
g ]




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: =

Report 47

Recorded: 30 Apr 2022 01:18
Uploaded: 30 Apr 2022 01:18
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 4.7m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 371

Prepared by EEgEEFEEs (Brent Council) on 9 jun 2625 12:06




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: -

Report 46

Recorded: 7 Mar 2022 01:26
Uploaded: 7 Mar 2022 01:28
Source: Domaestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

The loud music is preventing me from sleeping. Music has been playing over the last 8 days
until 2am,

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 372

Prepared by:E@smampasme (Brent Councll) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00

Fi




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: .

Report 45

Recorded: 4 Mar 2022 22:48
Uploaded: 4 Mar 2022 22:49
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 4.5m

Additional evidence

Comments

The music is incredibly loud preventing me and my elderly parents from sleeping. The music
has been unacceptably loud for 7 continuous days.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 373

Prepared by:pammpmesmay (Brent Councll) on 9 Jun 2025 12:06




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingshury Road, Landon , NW9 0BH
Reporter:

Report 44

Recorded: 4 Mar 2022 01:20
Uploaded: 4 Mar 2022 01:21
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 5.5m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep due to the loud music,

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 374

Prepared by g g {Brent Councif) on 9 Jup 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NWS 0BH
Reporter: -

Report 43

Recorded: 2 Mar 2022 00:59
Uploaded: 2 Mar 2022 00:59
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 3 hours

intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 4.7m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep due to the loud music emanating from the premises.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 375

Prepared by B (Brent Council) on © jun 2025 12:00

73




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter:

Report 42

Recorded: 28 Feb 2022 00:36
Uploaded: 28 Feb 2022 00:37
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am and my elderly parents are unable to sleep due to the loud music emanating from the
premises,

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 376

Prepared by:[BiEsgems (Brent Councll) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: . e

Report 41

Recorded: 27 Feb 2022 01:46
Uploaded: 27 Feb 2022 01:46
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

Loud music from the premises is preventing me from sleeping.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 377

Prepared by:jpzgmmes (Brent Council} on 9 Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH

Reporter:

Report 40

Recorded: 20 Feb 2022 00:43
Uploaded: 20 Feb 2022 00:44
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

The music is very loud and the loudest it's has ever been. Me and my elderly parents are unable
to sleep.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 378

Prepared by Emsmmemmmmn {Brent Council) on 9 jun 2025 12:00 76




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London
Reporter: e

, NW9 OBH

Report 39

Recorded: 7 Feb 2022 00:44
Uploaded: 7 Feb 2022 00:45
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

| can’t sleep due to the loud music emanating from the premises.,

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 379

Prepared by EegggEsgg (Srent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00

77




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter:

Report 38

Recorded: 6 Feb 2022 00:47
Uploaded: 6 Feb 2022 00:47
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours
Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 8.1m

Additional evidence

Comments

I'm unable to sleep due to the loud music.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 380

Prepared by:w {Brent Council} on % jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: e e

Report 37

Recorded: 30 Jan 2022 02:31
Uploaded: 30 Jan 2022 02:32
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep due to the loud music emanating from the premises.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 381

Prepared by:pggsssemm (Brent Councll) en 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: _ ;;Z

Report 36

Recorded: 24 Jan 2022 00:38
Uploaded: 24 Jan 2022 00:39
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep due to the loud music emanating from the premises.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 382

Prepared by gEgmspmms (Brent Councit) en 9 Jun 2025 12:06



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH

Reporter:

Report 35

Recorded: 23 ]an 2022 00:56
Uploaded: 23 Jan 2022 00:57
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep along with my elderly parents.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 383

Prepared by gy (Brent Councll) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00

a1




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter: -

Report 34

Recorded: 22 Dec 2021 00:57
Uploaded: 22 Dec 2021 00:58
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unabie to sleep due to the loud music emanating from the premises.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 384

Prepared by:pjpgmmes (Drent Council) an 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingshury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: g

Report 33

Recorded: 21 Dec 2021 00:34
Uploaded: 21 Dec 2021 00:35
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

Loud music emanating from the premises preventing me from sleeping.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 385

Prepared by:pmmpmmem (Brent Council} on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingshury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: Lo

Report 32

Recorded: 17 Dec 2021 23:18
Uploaded: 17 Dec 2021 23:19
Source: Bomestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

The music has increased and preventing me and my elderly parents from sleeping,

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 386

Prepared by:Egepsesmsen (Brent Council} on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingshury Road, London , NW9 0BH

Reporter: -

Report 31

Recorded: 16 Dec 2021 23:34
Uploaded: 16 Dec 2021 23:35
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.6m

Additional evidence

Comments

Loud music emanating from premises preventing me from sleeping

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 387

Prepared by:pgsssmmmEs (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:0G

a5




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingshury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter: . s

Report 30

Recorded: 14 Dec 2021 00:14
Uploaded: 14 Dec 2021 00:15
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 4.3m

Additional evidence

Comments

Loud music is emanating from the premises and preventing me from sleeping. it is louder now
that it was over the last two days.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 388

Prepared by e (Brent Councll} on 9 jun 2025 12:00 86




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: :

Report 29

Recorded: 12 Dec 2021 00:32
Uploaded: 12 Dec 2021 00:33
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.9m

Additional evidence

Comments

My and elderly parents are unable to sleep due to the loud music

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 389

Prepared by:EEEmEgEgE (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: -- .

Report 28

Recorded: 11 Dec 2021 00:00
Uploaded: 11 Dec 2021 00:02
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 3 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4. 7m

Additional evidence

Comments

The noise is preventing me from sleeping

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 390

Preparad by e (Brent Council} en $ Jun 2025 $2:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: L

Report 27

Recorded: 26 Sep 2021 01:15
Uploaded: 26 Sep 2021 01:16
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 30 minutes
intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

The music has significantly increased to unprecedented levels which has now woken up my
elderly and critically ill parents and | am still unable to sleep.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 391

Prepaved by:piFgmmmmmy {Brent Council} on ¢ fun 2025 12:00

89




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingshury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter: f

Report 26

Recorded: 26 Sep 2021 00:23
Uploaded: 26 Sep 2021 00:23
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 1 hour 30 minutes
Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.6m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 392

Prepared by: e (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00

90



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter:

Report 25

Recorded: 24 Sep 2021 21:45
Uploaded: 24 Sep 2021 21:46
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 30 minutes
Intensity: 9

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep,

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 393

Prapared by EEEmmemgey (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: = :

Report 24

Recorded: 22 Sep 2021 01:18
Uploaded: 22 Sep 2021 01:19
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 1 hour 20 minutes
Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 394

Prepared by g (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address;Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter: i

Report 23

Recorded: 20 Sep 2021 00:36
Uploaded: 20 Sep 2021 00:37
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 35 minutes
Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep due to the loud music emanating from the premises.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 395

Prepared by :pEmmmemgs (Brent Council} on 9 Jun 2625 12:00

83




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter:

Report 22

Recorded: 19 Sep 2021 00:18
Uploaded: 19 Sep 2021 00:19
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 20 minutes
Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep due to the foud music emanating from the premises.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 396

Prepared by fipmysmsemm (Drent Councll) on 9 jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter: e =

Report 21

Recorded: 13 Sep 2021 01:10
Uploaded: 13 Sep 2021 01:11
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour 10 minutes
Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

The had further gotten louder and still preventing me from sleeping.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 397

Prepared by:ppgsssemem (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:T

Reporter:

igerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH

Report 20

Recorded: 13 Sep 2021 00:46
Uploaded: 13 Sep 2021 00:48
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 45 minutes
Intensity: 9

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

The music remains extremely loud preventing me from sleeping. The music is emanating from

the garden area of the premises and includes large amount of patrons singing along to the

music.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Prepared by g (Brent Councit) en 9 Jun 2025 12:00

Page 398

96




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9S 0BH
Reporter: L

Report 19

Recorded: 13 Sep 2021 00:07
Uploaded: 13 Sep 2021 00:08
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 10 minutes
Intensity: 9

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

The music has gotten much louder and is further preventing me from sleeping and had also
woken up my elderly parents,

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 399

Prepared by:jgEsmme (Brent Councll} on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: . -

Report 18

Recorded: 12 Sep 2021 23:41
Uploaded: 12 Sep 2021 23:42
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 23 hours 40 minutes
intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep due to the loud music emanating from the premises.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 400

Prepared by paamsmmemms (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter:

Report 17

Recorded: 12 Sep 2021 00:23
Uploaded: 12 Sep 2021 00:24
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 25 minutes
Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 4.9m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep due to the loud music emanating from the premises.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 401

Prepared by: e (8rent Council) on 9 Jun 2625 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter: .

Report 16

Recorded: 6 Sep 2021 02:25
Uploaded: 6 Sep 2021 02:26
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 2 hours 25 minutes
Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am still unable to sleep due to the loud music.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 402

Prepared by:jgipemmemn (Brent Councll) on 9 Jup 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter:

Report 15

Recorded: 6 Sep 2021 01:30
Uploaded: 6 Sep 2021 01:31
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour 30 minutes
Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am woken up from sleep by the loud music emanating from the premises. | have tried to call

several times to ask them to put the music lower but they have ignored me,

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 403

Prepared by:jgugsprmgems (Brent Council) en 9 Jun 2025 12:00

10l




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: = =

Report 14

Recorded: 5 Sep 2021 02:39
Uploaded: 5 Sep 2021 02:40
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 2 hours 40 minutes
Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 4.7m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am still unable to sleep and the parents have woken up due to the loud music.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 404

Prepared by g (Brent Council) en 9 jun 2625 12:00 102




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingshury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: i

Report 13

Recorded: 5 Sep 2021 02:31
Uploaded: 5 Sep 2021 02:32
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 2 hours 30 minutes
Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 4.5m

Additional evidence

Comments

{ am still unable to sleep due to the very loud music.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 405

Prepared by B (Brent Councll} on 8 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH

Reporter: 1
Report 12

Recorded: 5 Sep 2021 0057
Uploaded: 5 Sep 2021 00:58
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 55 minutes
Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

The music is increasingly getting louder and is preventing me from sleeping. | have tried to call

the premises to ask to turn the music down but they haven’t.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Prepared by e (Srent Council) on 9 jun 2025 12:00

Page 406

104




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NWS OBH

Reporter: ' =
Report 11

Recorded: 5 Sep 2021 00:51
Uploaded: 5 Sep 2021 00:51
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 50 minutes
Intensity: 8

GPS Accuracy: 5.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Prepared by EpEmmsmms (Brent Councll} on @ Jun 2025 12:00

Page 407

105




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter;

Report 10

Recorded: 2 Sep 2021 23:55
Uploaded: 2 Sep 2021 23:56
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 23 hours 55 minutes
Intensity: 10

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

The music has gotten much louder and is woken up my elderly parents and | am still unable to
sleep.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 408

Prepared by [Esmmmmmmm (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00 106




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: e

Report 9

Recorded: 2 Sep 2021 23:48
Uploaded: 2 Sep 2021 23:49
Source: Domaestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 23 hours 50 minutes
Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 409

Prepared by i {Orent Council) cn 9 jun 2025 12:00



Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH

Reporter:

Report 8

Recorded: 2 Sep 2021 22:23
Uploaded: 2 Sep 2021 22:24
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 22 hours 25 minutes
Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

I am unable to sleep.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 410

Prepared by @ {Brert Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00 108




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingshury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter:

Report 7

Recorded: 1 Sep 2021 01:12
Uploaded: 1 Sep 2021 01:13
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 1 hour 15 minutes
Intensity: 9

GPS Accuracy: 4.7m

Additional evidence

Comments

Loud music still emanating from the premises at 01:00 am which is causing me to unable to
sleep

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 411

Prepared by pmmers (Brent Councll} on 8 Jun 2025 12:00

109




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: :

Report 6

Recorded: 1 Sep 2021 00:46
Uploaded: 1 Sep 2021 00:46
Source: Dormestic music
Location: Bathroom
Duration: 45 minutes
Intensity: 9

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

The music from the premises can heard from other parts of the house including the bathroom.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 412

Prepared by s g (Brent Council) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00 110




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge

, 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH

Reporter:

Report 5

Recorded: 1 Sep 2021 00:44
Uploaded: 1 Sep 2021 00:45
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 45 minutes
Intensity: 9

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep due to the loud music emanating from the premises.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Prepared by jmsmmmmy (Srent Council) on @ Jun 2025 12:00

Page 413

111




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: i

Report 4

Recorded: 25 Aug 2021 00:29
Uploaded: 25 Aug 2021 00:30
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 25 minutes
Intensity: 6

GPS Accuracy: 4.6m

Additional evidence

Comments

| am unable to sleep due to the loud music emanating from the premises.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 414

Prepared byg 8 {Brent Council} on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 OBH
Reporter; E

Report 3

Recorded: 9 Aug 2021 00:49
Uploaded: 9 Aug 2021 00:51
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom
Duration: 2 hours

Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

Preventing me and my elderly parents from sleeping at midnight

Photo and video

N/A
Internal report notes

N/A

Page 415

Prepared by:pugmmmmmes (Brent Councl) on 9 Jun 2025 12:00




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH
Reporter: : :

Report 2

Recorded: 16 Apr 2021 23:22
Uploaded: 16 Apr 2021 23:23
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bedroom

Duration: 23 hours 25 minutes
Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.8m

Additional evidence

Comments

N/A

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 416

Prepared by:jgEmmmmesms (Brent Council) en 9 Jun 2025 12:00

114




Source address:Tigerbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NWS OBH

Reporter:

Report 1

Recorded: 12 Apr 2021 2359
Uploaded: 13 Apr 2021 00:02
Source: Domestic music
Location: Bathroom

Duration: 23 hours 55 minutes
Intensity: 7

GPS Accuracy: 4.3m

Additional evidence

Comments

The constant bass from the music is preventing me from sleeping.

Photo and video

N/A

Internal report notes

N/A

Page 417

Prepared by:pEmmsmes (Brent Councll} on 9 Jun 2025 12:00

115




Source address:Ti
Reporter:

erbay Shisha Lounge , 234 Kingsbury Road, London , NW9 0BH

Internal case notes

Comments

Page 418

Prepared by ppmmsmesess (Brent Councit) an 9 Jun 2025 12:00 116




Declaration

- - & confirm that this report and the recording | am submitting through The Noise
App are a true representation of the noise nuisance | have experienced.

Page 419

Prepared by:u {Brent Council) on 9 fun 202% 12:00 117




Page 420




Representations in objection

Page 421



This page is intentionally left blank



| object on the basis of the prevention of crime & disorder and prevention of public
nuisance. | am a local resident who has complained for over a decade on the loud noise
emanating from premises until the early hours of the morning and have been regularly
been woken up from the violent fights outside the premises from the patrons of the
shisha lounge. The shisha lounge intentionally creates a nightclub like atmosphere to
attract people, who then in turn engage in violence, criminality and anti-social
behaviour, which has a detrimental effect on the safety of local residents and
enjoyment of there premises. | am not surprised by the tragic death of a young man as |
always thought this was inevitable due to the atmosphere created and the management
regularly disregarding compliance with the licensing conditions on a range of issues. |
therefore, would support their license permanently suspended.

Public details not disclosed as the member of public has expressed fear of intimidation
and / or reprisal.

Page 423



This page is intentionally left blank



From: I

Date: Tue, 27 May 2025 at 18:29
Subject: Kingsbury Road murder Carlton Lounge/Tiger Bay
To: <cllr.harbi.farah@brent.gov.uk>

My name is ||| N o - | = not a constituent of yours but

am writing to you in your capacity as Cabinet Member for Safer Communities regarding
the above.

You have been quoted (I assume accurately) in the local press regarding the above as
saying (inter alia) that "we -l assume this refers to Brent councillors- are working with
residents,local partners and the police to ensure everyone feels safe and supported".

Notwithstanding that | was astonished to learn that a police application forimmediate
revocation of the premises licence -something that on the evidence presented should
have been automatic- was refused by your colleagues on the licensing sub-committee
last Friday.

This follows almost exactly a year ago a similarly perverse decision regarding the Lodge
premises in Roe Green Park (owned by the council) at which | gave evidence when the
licensee was given "carte blanche" by the committee to carry on his

delinquent behaviour until the police obtained some months later a closure order from

the magistrates at Willesden.

You should also be made aware that two weeks after that hearing one of the committee
members (Diana Collymore) who had dominated the hearing racially abused a council
employee leading to a finding of misconduct against her.

May | invite you to reconcile your suggestion of support for residents with the continuing
succession of irrational decisions by this committee who seem fuelled by an anti-police
agenda.

Public details not disclosed as the member of public has expressed fear of intimidation
and / or reprisal.

Page 425



This page is intentionally left blank



Subject: Urgent request to close down unsafe venue following fatal incident

Dear Brent Council,

I am writing to express my deep concern regarding a recent tragic incident at a local
lounge within your borough, where a young man was murdered due to the venue’s gross
negligence and complete failure to maintain public safety.

The establishment in question displayed a disturbing lack of control and responsibility
on the night of the incidentally. Despite clear signs of escalating violence, staff did not
contact the police when a fight broke out. Instead, they chose to eject all customers
onto the street, further escalating tensions. It has also come to light that no proper
security checks were conducted—individuals were able to enter the premises with
knives. This shocking lapse in basic safety protocols directly contributed to the fatal
outcome.

This venue has shown a reckless disregard for the wellbeing of its customers, and in
doing so, has created a serious public safety risk. | strongly urge the council to take
immediate action to investigate this establishment and begin proceedings to revoke its
license and permanently close it down.

No family should have to suffer such a loss due to the negligence of a business that
prioritizes profit over people’s lives. Please take swift and decisive action.

Sincerely,

Rep
03

Public details not disclosed as the member of public has expressed fear of intimidation
and / or reprisal.

Page 427



This page is intentionally left blank



Subject: Urgent request to close down unsafe venue following fatal incident

Dear Brent Council,

I am writing to express my deep concern regarding a recent tragic incident at a local
lounge within your borough, where a young man was murdered due to the venue’s gross
negligence and complete failure to maintain public safety.

The establishment in question displayed a disturbing lack of control and responsibility
on the night of the incidentally. Despite clear signs of escalating violence, staff did not
contact the police when a fight broke out. Instead, they chose to eject all customers
onto the street, further escalating tensions. It has also come to light that no proper
security checks were conducted—individuals were able to enter the premises with
knives. This shocking lapse in basic safety protocols directly contributed to the fatal
outcome.

This venue has shown a reckless disregard for the wellbeing of its customers, and in
doing so, has created a serious public safety risk. | strongly urge the council to take
immediate action to investigate this establishment and begin proceedings to revoke its
license and permanently close it down.

No family should have to suffer such a loss due to the negligence of a business that
prioritizes profit over people’s lives. Please take swift and decisive action.

Sincerely,

Rep
05

Public details not disclosed as the member of public has expressed fear of intimidation
and / or reprisal.

Page 429



This page is intentionally left blank



| object on the grounds of Prevention of Crime & Disorder, Prevention of Public Nuisance
and Public Safety. There has been persistent crime and anti-social behaviour in the
early hours from the patrons of this premises that has severely impacted the peaceful
enjoyment of homes of nearby residents and poses an increased risks of danger to the
safety of our local community. In addition, there have been weekly loud music until the
early hours which has been occurring since 2013 that has prevented me from sleeping
and the peaceful enjoyment of my home. Also, | am now fearful for my personal safety

due to the |||} I to v home and the recent murder.

Public details not disclosed as the member of public has expressed fear of intimidation
and / or reprisal.

Page 431



This page is intentionally left blank



rrom: I

Sent: 03 June 2025 23:07

To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>

Subject: Urgent Call for Licence Revocation — Tiger Bay (Carlton Lounge) Incident on
May 18th, 2025

Dear Brent Council Licensing Team,

I am writing with deep heartbreak, fury, and disbelief following the horrific fatal stabbing
that took place outside Tiger Bay (Carlton Lounge) on May 18th, 2025. A young man’s life
was stolen in the most brutal and preventable way, and it should never have happened.
This wasn’t just a tragic incident, it was pure negligence, and it was foreseeable. The
blood of that young man is on the hands of those who stood by and did nothing.

After reading the police’s summary and urgent request for an expedited licence review, |
am appalled, though sadly not surprised, by the sheer level of recklessness and
lawlessness that was allowed to continue unchecked at this venue.

How was it possible that a man could walk into a licensed premises with a knife, clearly
visible on CCTV at 2am, and nothing was done? Where were the security checks? What
were the staff doing? And worse still, why did nobody call the police or emergency
services while violence unfolded and a life was ending right outside their doors?

The staff not only failed to act, they lied. Body-worn footage from SID officers shows
them deliberately denying that a fight even started inside the premises. This is not just
negligence, it’s a deliberate cover-up. One that suggests complicity, or at best, a
shocking disregard for truth and justice.

There are reports that a customer warned staff that a knife had been pulled out inside,
and still, no action. No attempt to intervene. No call for help. Just silence and
cowardice.

For months, maybe even years, the community has raised concerns about Tiger Bay —

constant noise, disorder, antisocial behaviour. It’s not just a public nuisance, it’s been a
danger to everyone who lives near it or walks pastit. And now, after countless warnings
and ignored complaints, a young man is dead.

What more has to happen for this venue to be shut down?

Tiger Bay has shown, time and again, that it cannot and will not operate responsibly. Itis
a threat to public safety. This latest tragedy is not some random, isolated act of
violence, itis the direct result of a long pattern of mismanagement, dishonesty, and
outright negligence.

Page 433



I am begging the Council, do not let this slide. Do not allow this place to reopen and
pretend nothing happened. A family has lost their son. A life has been lost. If Tiger Bay is
allowed to continue operating, it sends a clear and devastating message that the safety
of our community means nothing, and that lives like his are disposable.

| urge you to take immediate and decisive action at the full review hearing. At the very
least, this licence must be suspended, if not permanently revoked. This venue has no
place in Brent.

Please confirm how members of the public can formally submit comments or attend
the hearing. We deserve answers. And that young man’s life deserves justice.

Sincerely,

Public details not disclosed as the member of public has expressed fear of intimidation
and / or reprisal.

Page 434



From: I

Sent: 22 May 2025 16:56
To: prslicensing@brent.gov.uk <prslicensing@brent.gov.uk>;

customer.services@brent.gov.uk <customer.services@brent.gov.uk>;
chief.executive@brent.gov.uk <chief.executive@brent.gov.uk>; GARDINER, Barry
<barry.gardiner.mp@parliament.uk>

Subject: Urgent Request to Close Down Unsafe Venue Following Fatal Incident

Dear Brent Council,

I am writing to express my deep concern regarding a recent tragic incident at a local
lounge within your borough, where a young man was murdered due to the venue’s gross
negligence and complete failure to maintain public safety.

The establishment in question displayed a disturbing lack of control and responsibility
on the night of the incident. Despite clear sighs of escalating violence, staff did not
contact the police when a fight broke out. Instead, they chose to eject all customers
onto the street, further escalating tensions. It has also come to light that no proper
security checks were conducted—individuals were able to enter the premises with
knives. This shocking lapse in basic safety protocols directly contributed to the fatal
outcome.

This venue has shown a reckless disregard for the wellbeing of its customers, and in
doing so, has created a serious public safety risk. | strongly urge the council to take
immediate action to investigate this establishment and begin proceedings to revoke its
license and permanently close it down.

No family should have to suffer such a loss due to the negligence of a business that
prioritizes profit over people’s lives. Please take swift and decisive action.

Sincerely,

Public details not disclosed as the member of public has expressed fear of intimidation
and / or reprisal.

Page 435



This page is intentionally left blank



From: I

Sent: 05 June 2025 12:28

To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>

Cc: Wright, Kim <Kim.Wright@brent.gov.uk>; Kelcher, Councillor Matt
<Cllr.Matt.Kelcher@brent.gov.uk>; Glover, David <David.Glover@brent.gov.uk>;
dawn.butler.mp@parliament.uk; Bob Blackman <bob.blackman.mp@parliament.uk>
Subject: Subject: Urgent Public Safety Concerns and Potential Legal Liability — Premises
Licence for Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay)

To: Regulatory Services, Licensing Authority, Chief Executive — London Borough of Brent
Cc: Head of Planning Department

Dear Sir/Madam, Date. 05/06/2025

Re: Serious and Ongoing Public Safety Hazards Arising from Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay),
236 Kingsbury Road, NW9 - Request for Formal Response and Immediate Enforcement
Action

| write to express my grave concerns regarding the continuing public safety risks posed
by the premises known as Carlton Lounge (also trading as "Tiger Bay") located at

234 Kingsbury Road, NW9. | urge the Council to give urgent and careful consideration to
these matters prior to any decision being taken regarding the renewal, variation, or
continuation of the venue’s premises licence.

| formally request a written response to the following question, which relates directly to
foreseeable legal liability:

In the event of another fire or arson incident at Carlton Lounge, particularly one
involving the wooden smoking structure constructed adjacent to my property boundary
(refer to attached Photos 15, 16, 17, and 21), who will bear legal and financial
responsibility for any resulting damage to my premises?

This is not a theoretical concern. On 17 June 2020, | wrote to the Council warning
explicitly of the severe fire risks associated with the adjacent tyre yard and surrounding
structures and posed the same question concerning liability. | received no reply. On 22
June 2020, a mere five days later, an arson attack occurred, destroying a substantial
part of my property (see Photos 18 and 19). This was not only foreseeable—it was
preventable had appropriate action been taken.

The risks remain active and unresolved. | draw your attention to the following breaches
and ongoing dangers:

1. Unlawful Obstruction of Emergency Access

Page 437



Prior to the June 2020 fire, Carlton Lounge unlawfully constructed an enclosed venue
(“Tiger Bay”) over its legal right-of-way to the rear car park (see Photos 1, 2, and 6). This
obstruction directly prevented fire service vehicles from accessing the rear of the
premises where the fire originated. Fire crews were forced to park on Kingsbury Road,
significantly delaying the emergency response and contributing to the extent of the
damage to my property.

Shockingly, this unlawful construction remains in place to this day and continues to
endanger life and property.

2. Ongoing Fire Hazards and Egress Violations

The shuttered access gates and Tiger Bay structure continue to block both emergency
ingress and egress routes to car park (see Photos 4, 6, and 8), thereby placing venue
patrons and neighbouring properties in danger. These conditions constitute a direct
breach of fire safety regulations, planning controls, and licensing conditions.

3. Repeated Obstruction of Emergency Services and Fatal Consequences

There have been several incidents, where emergency responders have been delayed or
obstructed due to persistent unauthorised use and blockage of Parcel M — a private
access road misused by the venue. These delays are a direct and continuing threat to
life and safety.

This persistent disregard for safety obligations constitutes a breach of statutory
duties under:

e The Licensing Act 2003;
o The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005; and

e Established principles of public law and negligence.

In light of the above, | hereby demand that the Council:

1. Issue aformal written response addressing liability in the event of a future fire-
related incident involving these ongoing hazards;

2. Confirm whether the Councilis prepared to assume legal and financial
responsibility for further damage or loss arising from its failure to enforce
compliance with planning, licensing, and fire safety legislation;

Page 438



3. Initiate immediate enforcement action to remove all unlawful and hazardous
structures from the premises and surrounding areas;

4. Suspend or revoke the premises licence with immediate effect, pending a full
independent risk assessment and evidence of full compliance with relevant
legislation.

The attached photographic evidence supports the seriousness and immediacy of the
risks posed.

I hereby reserve all legal rights and remedies, including the right to initiate proceedings
for damages, injunctive relief, and judicial review, should the Council fail to take prompt
and effective action. The London Borough of Brent will be held accountable for any
further harm, injury, or financial loss arising from continued regulatory inaction.

Yours faithfully,

Public details not disclosed as the member of public has expressed fear of intimidation
and / or reprisal.

Page 439



This page is intentionally left blank



Gas heater were stored
in smoking shelter

My Print shop bU|Id|ng No.18 |
was damaged in 22nd

" June 2022 smoking
shelter fire

_____

P <k M‘ MRS St

Page 441



This page is intentionally left blank



T el il LT

Doing Toilet. Nolla

Page 443



A SRR

Page 444



' Tiger Bay customer
Vomited in carpark

and staircase
No.11c

Page 445




This page is intentionally left blank



From: I

Sent: 03 June 2025 15:58
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Re: Murder at Tiger Bay Shisha

1. Video labelled ‘18th May CCTV -1 & 18th May CCTV -2’ which shows an individual
urinating, vomit on the floor and persons running to and from vehicles on the night of
the incident.

2. PDF labelled ‘pictures (1)’ - specifically relating to images 11a, 11b & 11c which show
avarious individuals defecating, urinating and vomiting.

3. PDF labelled ‘pictures (1)’ - specifically relating to images 18 which shows the
aftermath of a fire.

4. The video labelled “Video-2025-05-06-01-10” which shows a person running to and
away from the premises.

Public details not disclosed as the member of public has expressed fear of intimidation
and / or reprisal.

Page 447



This page is intentionally left blank



From:

Sent: 04 June 2025 21:16

To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>

Subject: Concerns about the Carlton Lounge and request for confidential

Cover Note: Request for Anonymity
Confidential June 2025

To: Brent Council Licensing Team
Brent Civic Centre

Engineers Way

Wembley

HA9 OFJ

Dear Licensing Team,

Subject: Request for Confidentiality — Representation Regarding Carlton Lounge
(Tiger Bay)

| am submitting the attached representation in support of the review of the premises licence
for Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay), 232-234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 0BH.

Due to the serious nature of the incidents associated with this venue and the fear of potential
retribution, I respectfully request that my personal details be withheld from the premises
licence holder and any other parties not directly involved in the licensing authority’s internal
process.

As a local resident, 1 am deeply concerned about the ongoing serious incidents linked to this
venue, including criminal activity, anti-social behaviour, and consistent late-night
disturbances. These have had a direct and damaging impact on the local community, creating
a heightened sense of fear and unease among residents. There have been multiple occasions
of violent disorder, noise nuisance, and other behaviours that clearly breach the licensing
objectives—particularly those relating to the prevention of crime and disorder and the
protection of public safety. The presence of this venue in its current state has significantly
deteriorated the quality of life for people living nearby.

The fact that people feel unsafe speaking out should be of grave concern and further supports
the need for urgent and decisive intervention.

| strongly urge Brent Council to consider revoking the premises licence or imposing stringent
new conditions that will prioritise the safety, peace, and wellbeing of the community.

| understand that under the Licensing Act 2003, representations usually need to be attributed
to named individuals. However, | ask that you exercise your discretion under your powers to
protect the identity of persons who may be at risk, and treat this representation with the
appropriate level of confidentiality.

| would appreciate written confirmation that my identity will be protected in this process.

Thank you for your consideration.

Page 449



Yours sincerely,
A Concerned Local Resident

Public details not disclosed as the member of public has expressed fear of intimidation
and / or reprisal.

Page 450



From:

Sent: 04 June 2025 21:15

To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tiger bay & Carlton lounge

Cover Note: Request for Anonymity
Confidential June 2025

To: Brent Council Licensing Team
Brent Civic Centre

Engineers Way

Wembley

HA9 OFJ

Dear Licensing Team,

Subject: Request for Confidentiality — Representation Regarding Carlton Lounge
(Tiger Bay)

| am submitting the attached representation in support of the review of the premises licence
for Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay), 232-234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 0BH.

Due to the serious nature of the incidents associated with this venue and the fear of potential
retribution, I respectfully request that my personal details be withheld from the premises
licence holder and any other parties not directly involved in the licensing authority’s internal
process.

As a local resident, 1 am deeply concerned about the ongoing serious incidents linked to this
venue, including criminal activity, anti-social behaviour, and consistent late-night
disturbances. These have had a direct and damaging impact on the local community, creating
a heightened sense of fear and unease among residents. There have been multiple occasions
of violent disorder, noise nuisance, and other behaviours that clearly breach the licensing
objectives—particularly those relating to the prevention of crime and disorder and the
protection of public safety. The presence of this venue in its current state has significantly
deteriorated the quality of life for people living nearby.

The fact that people feel unsafe speaking out should be of grave concern and further supports
the need for urgent and decisive intervention.

| strongly urge Brent Council to consider revoking the premises licence or imposing stringent
new conditions that will prioritise the safety, peace, and wellbeing of the community.

| understand that under the Licensing Act 2003, representations usually need to be attributed
to named individuals. However, | ask that you exercise your discretion under your powers to
protect the identity of persons who may be at risk, and treat this representation with the
appropriate level of confidentiality.

| would appreciate written confirmation that my identity will be protected in this process.

Thank you for your consideration.

Page 451



Yours sincerely,
A Concerned Local Resident

Public details not disclosed as the member of public has expressed fear of intimidation
and / or reprisal.

Page 452



From:

Sent: 04 June 2025 21:45

To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Concerned resident

Cover Note: Request for Anonymity
Confidential June 2025

To: Brent Council Licensing Team
Brent Civic Centre

Engineers Way

Wembley

HA9 OFJ

Dear Licensing Team,

Subject: Request for Confidentiality — Representation Regarding Carlton Lounge
(Tiger Bay)

| am submitting the attached representation in support of the review of the premises licence
for Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay), 232-234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 0BH.

Due to the serious nature of the incidents associated with this venue and the fear of potential
retribution, I respectfully request that my personal details be withheld from the premises
licence holder and any other parties not directly involved in the licensing authority’s internal
process.

As a local resident, 1 am deeply concerned about the ongoing serious incidents linked to this
venue, including criminal activity, anti-social behaviour, and consistent late-night
disturbances. These have had a direct and damaging impact on the local community, creating
a heightened sense of fear and unease among residents. There have been multiple occasions
of violent disorder, noise nuisance, and other behaviours that clearly breach the licensing
objectives—particularly those relating to the prevention of crime and disorder and the
protection of public safety. The presence of this venue in its current state has significantly
deteriorated the quality of life for people living nearby.

The fact that people feel unsafe speaking out should be of grave concern and further supports
the need for urgent and decisive intervention.

| strongly urge Brent Council to consider revoking the premises licence or imposing stringent
new conditions that will prioritise the safety, peace, and wellbeing of the community.

| understand that under the Licensing Act 2003, representations usually need to be attributed
to named individuals. However, | ask that you exercise your discretion under your powers to
protect the identity of persons who may be at risk, and treat this representation with the
appropriate level of confidentiality.

| would appreciate written confirmation that my identity will be protected in this process.

Thank you for your consideration.

Page 453



Yours sincerely,
A Concerned Local Resident

Public details not disclosed as the member of public has expressed fear of intimidation
and / or reprisal.

Page 454



rrom

Sent: 04 June 2025 22:23
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject:

To whom it may concern,

below is an exert that i found on a local facebook page that is being shared to the
council tomorrow .

Tiger bay / Carlton lounge have one of the worst people either running or looking after /
managing the business.

i have never been to a place where such violent behaviour is allowed, bullying and out
right NO concern for any issues that arise in the premises itself.

Its actually shocking how its been allowed to be open for so long, there has been
shooting (gun related violence) stabbings and so many GBH incidents that have taken
place outside the venue probably leading on from a problem that has been caused
inside the premises and the most recent a MURDER that could have been avoided if this
place was shut down a long time ago | write this as a person who has previously visited
the business and honestly . If this stays open, good luck to the Kingsbury/brent
community.

Kind Regards

A concerned civilian

Cover Note: Request for Anonymity
Confidential June 2025

To: Brent Council Licensing Team
Brent Civic Centre

Engineers Way

Wembley

HA9 OFJ

Page 455



Dear Licensing Team,

Subject: Request for Confidentiality — Representation Regarding Carlton Lounge (Tiger
Bay) | am submitting the attached representation in support of the review of the
premises licence for Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay), 232-234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9
OBH.

Due to the serious nature of the incidents associated with this venue and the fear of
potential retribution, | respectfully request that my personal details be withheld from
the premises licence holder and any other parties not directly involved in the licensing
authority’s internal process.

As a localresident, | am deeply concerned about the ongoing serious incidents linked to
this venue, including criminal activity, anti-social behaviour, and consistent late-night
disturbances. These have had a direct and damaging impact on the local community,
creating a heightened sense of fear and unease among residents. There have been
multiple occasions of violent disorder, noise nuisance, and other behaviours that
clearly breach the licensing objectives—particularly those relating to the prevention of
crime and disorder and the protection of public safety. The presence of this venue in its
current state has significantly deteriorated the quality of life for people living nearby.

The fact that people feel unsafe speaking out should be of grave concern and further
supports the need for urgent and decisive intervention.

| strongly urge Brent Council to consider revoking the premises licence or imposing
stringent new conditions that will prioritise the safety, peace, and wellbeing of the
community.

I understand that under the Licensing Act 2003, representations usually need to be
attributed to named individuals. However, | ask that you exercise your discretion under
your powers to protect the identity of persons who may be at risk, and treat this
representation with the appropriate level of confidentiality.

| would appreciate written confirmation that my identity will be protected in this
process.

Thank you for your consideration.
Yours sincerely,

A Concerned Local Resident

Public details not disclosed as the member of public has expressed fear of intimidation
and / or reprisal.

Page 456



rrom: I

Sent: 05 June 2025 07:50
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Carlton lounge licence

Cover Note: Request for Anonymity
Confidential June 2025

To: Brent Council Licensing Team
Brent Civic Centre

Engineers Way

Wembley

HA9 OFJ

Dear Licensing Team,

Subject: Request for Confidentiality — Representation Regarding Carlton Lounge (Tiger
Bay)

| am submitting the attached representation in support of the review of the premises
licence for Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay), 232-234 Kingsbury Road, London, NWS 0BH.

Due to the serious nature of the incidents associated with this venue and the fear of
potential retribution, | respectfully request that my personal details be withheld from
the premises licence holder and any other parties not directly involved in the licensing
authority’s internal process.

As a local resident, | am deeply concerned about the ongoing serious incidents linked to
this venue, including criminal activity, anti-social behaviour, and consistent late-night
disturbances. These have had a direct and damaging impact on the local community,
creating a heightened sense of fear and unease among residents. There have been
multiple occasions of violent disorder, noise nuisance, and other behaviours that
clearly breach the licensing objectives—particularly those relating to the prevention of
crime and disorder and the protection of public safety. The presence of this venue in its
current state has significantly deteriorated the quality of life for people living nearby.

The fact that people feel unsafe speaking out should be of grave concern and further
supports the need for urgent and decisive intervention.

| strongly urge Brent Council to consider revoking the premises licence or imposing
stringent new conditions that will prioritise the safety, peace, and wellbeing of the
community.

Page 457



I understand that under the Licensing Act 2003, representations usually need to be
attributed to named individuals. However, | ask that you exercise your discretion under
your powers to protect the identity of persons who may be at risk, and treat this
representation with the appropriate level of confidentiality.

I would appreciate written confirmation that my identity will be protected in this
process.

Thank you for your consideration.
Yours sincerely,

A Concerned Local Resident

Public details not disclosed as the member of public has expressed fear of intimidation
and / or reprisal.

Page 458



From: I

Sent: 05 June 2025 08:25

To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>

Subject: Request for Confidentiality — Representation Regarding Carlton Lounge (Tiger
Bay)

Cover Note: Request for Anonymity
Confidential June 2025

To: Brent Council Licensing Team
Brent Civic Centre

Engineers Way

Wembley

HA9 OFJ

Dear Licensing Team,

| am submitting the attached representation in support of the review of the premises
licence for Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay), 232-234 Kingsbury Road, London, NWS 0BH.

Due to the serious nature of the incidents associated with this venue and the fear of
potential retribution, | respectfully request that my personal details be withheld from
the premises licence holder and any other parties not directly involved in the licensing
authority’s internal process.

As a local resident, | am deeply concerned about the ongoing serious incidents linked to
this venue, including criminal activity, anti-social behaviour, and consistent late-night
disturbances. These have had a direct and damaging impact on the local community,
creating a heightened sense of fear and unease among residents. There have been
multiple occasions of violent disorder, noise nuisance, and other behaviours that
clearly breach the licensing objectives—particularly those relating to the prevention of
crime, financial crime, and disorder and the protection of public safety. The presence of
this venue in its current state has significantly deteriorated the quality of life for people
living nearby.

The fact that people feel unsafe speaking out should be of grave concern and further
supports the need for urgent and decisive intervention.

Page 459



| strongly urge Brent Council to consider revoking the premises licence or imposing
stringent new conditions that will prioritise the safety, peace, and wellbeing of the
community.

I understand that under the Licensing Act 2003, representations usually need to be
attributed to named individuals. However, | ask that you exercise your discretion under
your powers to protect the identity of persons who may be at risk, and treat this
representation with the appropriate level of confidentiality.

I would appreciate written confirmation that my identity will be protected in this
process.

Thank you for your consideration.

Yours sincerely,

A Concerned Local Resident

Public details not disclosed as the member of public has expressed fear of intimidation
and / or reprisal.

Page 460



rrom: I

Sent: 05 June 2025 13:58
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Carlton lounge/Tiger bay

Cover Note: Request for Anonymity
Confidential June 2025

To: Brent Council Licensing Team

Brent Civic Centre

Engineers Way

Wembley

HA9 OFJ

Dear Licensing Team,

Subject: Request for Confidentiality - Representation
Regarding Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay)

I am submitting the attached representation in support of the review of the premises
licence for Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay), 232-234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 0OsH.

Due to the serious nature of the incidents associated with this venue and the fear of
potential retribution, | respectfully request that my personal details be withheld from
the premises licence holder and any other parties not directly involved in the licensing
authority's internal process.

As a localresident, | am deeply concerned about the ongoing serious incidents linked to
this venue, including criminal activity, anti-social behaviour, and consistent late-night
disturbances. These have had a direct and damaging impact on the local community,
creating a heightened sense of fear and unease among residents. There have been
multiple occasions of violent disorder, noise nuisance, and other behaviours that
clearly breach the licensing objectives-particularly those relating to the prevention of
crime and disorder and the protection of public safety.

The presence of this venue in its current state has significantly deteriorated the quality
of life for people living nearby.

The fact that people feel unsafe speaking out should be of grave concern and further
supports the need for urgent and decisive intervention.

Page 461



The fact that people feel unsafe speaking out should be of grave concern and further
supports the need for urgent and decisive intervention. The owners Sunit Vekaria was
convicted of smuggling tobacco within a gang and Prash is known in the area for selling
drugs although I don’t know if he’s been convicted or caught yet,

Here’s a video of him bragging about bullet holes in his

car! https://m.youtube.com/watch?v=c67mGED-
tgQ&pp=ygUYa3JlYW0gZGV2ZWxvcG1lbnRzIHJhbmdl also to add this

story https://www.kilburntimes.co.uk/news/crime/22012552.gang-armed-airgun-axes-

baseball-bats-carry-shooting-kingsbury-shisha-lounge/. This place is always causing a
nuisance and trouble for the Kingsbury area with gang related issues and the fact the
police wanted it shut down and the council allowed it to stay open is diabolical!!!

| strongly urge Brent Council to consider revoking the premises licence or imposing
stringent new conditions that will prioritise the safety, peace, and wellbeing of the
community.

I understand that under the Licensing Act 2003, representations usually need to be
attributed to named individuals. However, | ask that you exercise your discretion under
your powers to protect the identity of persons who may be at risk, and treat this
representation with the appropriate level of confidentiality.

I would appreciate written confirmation that my identity will be protected in this
process.

Thank you for your consideration.

Yours sincerely,

Public details not disclosed as the member of public has expressed fear of intimidation
and/ or reprisal.

Page 462



From: I

Sent: 05 June 2025 15:10

To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>

Subject: Request for Confidentiality — Representation Regarding Carlton Lounge (Tiger
Bay)

Cover Note: Request for Anonymity
Confidential June 2025

To: Brent Council Licensing Team
Brent Civic Centre

Engineers Way

Wembley

HA9 OFJ

Dear Licensing Team,

| am submitting the attached representation in support of the review of the premises
licence for Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay), 232-234 Kingsbury Road, London, NWS 0BH.

Due to the serious nature of the incidents associated with this venue and the fear of
potential retribution, | respectfully request that my personal details be withheld from
the premises licence holder and any other parties not directly involved in the licensing
authority’s internal process.

As a local resident, | am deeply concerned about the ongoing serious incidents linked to
this venue, including criminal activity, anti-social behaviour, and consistent late-night
disturbances. These have had a direct and damaging impact on the local community,
creating a heightened sense of fear and unease among residents. There have been
multiple occasions of violent disorder, noise nuisance, and other behaviours that
clearly breach the licensing objectives—particularly those relating to the prevention of
crime, financial crime as they force you to make payments in cash only, and disorder
and the protection of public safety. The presence of this venue in its current state has
significantly deteriorated the quality of life for people living nearby.

The fact that people feel unsafe speaking out should be of grave concern and further
supports the need for urgent and decisive intervention.

Page 463



| strongly urge Brent Council to consider revoking the premises licence or imposing
stringent new conditions that will prioritise the safety, peace, and wellbeing of the
community.

I understand that under the Licensing Act 2003, representations usually need to be
attributed to named individuals. However, | ask that you exercise your discretion under
your powers to protect the identity of persons who may be at risk, and treat this
representation with the appropriate level of confidentiality.

I would appreciate written confirmation that my identity will be protected in this
process.

Thank you for your consideration.

Yours sincerely,

A Concerned Local Resident

Public details not disclosed as the member of public has expressed fear of intimidation
and / or reprisal.

Page 464



Sent: 05 June 2025 16:10
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: License review

Hi,

I am writing in regards to the incident that occurred on May 18th 2025 on Kingsbury
road.

From my understanding | know that this altercation began from within the lounge known
as: Tiger Bay.

I am horrified to know that this lounge failed to apply their usual legal requirements
when permitting individuals into the lounge which is necessary to do so within the early
hours.

From reports of the police, it was written that little to no help or intervention was done
by the security of this lounge to prevent the sudden altercation rather they had just
kicked them out without warning the police.

| find this disturbing knowing what this breach of care later led to.
As aresident of this area, it makes me feel very unsafe as I’m sure others feel the same.

Itis shameful to let such a dangerous place remain open regardless if they add on
further measurements which they might think will help however, | can assure you that
after a while they could lose control again.

If you look to make Brent a safer place for everybody you would take into consideration
families and children who live in this area where these situations can easily affect them.

It shouldn’t be taken lightly that a young man’s life was taken on this day of may 18th,
rather should be used to show the public that you will choose to make the appropriate
decision in order to prevent future tragedies like this to occur.

Rep 41 - G.Muhammad - Hoover Building, UB6 8AT

Page 465



This page is intentionally left blank



Representations in Support

Page 467



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 28 May 2025 20:20
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Support for Carlton lounge /tigerbay

Dear Brent Council,

I am a long-time local resident and a business owner in the area. | also regularly visit
both Carlton Lounge and Tigerbay, and have done so for over 10 years.

I am writing to express my full support for these venues. They are well-managed,
responsible businesses that contribute positively to the local community. As someone
who often visits Tigerbay after work, I’ve always felt safe and welcomed. Their security
and staff are professional, respectful, and effective in maintaining a calm, orderly
environment — including managing noise levels and preventing disturbances.

In addition, many of my own customers also visit these venues. They are respectful,
polite members of the community, and | know from experience that these
establishments attract a good crowd. The venues provide jobs for many local people
and support the wider economy, including small businesses like mine.

Carlton Lounge and Tigerbay have been part of the community for years. They offer a
safe, social environment and continue to serve the area with professionalism and care.
| strongly support their continued operation and hope they remain in Brent for many
more years to come.

Yours faithfully,
T.ISTANAKZAI

Ensign House, NW9 5ZR

Page 469



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 28 May 2025 20:45
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Support for Tigerbay Lounge Licensing

Dear Brent Council,

I live locally in the area. I’'ve been a regular customer at Tigerbay for some time now, and
| wanted to share my support as you review their licence.

From my experience, Tigerbay has always been a well-run and welcoming place. The
staff are friendly and professional, the atmosphere is relaxed, and I’ve always felt safe
when visiting, even on busy nights. The security team does a good job managing the
door and making sure things stay under control.

I understand there’s been a recent incident, and while that’s obviously concerning, |
don’t believe it reflects how the venue is usually run. In all the time I’ve been going
there, I’ve never seen anything that would make me feel unsafe or uncomfortable. If
anything, they go out of their way to make sure things don’t get out of hand.

As someone who works as a Data Scientist for BlackRock, | know how important it is to
look at the bigger picture, not just isolated events. From what I’ve seen, Tigerbay
consistently meets the standards expected of licensed venues — they’re responsible,
they manage noise well, and they treat customers with respect.

Places like this are valuable to the community. They create jobs, give people
somewhere safe to socialise, and add to the character of the local area. | hope Brent
Council will take that into account and allow Tigerbay to continue operating.

Thanks for your time and consideration.

Best regards,
R Pindoria

Address: Coniston gardens, NW9 0BA

Page 471



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 28 May 2025 21:11
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Business Review - Tigerbay

Dear Brent Council,

I am writing in relation to Tigerbay Lounge in Kingsbury.

I work as Head of Talent Operations and HR within a global manufacturing organisation,
and | often come to to the premises to host client meetings and complete any work on
my laptop as | find this a welcoming and safe environment. It's one of the few places |
visit regularly for this purpose, and | have been a customer for at least 10 years.

The staff are always attentive, respectful, whilst keeping the space clean and well-
managed. From my observations, even whilst staying till late evening, they are strict
with compliance adherence, ensuring health and wellbeing are priority. I've not once felt
safe or uncomfortable during my visit.

I have also held family functions in the banqueting hall, where security were attentive.
They also support charity events and have supported customers in driving this at their
venue. This kind of consistency speaks volumes about how seriously the venue takes its
role in the community.

I am happy to discuss anything further if needs be.

Kind Regards

S. Khan - Princes Avenue, Watford, Wd187RR

Page 473



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 28 May 2025 21:28
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tigerbay Lounge

Dear Brent Council,

| saw the blue sign outside tiger bay and want to provide representation

Im aregular at Tigerbay. | work as a reservation agent, and it’s one of the places | often
meet clients it’s a calm, stylish space where people feel comfortable, and that really
matters in my line of work.

Over the years, I’ve spent a lot of time there, both professionally and personally, and
I’ve always been impressed by how well it’s run. The staff are polite, attentive, and
always make the effort to keep the atmosphere relaxed and respectful. Even when it’s
busy, the environment never feels out of control. There’s a sense of order and safety
that’s not easy to come by in venues these days.

From the moment you walk in, it’s clear that the team take pride in the way they
manage the place. I’'ve seen how they quietly keep things moving, how they deal with
larger groups with care, and how they make sure guests are treated kindly. I’'ve never
had a reason to feel uneasy or unsafe there, and that’s exactly why | trust it as a place
to bring clients.

The area around the venue is also kept clean and quiet, which shows the team’s
respect for the neighbourhood. There’s no lingering noise late at night, no trouble
outside — it’s honestly one of the more responsible places I’ve been to in London. It’s
clear they’ve worked hard to create a space that blends into the local community
rather than disrupt it.

Tigerbay has become a familiar part of my routine, and it plays a bigger role than people
might realise. It supports local jobs, gives people a safe and welcoming place to meet,
and offers something positive for the area. | really hope the Council sees the value it

brings and continues to support it.

S Khan - Manor Close NW9 9HD

Page 475



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 28 May 2025 21:32
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tigerbay Lounge

I live just around the corner from Tigerbay. Me and my sister come here all the time and
we saw the blue sign outside so wanted to send in our support as local people who use
and know the venue well

Tigerbay is honestly nothing like those illegal shisha places you hear about. They’re
proper with how they run things. The staff are always respectful and you can tell they
follow the rules. There’s security, people are checked at the door, and they always make
sure things stay calm inside and out. We’ve never seen any kind of trouble here

They also serve really good food which is a big reason why we come. The Indian and
Lebanese dishes are proper restaurant quality and it’s nice to have a place nearby that
does both. It’s not just about shisha it’s a full experience where you can eat, chill and
catch up with friends or family in a clean and safe space

We live close by and have never had a reason to complain about noise or anything being
out of order. The area stays quiet and there’s no crowd hanging around outside which
says a lot about how responsible they are

Tigerbay is one of the few good spots in this area that feels safe and looked after and we
don’t want to lose that. It gives people a proper space to go without having to travel far
and you can tell they care about doing things right.

Z Khan - Manor Close NW9 9HD

Page 477



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 28 May 2025 22:09
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tigerbay

Dear Brent Council,

I am the owner of Solid Cuts barbershop, located directly next to Tigerbay on Slough
Lane. I've been running my business here for several years, and I’ve had the opportunity
to witness, up close, how Tigerbay operates and contributes to the local community.

From the beginning, Tigerbay has always shown support for small, independent
businesses like mine. When | was setting up Solid Cuts, they were one of the first
neighbouring businesses to offer help, guidance, and encouragement. That sense of
community and mutual respect is something | truly value.

As their neighbour, I’'ve seen how professionally the venue is run. Their team
consistently manages the space and its customers responsibly. Security is always
present, the entrance is closely monitored, and customers are guided in and outin an
orderly manner. Even during peak hours, Tigerbay keeps things under control there are
no issues with noise or disorder, and they clearly make an effort to ensure the local
environment remains clean, calm, and safe for everyone.

It’s also important to mention the kind of crowd they attract. From what | see day-to-
day, the people who visit Tigerbay are respectful, well-behaved, and aware of the
surroundings. I’ve never had any problems caused by their customers — in fact, many
of them are also my clients. It’s a positive, overlapping community of people who live,
work, and socialise here responsibly.

Tigerbay has been part of this neighbourhood for years, and | believe they play a
valuable role not only as a local business but as a stabilising presence, especially in the
evenings. Their consistent professionalism helps prevent problems before they arise,
and they clearly take safety and community impact seriously.

As a fellow business owner who depends on a safe and thriving local environment, | fully
support Tigerbay’s continued operation. They’ve proven that a hospitality venue can be
successful and community-conscious at the same time — and that’s exactly the kind of
business we should be encouraging in Brent.

Kind regards,

M Hassan Kingsbury Road, NW9 0BT

Page 479



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 28 May 2025 22:41
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Carlton Lounge/Tiger Bay

Dear Brent Council,
I hope this finds you well,

I am a local resident of brent and given the recent news regarding the unfortunate
incident occuring in the last few weeks and questions regarding the safety of
establishment, | wanted to reach put and inform you as a guest who has been coming to
Carlton Lounge for over 10 years, It’s a place that plays a big role in the local community
where I’'vehosted family get-togethers in their banqueting hall, hosted birthday parties in
the garden area and every time it’s been a smooth, respectful experience with great
hospitality.

In the evenings, | often visit Tigerbay for dinner and shisha with friends and family from
the local and surrounding areas of Londo. From my perspective over the last 10 years
visiting, | can confirm It’s been nothing but a safe, relaxed place to congregate and have
a good time. | have made may othet friends and expanding my network within the local
community by visiting Tiger bay/Carlton lounge given is fosters a multicultural,
welcoming, and respectful environment for me to unwind and relax. I’ve never seen any
trouble during my time visiting ovwr the last 10 years.

The venue had always run with care and responsibility during my time visiting, with staff
members and security at the premisis, emphasising the importance of safety abd
wellbeing by management. | have always felt safe at the venue, and the surrounding
area, keeping calm under pressure during busy periods and ensuring safety as a
paramount. | have noticed the checking of ID from all guests to ensure they are aware of
who enters the premisis as well as body and bag searches .

Tigerbay takes all the necessary precautions to be fully compliantin how in operates
and runs a toght ship with clear signs regarding the rules of the establishment as well as
reminding members to respct the venue and its residential neighbours.

I know there’s been talk about a recent stabbing in the area. | want to be clear that’s not
a reflection of Tigerbay at all. As someone who’s been going there for over 10 years, |
can say with confidence that they’ve never been a source of problems. They’ve always
operated with care and professionalism within the community.

Places like Carlton Lounge and Tigerbay bring people together. They give us somewhere
to go that’s safe and welcoming. | really hope the council continues to support them
they’re part of the heart of our neighbourhood.

Page 481



Kind regards,

A Amin - Meadow way, Wembley HA97LH

Page 482



Sent: 28 May 2025 23:27
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tigerbay Kingsbury

Dear Brent Council,

I live locally to Tigerbay. I’ve been visiting the venue for several years now, and | wanted
to express my support for the place and the people who runit.

Tigerbay has become more than just a social spot for me — it’s somewhere | go to
unwind, clear my head, and find peace. In today’s fast-paced world, especially living in
London, having a safe, familiar space like this has made a big difference to my mental
health. The calm atmosphere, respectful staff, and the overall environment have always
made me feel welcome and supported.

The team at Tigerbay, including the staff and management, have always shown
professionalism and care. The space is secure, well-managed, and consistently
respectful of the surrounding community. Whether it’s making sure customers feel safe
or simply ensuring things run smoothly, they always deliver.

| believe Tigerbay plays a positive role in the local area — not just as a business, butas a
space that brings people together and supports their wellbeing. | hope Brent Council

will continue to support them, as they’ve supported so many of us.

Kind regards,
D Stefania - Campbell Court, Church Lane, NW98AA

Page 483



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 28 May 2025 23:58
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tigerbay Shisha Lounge

Dear Brent Council,

I live in Colindale. | came here from Norway with my sister, and since moving to London,
Tigerbay has become one of the few places that really feels like home.

Me and my sister go there together often, especially in the evenings, and we’ve always
felt so safe and welcomed. It’s one of the first places in London that didn’t feel strange
or uncomfortable to be in. The staff are always polite, respectful and really warm. They
treat us like we’re part of the family.

We know the management as well — Uzi and Prash — they’re so kind and always check
in with people. They’ve even given my sister their number in case we ever feel unsafe or
need anything, which just shows how much they actually care about the people that
come there. But to be honest, I’ve never felt uncomfortable even once. It’s always
peaceful.

The security is always around, they don’t make it feel intense or scary but you do feel
protected. It’s clear they follow all the rules and want to keep the place clean,
respectful and calm for everyone.

| also heard about the stabbing recently, and | just want to say that doesn’t represent
Tigerbay at all. I’ve been there many times and it’s always peaceful. That incident
doesn’t change how the venue is run or the kind of people that go there.

Tigerbay gave me and my sister a space to relax and feel safe in a new country. That
means a lot when you’re far from home. | really hope you let it stay open because it’s a
part of our routine now and honestly a part of our life here.

Kind regards,

L Abid - Fairbank House, Beaufort Square, NW9 4FH

Page 485



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 29 May 2025 00:57
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tigerbay Kingsbury

Dear Brent Council,

I moved from Norway to London, and currently live in Colindale while studying. When |
first arrived, | didn’t know many people but Tigerbay quickly became a place where | felt
safe, welcome, and part of something. It’s more than just a venue to me it’s a space that
brings me peace and makes me feel at home in a new city.

I know the management personally both Prash and Uzi are incredibly welcoming and
genuine people. They’ve made it clear that | can always reach out to them if | ever need
anything or feel uncomfortable, which honestly, | never have. That kind of openness and
community care says a lot about the way Tigerbay is run.

There’s always a strong security presence at the venue. They’re respectful and
professional, and they help keep the environment safe and calm for everyone. It’s very
clear the management takes compliance seriously everything runs smoothly, and
guests are treated with respect while still maintaining high standards for safety and
order.

I’m aware of the recent stabbing incident, and | want to be very clear — that situation
does not reflect Tigerbay at all. I’ve only ever experienced peace, warmth, and
professionalism there. They shouldn’t be judged by one incident that happened in the
wider area.

Tigerbay plays a big role in the community. It’s a multicultural space where people come
together in a positive way, and it has truly made a difference in my life since moving to
London. I hope the council will continue to support this venue and the positive impact it
has.

Thank You,

F Abid - Fairbank house, Beaufort Square NW9 4FH

Page 487



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 29 May 2025 08:13
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Support Statement for Tiger Bay Carlton Lounge — Premises Licence Review

To Whom It May Concern,

| am a local resident of the Tiger Bay area.

I’ve read the premises licence review for Tiger Bay Carlton Lounge regarding crime and
disorder, and | want to share my personal experience as a long-time visitor.

I’'ve been coming to Tiger Bay for years, often with my family. It’s a well run and is family
orientated , welcoming place that feels like a part of our local community. It’s always
been safe, with visible security, and the management clearly take their responsibility
seriously.

| also want to mention two members of staff in particular — Uzi and Prash, the
management — who always go out of their way to make sure I’m well looked after. They
are friendly, respectful, and genuinely care about the wellbeing of customers. They play
a positive role in the local community and help make the venue feel like a safe and
inclusive space for everyone.

Tiger Bay Carlton Lounge adds real value to our area, providing not just food and
hospitality but a sense of community. | hope this is taken into account during the review
process.

Kind regards,

R Alam - Meadowbank Road, NW9 8LH

Page 489



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 29 May 2025 08:18

To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>

Subject: Representation in Support of Tiger Bay and Carlton Lounge — From a Local
Healthcare Professional

Dear Licensing Team,

I am a Physician Associate who lives locally to Carlton Lounge. | am writing to offer my
support for both Tiger Bay and Carlton Lounge, venues | know well and trust deeply, not
just as a customer, but as a woman and healthcare professional in the local community.

I’ve dined at Carlton Lounge countless times, often with family. It’s a familiar, safe place
for me so much so that | chose to host a function there for my graduation in their
banqueting hall, which was handled with care and professionalism.

However, what truly compelled me to write this letter is a personal incident that I've
never forgotten. One evening, | was walking home from the bus stop when | noticed a
man had followed me off the bus and was trailing me. | was scared and unsure of what
to do. | happened to be near Carlton Lounge at the time, and when | stepped in and
explained the situation, the staff were immediate and firm in their response. They
approached the man, told him that police would be called if he didn’t leave, and made
sure | got home safely. They didn’t have to do that, but they did. I’'ll always be grateful.

That incident alone shows the kind of people running this venue. They take public safety
seriously not just within their premises, but in the surrounding area too.

Regarding recent events, | was deeply saddened to hear about the tragic incident
involving a fatality. But | want to be clear | do not believe that this reflects the standard,
the culture, or the daily operations of Tiger Bay. I’ve carefully reviewed the licensing
objectives set out by Brent Council, and from what I’'ve experienced personally over
many years, Tiger Bay adheres to them fully:

Page 491



I’'ve always seen a consistent security presence, professional in both appearance and
behaviour. There is no tolerance for disorderly conduct.

The venue is clean, well-managed, and maintained in a way that makes guests —
especially women — feel safe.

Sound levels are controlled, the space is never chaotic, and guests are respectful.
There’s a calmness about the way the premises are managed, even when busy.

They always check my ID and | have seen staff turn away anyone who couldn’t meet
entry requirements.

Tiger Bay and Carlton Lounge have been part of the local area for a long time. They’re
run by people who care — about their business, about the community, and about doing
things the right way.

I respectfully ask that you consider voices like mine when reviewing this licence —
voices of those who know the venue not through headlines, but through real experience.

Sincerely,

R Alam - Stewart close NW98A)

Page 492



Sent: 29 May 2025 09:26
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tiger Bay Shisha Lounge

Dear Brent Council,

I hope this message finds you well.

| am writing as a long-standing resident of Brent and a local entrepreneur to express my
full support for Tigerbay Shisha Lounge. Over the years, Tigerbay has played a significant
and positive role in my life as a safe, welcoming space where | can unwind, meet with
peers, and engage with others from the community in a respectful and relaxed
environment.

As someone who lives and works in Brent, | value establishments that contribute to
both the social fabric and the local economy of our borough. Tigerbay does just that. |
have never witnessed any disorderly behaviour, nuisance, or safety concerns at the
venue. In fact, their management and staff consistently promote a calm and
responsible atmosphere that prioritises customer wellbeing and community relations.

Places like Tigerbay offer more than just a service—they create a sense of belonging,
especially for young professionals like myself who seek safe, comfortable environments
to connect and relax after long working hours. Losing this venue would be a real blow to
the diversity and vitality of the area.

| kindly urge you to take into account the positive experiences of local residents like
myself when reviewing the business license for Tigerbay.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Warm regards,

A Nwosa - City Road - EV1V2NX

Page 493



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 29 May 2025 10:20
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tigerbay

Dear Brent Council,

I live just next door to Tigerbay, on Slough Lane. I’'ve lived in this area my whole life, and
venues like Tigerbay and Carlton Lounge have always been part of the neighbourhood.

Growing up, | used to go to Carlton Lounge with my family it’s always been a respectful,
welcoming place for all ages. As I've gotten older, | now visit Tigerbay more often, and
I’ve had nothing but positive experiences there. The staff are warm and professional,
and I’ve always felt safe and well looked after, whether I’m with friends or family.

Because | live so close, | get to see how the venue is run day to day. They manage things
really well people come and go calmly, noise is kept under control, and the general
atmosphere is respectful. | know some of the management personally, including Uzi,
who has even shared his contact details with me in case there’s ever an issue. That in
itself says a lot about how seriously they take their responsibilities — though to be
honest, I’ve never had a reason to call. It’s always peaceful and well managed.

Tigerbay and Carlton Lounge are more than just places to hang out they’ve become
important parts of the community. They create jobs, give young people somewhere safe
to socialise, and they’ve been part of our lives for years. It would be a real shame to lose
that.

I hope you’ll take this into consideration and continue to support venues like these that
are run with care, professionalism, and respect for the local area.

Warm regards,

T Rizwan - Arnellan House, NW9 8XIJ

Page 495



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 29 May 2025 11:40
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Support for Carlton Lounge / Tigerbay

Dear Brent Council,

| am a long-time local resident. | also regularly visit both Carlton Lounge and Tigerbay, and
have done so for over 5 years.

| am writing to express my full support for these venues. They are well-managed,
responsible businesses that contribute positively to the local community. As someone who
often visits Tigerbay after work, I've always felt safe and welcomed. Their security and staff
are professional, respectful, and effective in maintaining a calm, orderly environment —
including managing noise levels and preventing disturbances.

In addition, many of my own customers also visit these venues. They are respectful, polite
members of the community, and | know from experience that these establishments attract a
good crowd. The venues provide jobs for many local people and support the wider
economy, including small businesses like mine.

Carlton Lounge and Tigerbay have been part of the community for years. They offer a safe,
social environment and continue to serve the area with professionalism and care. | strongly
support their continued operation and hope they remain in Brent for many more years to
come.

Yours faithfully,
Y Rathod - Pipers Green, NW9 8UH

Page 497



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 29 May 2025 13:53
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tigerbay

Dear Brent Council,

I’'m a long-standing resident of Kingsbury. I’'ve lived here for 36 years and currently run a
tutoring business in the local area. | also live very close to Tigerbay, which has become an
important part of my daily life.

I’'m writing to express my full support for Tigerbay and to share just how much it means to
me — and to many others in the community.

| struggle with my mental health, and Tigerbay is one of the few places where | truly feel at
ease. It’s not just a café or shisha lounge — it’s a place that brings people together. After
long and often difficult days, it gives me somewhere to unwind, spend time with friends,
and feel part of something. The atmosphere is calm, the staff are always friendly, and I've
built real connections with people there — staff and regulars alike.

For someone like me, who doesn’t always find it easy to be out and social, Tigerbay provides
a rare and valuable space. It gives me a reason to leave the house, a place where I'm
welcomed and not judged — and that has made a huge difference to my mental wellbeing.
If this space were taken away, it would be more than just the loss of a local business. It
would mean losing the one place | can go to feel connected, safe, and uplifted. Tigerbay
plays a vital role not just economically, but emotionally and socially — and | know I'm not
the only one who feels this way.

Please support its continued operation. It genuinely matters.

Kind regards,

S Shah - Campbell Court, Church Lane, Kingsbury, NW9 8AA

Page 499



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 29 May 2025 14:08

To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>

Subject: Tigerbay Kingsbury

Dear Sir,

| hope this email finds you well.

| write to express my experiences with the above named establishment.

As a resident within the Barnet area, | have been visiting Tigerbay for close to a decade (if
not more), and my experience has been that of great joy with their services and how safe |

feel when I’'m there.

The staff are so very well mannered and always willing to accommodate every reasonable
request.

| have every confidence in the management of the establishment that they would continue
to strive to provide a safe environment for their customers and give everyone a satisfactory
place to unwind and catch up with family and friends as life events dictates.

Please accept the assurances of my highest regard for your office.

Yours faithfully,

K Tade - Salcombe Gardens , NW7 2NU

Page 501



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 29 May 2025 16:10
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tiger Bay Kingsbury

To Whom It May Concern,

| am writing as a long-time resident of the Brent area, a regular customer of Tiger Bay,
and a local business owner operating several establishments in and around the
borough. | am submitting this representation in full support of Tiger Bay’s continued
operation, based on my personal experience as a customer and my professional insight
into what it takes to responsibly run a public venue.

| have been visiting Tiger Bay for several years now, both socially and occasionally for
informal business meetings. From the very beginning, it was clear to me that the team
behind Tiger Bay are not only passionate about hospitality but are also fully committed
to upholding the standards expected by the council and the wider community.

1. Prevention of Crime and Disorder

Tiger Bay has a consistently strong security presence, including trained staff who are
visible, professional, and proactive in maintaining order. I’'ve personally withessed their
team diffusing situations quickly and respectfully, making it clear they are not just
“ticking boxes” but genuinely prioritizing safety and good conduct. As a business owner
myself, | know how important it is to have the right people in the right positions — and
Tiger Bay clearly does.

2. Public Safety

Public safety is a visible priority. The venue layout is open and accessible, staff are
attentive, and health and safety practices are clearly embedded in their operations.
Whether it’s crowd control, emergency access, or general cleanliness, I’ve never once
felt unsafe there — and I’'ve recommended it to friends, colleagues, and visiting guests
without hesitation.

3. Prevention of Public Nuisance

| live locally and frequently pass by the area. | can confidently say that Tiger Bay does its
partin preventing nuisance. The noise levels are monitored, security often encourages
guests to leave quietly, and the team is responsive to any concerns. It’s not a place that
disturbs the peace — it’s a place that respects it.

4. Protection of Children from Harm

Page 503



Although Tiger Bay is clearly an adult-focused environment, they’ve always maintained
strict age policies. ID checks are routinely done at the entrance, and it’s clear they take
the protection of minors seriously. This kind of diligence builds trust with the wider
community and families living nearby.

What also stands out about Tiger Bay is its connection to the local area. I’ve had the
pleasure of speaking with Uzi, a senior member of staff, on several occasions. His
professionalism, consistency, and customer care reflect the values of the entire team.
He’s someone who genuinely takes pride in the place and knows the customers by
name — that level of service isn’t common anymore.

Tiger Bay has been operating for years without significant incident. That doesn't happen
by accident. It happens because the business is run properly, with structure, foresight,
and respect for regulations. As someone who runs multiple businesses, | recognize the
work it takes behind the scenes to maintain a venue like that — and | know when it's
being done right.

In a time when many areas are losing safe, responsible social spaces, it would be a
shame to see an example like Tiger Bay be unfairly targeted or misunderstood. They
have a loyal customer base, they contribute positively to the local economy, and they
meet every requirement expected of them.

| fully support Tiger Bay continuing its operations and respectfully ask that Brent Council
acknowledge the good work they do and the responsible manner in which they do it.

Kind regards,

A Seyani - The Mount - HA99EE

Page 504



Sent: 29 May 2025 16:54
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Supporting Tigerbay and Carlton Lounge

To Whom It May Concern,
I am writing in support of Tigerbay (Carlton Lounge) located on Kingsbury Road.

| have been a loyal customer of Tigerbay for over 10 years, regularly visiting both on my
own and with my family. Over the years, I’ve seen how this venue has consistently
provided a safe, well-managed, and welcoming environment for its customers.

Tigerbay takes customer safety seriously. Every visit includes security checks at the
door, and | often notice how friendly and professional the staff are when dealing with
guests. I've seen the staff de escalate situations calmly, enforce the rules clearly, and
handle customer interactions with great care. The zero-tolerance policy on drugs and
disorderly conduct is evident and well enforced.

In addition to maintaining internal safety, Tigerbay goes out of its way to be respectful of
the surrounding community. When the night ends, they encourage customers to leave
quietly and orderly, which | appreciate as a resident of the area.

As someone who has experienced this venue across many years and different
occasions, | can confidently say they operate in accordance with all licensing

objectives: preventing crime, ensuring public safety, minimizing nuisance, and
protecting young people.

I hope the council will recognise the positive role this venue plays and allow it to
continue serving our community in a responsible and professional manner.

Sincerely,

B Attaie - Artisan Place, HA1 5DS

Page 505



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 29 May 2025 17:12
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: TIGER BAY KINGSBURY

To Whom It May Concern,

I work as a broker. I’'m writing to express my full support for Tigerbay (Carlton Lounge) in
Kingsbury.

As someone who spends a lot of time at Tigerbay, especially over the weekends and
even weekdays after work, | can confidently say this is one of the best-run
establishments in London. The atmosphere is always positive, respectful and
welcoming. that’s a reflection of the management and the values they uphold.

Whether you're a first-time visitor or a regular, the staff treat everyone with the same
level of respect and professionalism, regardless of background or status. That kind of
inclusive environment is rare especially in London these days and it’s a big part of what
keeps people coming back you very often see the same faces in there and | have never
experienced and hostility.

The venue is clearly focused on safety and community. Security checks are carried out
properly, and the staff are always on top of things as simple as when a glass is dropped
and breaks or a piece of coal dropping from the shisha they are very quick to respond
and ensure no one is harmed. I've never seen issues left unmanaged. They do
everything by the book, while still making you feel comfortable and relaxed.

Tigerbay is a great example of how a venue can bring people together safely and
positively. | fully support their continued operation and commend the team for running

such a high-quality establishment.

Sincerely,
Tan - Sundon Road, LU5 6L.W

Page 507



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 29 May 2025 17:28
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Support for Carlton Lounge / Tigerbay

Dear Sir/ Madam,

As a local resident and business owner, I’'m writing in support of Carlton Lounge /
Tigerbay Restaurant and Bar (CLTB) on Kingsbury Road.

Our business ‘PJ Keary Ltd’ is located about 5 minutes’ walk away from CLTB, on
Townsend Lane, where we own an office building with approx. 40 occupants. This is
made up of our own company staff, and that of our tenants, largely Accountancy,
Surveying and Insurance professionals. Many of our staff and tenants use CLTB
regularly and my family and | are also frequent visitors ever since they opened about 13
years ago. | can confirm that in our experience CLTB is a well managed establishment
serving excellent Indian cuisine.

Having recently discussed this issue with our staff and tenants here at Jubilee House, |
can say that no one here has anything but positive things to say about CLTB, everyone is
in agreeance that the place is professionally managed with friendly and considerate
staff. In our experience their security personal are always polite and helpful and come
across as capable and experienced.

No one | have spoken to has ever witnessed any disorder at CLTB.

We were delighted to see CLTB open for business as usual last weekend and we strongly
support their continued success in serving wonderful food and hospitality to the local
community.

Yours faithfully,

M Keary - Jubilee House, Townsend Lane, NW9 8TZ

Page 509



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 30 May 2025 07:01
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tigerbay Kingsbury

To Whom It May Concern,

I am writing in support of Tiger Bay, a venue | have come to know well both as a teacher
and a family friend, and as someone who has personally chosen to celebrate important
family occasions there, including my baby shower and my children’s birthdays.

Over the years, | have been consistently impressed with the venue’s professionalism,
safety standards, and respectful approach to the community. | would like to share my
experience in relation to the key licensing objectives:

1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

Tiger Bay has always maintained a safe, welcoming environment. Security staff are
highly professional, visible, and proactive in handling any situation calmly and
respectfully. Entry procedures are strict, including ID and bag checks, and there is
clearly a zero-tolerance policy on any kind of illegal or disruptive behaviour. Thisis not a
venue that attracts trouble — it’s a place where families and adults can feel secure.

2. Public Safety

As a teacher and a parent, safety is my top priority, and I’ve always felt completely safe
at Tiger Bay. The venue is clean, well-organised, and never overcrowded. Exits and
walkways are clearly marked, and the staff are attentive and trained to manage the
space properly. Whether I’ve visited with friends or hosted my children’s events, I’'ve
always been reassured by the venue’s high safety standards.

3. The Prevention of Public Nuisance

Even during events with music and celebration, the venue goes to great lengths to
ensure minimal disturbance to the neighbourhood. Noise is well managed, and staff
encourage guests to leave the premises respectfully. I’ve never seen loud crowds
lingering outside, and there’s always security ensuring the area around the venue
remains quiet and clean. As someone who values community, | find this level of care
admirable.

4. The Protection of Children from Harm

Tiger Bay takes its responsibilities seriously. I’ve personally witnessed how strictly they
enforce ID checks and age restrictions. When hosting my children’s birthday parties
there, | was reassured by the staff’s professionalism and the venue’s suitability for

Page 511



family events. It’s a mature, respectful setting that ensures children are protected and
that age-appropriate boundaries are always upheld.

In summary, Tiger Bay is a venue that upholds strong values and meets all expectations
for public safety, community respect, and lawful conduct. From hosting my most
personal family milestones to attending as a guest, | can say with confidence that this is
a well-managed, responsible, and community-friendly establishment.

Yours sincerely,

S Imambaccass - Sherringham Avenue, N17 9RN

Page 512



Sent: 31 May 2025 10:07
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Shoutout to Tigerbay Kingsbury — Always a Great Experience!

To whom this may concern,

| just wanted to take a moment to share how much | appreciate Tigerbay Kingsbury. I’'ve
been going there for the past 6-7 years, and it’s truly an amazing place. The atmosphere
is always welcoming, the staff are incredibly friendly and professional, and I’'ve always
felt safe and well taken care of every time | visit.

Whether it’s a casual night out or a fun weekend plan, Tigerbay has consistently
delivered great vibes and good times. It’s clear the team takes pride in what they do, and
it really shows.

Big thanks to everyone at Tigerbay Kingsbury for keeping the standards so high — looking
forward to many more visits!

Best regards,

S ALI - Castle Road, NW1 8SU

Page 513



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 31 May 2025 19:54
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tiger Bay experience

Good day to you

| write this email in support of Tiger Bay’s continued operations. As | live in close
proximity, | have gone there for several years and can attest to their professionalism,
commitment to safety and customer satisfaction.

itis a place | have recommended to my friends and | have always felt comfortable there,
and reassured.

The security staff always protect customers and thereby create a conducive
entertainment environment. | have never seen any trouble or disturbances there.

thank you and kind regards

A Doherty - Highview Gardens, Edgware, Middlesex, HA8 QUE

Page 515



This page is intentionally left blank



From: amit arjan <amit.arjan@hotmail.com> Sent: 31 May 2025 19:58
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: TigerBay

Longstanding Supporter of Tiger Bay & Carlton Lounge

I’ve been going to both Tiger Bay and Carlton Lounge for over 12 years now. These
places aren’t just venues to me—they’ve been part of countless memories with friends
and family over the years. Birthdays, catch-ups, casual evenings, even just somewhere
to relax after a long week—they’ve always been reliable, welcoming, and safe.

I’ve seen how both venues have evolved and improved over the years, and I’'ve always
been impressed by the professionalism of the staff and the efforts made to keep
everything running smoothly. Security is always present, there’s structure and order,
and guests are treated with respect.

When | heard about the recent incident, my first reaction was concern—but | honestly
don’t think it’s fair to connect that to how these venues are run. It’s easy to point fingers,
but anyone who’s actually spent time at either place knows they take safety and
responsibility seriously.

Both Tiger Bay and Carlton Lounge do more than provide a good night out—they give
people in the community a place to gather, unwind, and enjoy themselves in a
respectful environment. Taking that away would punish the many for the actions of a
few.

| stand by both venues and the teams who work hard behind the scenes. They’ve earned
their place in our community, and they deserve continued support, not scrutiny.

Kind Regards

A Arjan - Greenway, HA3 OTT

Page 517



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 31 May 2025 21:35
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Support Statement for Tiger Bay, Kingsbury

To whom it may concern,

We’ve been visiting Tiger Bay for over 10 years now. It’s one of our favourite places to go,
whether it’s for dinner, drinks, or just to catch up with friends. Over the years, it’s
become areal part of our lives and a place we feel genuinely connected to.

We know Uzi, the floor manager, very well. He’s always gone above and beyond to make
sure the venue runs smoothly and safely. You can see the pride he takes in the place,
and that’s reflected in how the whole team operates.

Tiger Bay takes everything seriously, whether it’s checking ID to make sure no underage
guests get in, handling noise complaints, or ensuring the neighbours aren’t disturbed by
music or guests leaving late. We’ve personally seen security patrolling the area, being
respectful but firm, and making sure everyone is safe and behaving responsibly.

The food and drinks are always top quality, and the staff are exceptional, friendly,
professional, and clearly hardworking. A lot of them depend on this job for their
livelihood, and it would be heartbreaking to see them lose that because of a one-off
incident that doesn’t reflect how Tiger Bay is normally run.

We truly believe Tiger Bay follows all the licensing objectives and plays a positive role in
the local community. It’s a well-run venue that deserves continued support, not
punishment.

A Madlani - stag lane, Ha8 5ll

Page 519



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 31 May 2025 22:55
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tigerbay Kingsbury

Good evening

| hope that this email finds you well. | am owner of a car hire company which is based in
Reading Berkshire.

| have been attending Tigerbay Kingsbury for approximately 10 years. | have gone from a
teenager to a adult who has just turned 30 years of age this year.

Through out my 10 years of attending Tigerbay Kingsbury i have always witnessed follow
the guidelines of preventing crime. | always felt safe whilst attending Tigerbay as there is
a high security presence conducting regular patrols around the venue unlike other
restaurants.

| have also withessed security guards ensuring that the neighbours of Tigberbay are
respected in relation to making noise and being a nuisance. The customer are always
well aware that their is a zero tolerance policy of making noise in or outside the
premises.

This is the only place in London that i have been attending on a regular basis for the past
10 years. | really enjoy attending this restaurant and i have always felt safe. | have never
experienced or withessed any circumstances where i have felt uncomfortable and had
to leave.

If you require any further information please do not hesitate to contact me. My contact
number is

With the kindest regards

U Malik - Managua Close, Rg45lx

Page 521



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 01 June 2025 11:35
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tiger Bay license review

Hi there,

I hope you’re well and had a great weekend.

I’m getting in touch regarding the ongoing review around Tiger Bay shisha lounge and the
extremely heartbreaking events that occurred outside the venue last month.

| have been visiting Tiger Bay as a customer since it first opened over 10 years ago with
close friends and family. It has been a local space for me and friends to meet up, catch
up and a safe space for us to have dinner, drinks, shisha and socialise.

In my time, I’ve never experienced or seen any trouble there that made me feel unsafe or
made me feel in danger. The entire team, including security and management have
always been friendly, respectful and extremely considerate towards the comfort and
satisfaction of their customers. Generally speaking, the venue has a positive, friendly
and sometimes energetic atmosphere.

The above is what makes me feel compelled to write to you in connection with the
ongoing license review which | read about on a local news website. While the events
that unfolded last month were deeply heartbreaking and tragic, Tiger Bay has a
tremendous track record and experience in keeping locals and visitors safe and have
demonstrated that over ten years.

While | understand | can’t fully impact the outcome of any professional license review, |
hope the above will be taken into consideration.

Thanks,

B Patel - Cane Drive, Bricket Wood, AL2 3FP

Page 523



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 02 June 2025 13:56
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tiger bay Kingsbury

Just wanted to drop a quick line re Kingsbury tiger bay, | heard the licence is under some
reviews but just wanted to point out I’ve been going there for years and years since it’s
opened and the staff, security and owners are a pleasure to be around. Everyone is
extremely friendly, respectful and professional and it would be such a shame if this
place didn’t exist ! It’s our regular social spot.

S Mashru - Langton grove Ha62pr

Page 525



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 02 June 2025 16:00
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Subject: Support for Carlton Lounge Premises Licence

To whom it may concern

| have dedicated 16 years to education, working as a headteacher across both primary
and secondary schools. Now, as the head coach and managing director of The IQ Gym
based at Kingfisher Community Centre in Brent, | continue my commitment to
developing young people, instilling discipline, and providing opportunities through
sport.

| am writing to express my full support for the premises licence held by Carlton Lounge
(Tiger Bay), located at 232 - 234 Kingsbury Road, London, NW9 0BH.

Carlton Lounge has been a steadfast supporter of our gym for the past seven years,
providing financial assistance that has directly benefited our amateur boxing club. Their
contributions have helped equip our young athletes with essential gear, allowing them
to train, develop their skills, and build confidence in a structured and positive
environment. Their sponsorship is not just about fundin, it is about investing in young
people, giving them opportunities to thrive both in sport and in life.

As someone who has personally overseen the development of young boxers within our
programme, | can confidently say that Carlton Lounge has been a valued partner in
supporting positive community initiatives. Their generosity has empowered children and
young adults who may not otherwise have access to sporting opportunities, reinforcing
the importance of teamwork, discipline, and self-belief.

Beyond their contributions to our gym, Carlton Lounge has consistently demonstrated a
commitment to operating responsibly as a licensed venue. Senior members from The IQ
Gym regularly attend Carlton Lounge for social sports events, and | can personally
attest to the professional and well-managed environment they provide. We have never
experienced or withessed any antisocial behaviour linked to the premises, and the
management team is proactive in ensuring a safe and welcoming space for their
customers.

Carlton Lounge is more than just a hospitality venue, itis a place where people feel

safe, supported, and valued. The team behind it is actively engaged in fostering
community spirit. Their dedication to upholding licensing conditions, managing their

Page 527



establishment professionally, and supporting local initiatives speaks volumes about
their role within our neighbourhood.

I firmly believe that the licensing authority should recognise the long-standing
commitment of Carlton Lounge to compliance, community enrichment, and
responsible venue management. Their contributions extend far beyond their premises,
positively shaping the lives of young people and strengthening our local area.

Yours sincerely
X Miller - page street, Nw7 2el

Page 528



Sent: 02 June 2025 21:49
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tiger bay

Brent Council,

I am a frequent visitor to Tiger Bay. I’'m writing to express my full support for the venue
and to share how much it means to both me and the local community.

Tiger Bay is more than just a place to socialise, it’s a space that brings people together
from all walks of life. As someone who visits regularly, | can say with confidence that it
plays a valuable role in the area. It promotes inclusivity, peace, and unity, welcoming
people of all backgrounds and ages.

The staff are a huge part of what makes Tiger Bay so special. They are always friendly,
respectful, and go above and beyond to make sure guests feel safe and looked after.
Over the years, I’ve seen how dedicated they are to maintaining a positive environment,
even as the venue has grown in popularity.

I’m aware that there has been recent concern about safety, but | want to highlight that in
all the time I’ve been going to Tiger Bay, I’ve never once felt unsafe. On the contrary, the
security is thorough—everyone is searched on entry, and the introduction of ID
scanning and metal detectors shows they are taking every step possible to ensure
safety. These proactive measures show just how seriously Tiger Bay takes its
responsibilities.

It’s also worth mentioning the impact this place has on the local community. Tiger Bay
provides jobs and gives young people a chance to gain work experience and grow. It
supports the local economy and offers a safe, friendly space for people to relax and
enjoy themselves.

In my view, Tiger Bay is a vital part of the Kingsbury community, and it should continue
to be recognised as a well-run, respectful, and valued establishment.

Please feel free to contact me if you would like to hear more about my experiences or
perspective.

Kind regards,

N Arjan - Loretto Gardens, HA3 9LY

Page 529



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 03 June 2025 02:46
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tigerbay Kingsbury

Good Morning Brent Council,

I am writing in regards Tigerbay Kingsbury and wanted to jet you know the following
points:

My experience has always been outstanding and has been for the past 8years in have
been going there.

The staff and security has always been outstanding, warm, welcoming and very
comforting and feeling safe at all times. They all have been very professional with the
service that has been provided.

Tigerbay Kingsbury has been a part of my weekend routine because it feels very safe and
secure to be there and will continue to do so.

Tigerbay Kingsbury always have a strict house rules to ensure there is no trouble in
house and keeping the customers safe at all times.

As a working professional i would recommend Tigerbay Kingsbury for a good and
relaxing time even after the incident that took place as i know they will improve on this
and tighten security even more to help ensure they are keeping customers and
community safe.

Many thanks

K Tak - Gabrielle House, Perth Road, |IG2 6FF

Page 531



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 03 June 2025 14:49
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Support for Carlton Lounge Premises Licence

To whom it may concern

| have been a professional belly dancer working with Carlton Lounge (Tiger bay) and its
brand for nearly ten years. Throughout my time performing at the venue, | have always
felt safe and supported, thanks to the professionalism and vigilance of the management
and staff.

As a performer, safety is a crucial aspect of my work, and Carlton Lounge (Tigerbay) has
consistently ensured a secure and respectful environment, not just for me, but for all
people. The security team at the front entrance is always attentive, ensuring customers
behave responsibly and remain considerate of local neighbours and others' personal
safety. Their presence is reassuring, not intrusive, making sure that everyone arriving at
the venue is welcomed and checked appropriately, keeping the atmosphere controlled
and enjoyable.

Inside the venue, Carlton Lounge has established itself as one of the most recognised
lounges for live entertainment, with a reputation for high standards and a well-managed
environment. The staff are exceptionally vigilant while | perform, ensuring that guests
can fully appreciate the entertainment while maintaining a safe and respectful space for
everyone. Their approach to safety goes beyond security presence, it is the way they
engage with customers inside, the way they manage the flow of the venue, and their
commitment to responsible and safe place for so many people.

Over the past ten years, the team has always prioritised my safety, and | have also seen
firsthand how they look after the well-being of their customers. From monitoring
behaviour inside the venue to ensuring guests leave in a responsible manner, Carlton
Lounge takes great care in upholding their responsibility to provide a safe and
welcoming space.

Itis truly sad and unfortunate what has happened involving a young man, butitis
important to acknowledge that such an incident is not typical nor reflective of Carlton
Lounge or its management. This venue has long been a place for people to socialise,
enjoy entertainment, and come together in a respectful and diverse setting. With a
dedicated team, a strong security presence, and a commitment to cultural enrichment,
Carlton Lounge has proven to be a valuable space for performers like myself and the
wider community.

Page 533



| hope that the licensing authority recognises Carlton Lounge’s dedication to safety,
professionalism, and cultural diversity and acknowledges their continued effortin
maintaining a space where people can enjoy themselves securely and responsibly.

Thank you

N Barrera - Kirkby close, N11 3FE

Page 534



Sent: 03 June 2025 16:20
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tiger Bay — Licence Support

Dear Licensing Team,

I am writing as a long-standing patron of Tiger Bay to express my wholehearted support
for the venue’s continued operation.

Over the years, | have consistently found Tiger Bay to be an impeccably run
establishment. The environment is always composed and well-managed, with staff and
security who conduct themselves with the utmost professionalism and courtesy. It is,
without question, a place where | have always felt both safe and welcome.

Beyond this, Tiger Bay plays a meaningful role within the community — offering a space
that fosters connection and contributes positively to the local cultural fabric. | sincerely
hope this will be given due consideration during the review process.

Thank you very much for your attention.

Best Regards,

S Khan - Stoke Road, SL2 5AY

Page 535



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 03 June 2025 17:17
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tigerbay, Kingsbury

Hi,

I’m writing to you with regards to Tigerbay in Kingsbury.

I’'ve been coming here for 13 years and can truly say it always feels like home.

Over the years I’ve met a lot of people who have become close friends and some like
family.

It’s always been a safe place and | trust the staff and security. They’ve always looked
after me and have been respectful and professional. It’s a place I’ve recommended to
many people over the years because of the service and care they provide.

| continue to support them 100%.

Kind regards

S Sudra - Darcy Drive, HA3 9JR

Page 537



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 04 June 2025 01:43
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Urgent

Dear Licensing Team,

I’m writing not just as a member of staff, but as someone who has grown up at Tiger Bay
a place that has genuinely shaped the person | am today.

I’'ve worked at Tiger Bay for over nine years, alongside my professional career as a
biomedical scientist. Despite the demands of that field, | made a conscious choice to
stay here because this venue is more than just a workplace to me. It’s family. It’s home.

Tiger Bay took me in when | was still finding my feet, and over the years, it turned me
from a boy into a man. I’'ve learned so much here —not only about responsibility and
professionalism, but about people, about community, and most importantly, about the
importance of public safety and accountability.

We take our licensing objectives incredibly seriously. From day one, staff are properly
trained and inducted to understand what’s expected not just legally, but ethically. We’re
reminded constantly that safety, respect, and compliance come first. That’s our culture.
That’s who we are.

We go out of our way to care for both our patrons and our neighbours. We serve a
multicultural crowd, welcoming people from all walks of life, and we’re proud to be a
space where different communities can come together peacefully and positively.

I sincerely hope you’ll take into account how much Tiger Bay means to those of us who
have committed years of our lives to building something safe, respectful, and
community-focused. We don’t take this responsibility lightly it’s everything to us.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Warm regards

U Alam - manor way, ha2 6by

Page 539



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 04 June 2025 22:39
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Community statement in support of TigerBay

I’'ve been a regular customer at Tiger Bay since it first opened, and it has always held a
special place in my life. As someone who lives locally in Kingsbury, I’ve seen how Tiger
Bay brings people together from all backgrounds and cultures. It’s a venue that
genuinely fosters unity, peace, and a strong sense of community.

The staff go above and beyond to make sure everyone feels safe and welcome. They’re
professional, caring, and always attentive to the needs of their customers. That’s one of
the many reasons Tiger Bay has earned the respect of so many of us who have been
going there for years.

| recently heard about the unfortunate stabbing incident, and while it’s upsetting, |
strongly believe Tiger Bay should not be blamed. The venue has been part of the area for
over a decade and has never had a reputation for trouble. It has always maintained a
calm, respectful, and welcoming atmosphere—even during late hours.

In my experience, Tiger Bay takes safety seriously and follows all the rules and
guidelines set by the authorities. Guests are always searched on entry, and the staff are
consistent in maintaining order and ensuring a peaceful environment.

Tiger Bay is more than just a venue—it’s a vital part of the local community. It creates
jobs, supports young people, and provides a space where people from all walks of life
can come together in a positive and respectful setting.

If you need anything further from me, please don’t hesitate to get in touch.

Sincerely,

K Chan - station parade, Kenton lane, Ha3 8sb

Page 541



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 04 June 2025 22:44
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject:

Dear Brent Council ,

I am writing in support of Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay) regarding the current licence
review.

| am a long-time resident of Kingsbury. | have been visiting Carlton Lounge for many
years, and | can confidently say it is a safe, well managed venue that is respected within
the Indian community and beyond.

We often visit with family, and we have always found the atmosphere to be welcoming,
respectful, and secure. The staff are professional and make sure everyone is looked
after. It is a place that brings different communities together in a positive and inclusive
way.

Carlton Lounge has been an important part of the local area for years, and | have never
had any reason to feel concerned about safety or disorder when visiting. It is a valued

place for socialising and family time, and | strongly support them during this review.

Yours sincerely,
R Khetani - Tewkesbury Gardens, nw90qu

Page 543



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 04 June 2025 22:46
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tiger bay

I’ve been going to Carlton Lounge for several years now. | felt it was important to speak
up and share my experience, especially after seeing some negative things being said
online that really don’t reflect what this place is like.

Tiger Bay has always been a safe and welcoming place for me, my family, and many
others in the Indian community. We often go there to relax, catch up, and enjoy good
food in a friendly environment. I’ve never once felt unsafe or seen any trouble when I've
been there — in fact, it’s the opposite. The staff are respectful, the vibe is calm, and it’s
a spot where different people come together peacefully.

It’s been part of our community for years, and | honestly believe it plays a positive role in
the area. | hope the council will take into account the experiences of people like me who

know the place well and have only ever had good things to say about it.

Kind regards,
D Vaja - braithwaite gardens, ha7 2qg

Page 545



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 04 June 2025 22:51
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Support for Keeping Tigerbay Kingsbury Open

Dear Members of Brent Council,

I am writing to you not only as a long-standing patron of Tigerbay Kingsbury, but as a
deeply concerned member of the local community.

For over 13 years, Tigerbay has been a place of warmth, professionalism, and
inclusivity. The staff consistently demonstrate respect, care, and a strong sense of
responsibility — qualities that have built trust with their customers and the wider
community. It is, without question, one of the most well-managed and welcoming
establishments in the area.

The recent tragic event that occurred outside the venue was heartbreaking. However, it
is crucial to acknowledge that this isolated incident does not reflect the character or
operations of Tigerbay. In all my years of visiting, | have never once felt unsafe or
withessed anything that would suggest negligence or disorder within its premises.

Beyond being a restaurant or lounge, Tigerbay has become a vital community space. |
have celebrated milestones such as birthdays and baby showers there, and have also
used the venue for professional gatherings. It is a place that brings together people of all
ages and backgrounds — offering young people, in particular, a safe and positive
environment to socialise and feel a sense of belonging. At a time when youth mental
health is under strain and the risk of negative influences is high, spaces like Tigerbay are
not just valuable — they are essential.

To see such a place potentially face closure would be a profound loss. Tigerbay
represents more than hospitality — it represents community, connection, and care. |
respectfully urge you to take into account the overwhelmingly positive role it plays in the
lives of so many, and to support its continued presence in Kingsbury.

Thank you for your time and thoughtful consideration.

Yours sincerely,

A. Ruhomutally - Chase way, Barnet, N14

Page 547



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 04 June 2025 23:05
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Tiger Bay

Dear reader,

i want to talk about Tigerbay which | believe is one of the safest venues in the entire
area. I’ve been to many shisha lounges across London, and honestly, most don’t come
close to the level of professionalism and order that Tiger Bay maintains. They meet all
their licensing objectives — from crime prevention to public safety and everything in
between. The security team is always present and alert, both inside and outside the
venue, and the staff handle everything with structure and respect. It’s clean, well-
organised, and run properly — no overcrowding, no drama, no nonsense. Compared to
other lounges I’ve seen, where things often feel chaotic or unsafe, Tiger Bay stands out
as the exact opposite. It’s a place where people from all communities come together
peacefully, and I’'ve never once felt uncomfortable there. If anything, it should be held
up as the standard of how a shisha venue should operate — responsible, respectful,
and community-focused.

P Gajjar - 42 Belsize Rd, HA3 6JJ

Page 549



This page is intentionally left blank



Sent: 04 June 2025 23:06
To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>
Subject: Support statement for tiger bay

I’m a local driving instructor in the area. I’ve been going to Tiger Bay for years now, and
I’ve only ever had positive experiences. | also regularly hear great things from my
learners—not just about Tiger Bay, but Carlton Lounge too.

People from all backgrounds and all ages mention how welcoming, safe, and well-run
both venues are. It says a lot when people from the community—many of whom are just
starting out with their independence—already recognise how secure and respectful
these places are.

Tiger Bay has always been a secure venue. I’'ve seen the staff work professionally, and
the security team are always on top of things without being overbearing. The same goes
for Carlton Lounge—you can go there with family, relax, and enjoy a peaceful evening.
They treat everyone with respect and really look after their guests.

Both venues are not a nuisance, nor do they contribute to crime in the area. If anything,
they provide a safe space for people to unwind and spend time in a positive
environment. They give people a sense of peace and community, which is something we
need more of—not less.

| believe Tiger Bay and Carlton Lounge fully meet their licensing responsibilities and are
areal asset to the local area.

S Razzaq - paddock road, Nw2 7dh

Page 551



This page is intentionally left blank



Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
| ’ re n wembley

Regulatory Services

HA9 OFJ

TEL: 020 8937 5359
EMAIL: business.licence@brent.gov.uk
WEB: www.brent.gov.uk

Online Ref. No:
Application No: 33096
Date: 26 November 2024

London Borough of Brent

Premises Licence

Part A

This Premises Licence was granted by Brent Council, Licensing Authority for the area of the Borough of Brent under the

Licensing Act 2003

Original grant date: 29 May 2008
Current issue date: 26 October 2024

Authorised signatory

Premises licence nhumber: 362998

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordinance survey map reference or description

Carlton Lounge
232 - 234 Kingsbury Road, London, Brent, NW9 OBH

Where the licence is time limited the dates

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

Section E: Live music

SectionFT:') Recorﬁecgg;nusic
Section G: el?tglﬁa of dance




Section H: Anything of a similar description to that falling within (E), (F) or (G)
Section I: Provision of late night refreshment: Both
Section J: Sale of alcohol: Both

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Section E: Live music
Da Start Time End Time
[Monday 11:00 03:00
Tuesday 11:00 03:00
|IWednesday 11:00 03:00
Thursday 11:00 03:00
{Friday 11:00 04:00
Saturday 11:00 04:00
Sunday 11:00 03:00

Section F: Recorded music

Da Start Time End Time
[Monday 11:00 03:00
Tuesday 11:00 03:00
|Wednesday 11:00 03:00
Thursday 11:00 03:00
|Friday 11:00 04:00
Saturday 11:00 04:00
Sunday 11:00 03:00

Section G: Performances of dance

[Day Start Time End Time
[Monday 11:00 03:00
Tuesday 11:00 03:00
|Wednesday 11:00 03:00
Thursday 11:00 03:00
|Friday 11:00 04:00
Saturday 11:00 04:00
Sunday 11:00 03:00

Section H: Anything of a similar description to that falling within (E), (F) or (G)
Da Start Time End Time
[Monday 11:00 03:00
Tuesday 11:00 03:00
|IWednesday 11:00 03:00
Thursday 11:00 03:00
|Friday 11:00 04:00
Saturday 11:00 04:00
Sunday 11:00 03:00

Page 554




|Section I: Provision of Late Night Refreshments:Both

[Day Start Time End Time
[Monday 23:00 03:30
Tuesday 23:00 03:30
IWednesday 23:00 03:30
Thursday 23:00 03:30
|Friday 23:00 04:30
Saturday 23:00 04:30
Sunday 23:00 03:30
Section J: Sale or Supply of Alcohol: Both

Da Start Time End Time
[Monday 11:00 03:00
Tuesday 11:00 03:00
IWednesday 11:00 03:00
Thursday 11:00 03:00
|Friday 11:00 04:00
Saturday 11:00 04:00
Sunday 11:00 03:00

The opening hours of the premises

Da Start Time End Time
[Monday 11:00 03:30
Tuesday 11:00 03:30
IWednesday 11:00 03:30
Thursday 11:00 03:30
{Friday 11:00 04:30
Saturday 11:00 04:30
Sunday 11:00 03:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off supplies
Both

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of the premises licence

Carlton Lounge (UK) Ltd

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

08996766

Page 555




Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply
of alcohol

Mr Tavi Thevarajah

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises supervisor where the
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol

Licence Number:.

Issuing authority: ||z

Annex 1 — Mandatory conditions
No Irresponsible Drinks Promotions

(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any
irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or substantially similar
activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises—

(a)games or other activities which require or encourage,

or are designed to require or encourage, individuals to— (i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to
sell or supply alcohol), or (ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group
defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase and
consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a
licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which
can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of
drunkenness in any favourable manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person is unable to
drink without assistance by reason of disability).

Free Water

The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where it is reasonably
available.

Age Verification Policy

(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in
respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the
premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age
as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their
photograph, date of birth and either—

(a) a holographic mark, or Page 556




(b) an ultraviolet feature.
Small Measures to be Available
The responsible person must ensure that—

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic
drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is
available to customers in the following measures—

(i) beer or cider: Y2 pint;
(i) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to customers on the
premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, the customer is
made aware that these measures are available

Minimum Price of Alcohol

1.A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises for a price which
is less than the permitted price.

2.For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1—

(a)—duty|| is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;
(b)—permitted price|| is the price found by applying the formula—

P=D+(DxV)

where—

()P is the permitted price,

(ii)D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply
of the alcohol, and

(iii)V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were charged on the date
of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c)—relevant person| means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence—
(i)the holder of the premises licence,

(ii)the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii)the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;

(d) —relevant person|| means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises certificate, any
member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the
supply in question; and

(e)—valued added tax|| means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994.

3.Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be a whole
number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-
paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4.(1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day (—the first day|)
would be different from the permitted price on the next day (—the second day||) as a result of a change to the rat e of duty
or value added tax.

(2)The permitted price which would apply on the first dayfRigtjes osdles or supplies of alcohol which take place before the




expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Requirement for a DPS

(1) No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence-

(a)at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or

(b)at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or their personal licence is
suspended.

(2) Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal
licence.

Door Supervisors and Security Staff to be Licensed by the SIA (when required)

Where the licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a
security activity, each individual must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority, with the following exceptions:

a) premises where the premises licence authorises plays or films

b) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 2001 (premises
being used exclusively by a club with a club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising plays or films
or under a gaming licence), or

c) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 2001
Film Classification When required

(i) The admission of children to the exhibition of any film must be restricted in accordance with the recommendation of the
designated film classification body unless section (ii) applies.

(i) Where the licensing authority notifies the holder of the licence that this subsection applies the admission of children must
be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the licensing authority.

In this section-
"children" means persons aged under 18; and
"film classification body" means the person or persons designated as the authority

under section 4 of the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c. 39) (authority to determine suitability of video works for classification).

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the operating schedule

1. The premises shall operate, and maintain a digital colour CCTV system. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst
the premises are open for licensable activities and all recordings shall be kept for 31 days.

2. CCTV footage shall be made available to the Police and any authorised Officers from Brent Council upon 72 hours of
request.

3. The CCTV system shall display on any recordings, the correct date and time of the recording.

4. Signage stating that CCTV is in operation shall be clearly and prominently displayed at the premises.

5. A minimum of 2 SIA licensed door supervisors shall be on duty after 22:00 if the premises will be open past 01:00.
6. All SIA licenced door supervisors shall wear clothing that can be clearly and easily identified.

7. The licensee shall keep an incident book which shﬂag&a558/ailable to the Police and Licensing Authority on




demand.
8. There shall be no open glass vessels permitted outside the area defined on the premises plan.

9. Notices shall be conspicuously displayed at the entrance notifying patrons that the premises reserves the right to
undertake searches upon entry to the premises and that the premises has a "no drugs policy".

10. Food and alcohol-free drinks shall be always available for patrons whilst the premises are selling alcohol.
11. The last entry on Sundays to Thursdays will be 02:30 and on Fridays and Saturdays to 03:30.
12. There shall be at least 4 members of staff on site after 00:00.

13. The maximum number of persons permitted on the Ground Floor shall not exceed 300 persons including staff. The
maximum number of persons permitted on the First Floor shall not exceed 150 persons including staff.

14. The smoking of shisha through "alcoholic drinks" shall not be advertised.
15. The outside drinking areas shall close after 23:00, excluding the shisha areas and karoga areas.

16. Ingress and egress notwithstanding, all doors and windows shall remain closed during any regulated entertainment
and/or after 22:00 in all circumstances. Staff shall undertake regular checks to ensure that all doors and windows are
closed.

17. The playing of live or recorded music shall not be permitted in any external area after 22:00 hours apart from within the
designated shisha areas and karoga areas as defined on the premises plan.

18. The internal areas from which any recorded music or live music is undertaken, the premises shall ensure that it is
adequately sound proofed to prevent noise breakout.

19. A telephone number shall be made available to be used by residents in relation to any complaint of noise resulting from
the premises. The premises licence holder shall ensure that all complaints made by residents, and any action taken, are
recorded within the incident log.

20. Noise monitoring shall be undertaken at least once every two hours when regulated entertainment is provided from
23.00 until the closure of the premises.

21. Clear and legible notices shall be prominently displayed at the exit requesting patrons to respect the needs of residents
when leaving the premises.

22. No rubbish or empty bottles shall be placed in the outside bins after 23:00.

23. A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only acceptable forms of
identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport, or proof of age card with
the PASS Hologram.

24. A Challenge 25 notice shall be conspicuously displayed at the point of sale.

25. A logbook shall be kept recording all refused sales of alcohol. The log shall contain the time/date of the refusal, a
description of the customer, the name of the staff member who refused the sale, the reason the sale was refused and any
other relevant observation. The refusals register shall be made available for inspection upon request of an authorised officer
of a Brent Council and the Police.

26. No children shall be admitted unless accompanied by a responsible adult.

27. All staff training shall be undertaken by all members of staff involved with licensable activities. Training records shall
include the time/date of the training, staff members name, training topic and must be signed off by the relevant staff
member and the respective premises licence holder/designated premises supervisor/duty manager. A copy of staff training
shall be available upon request by Police and authorised Officers from Brent Council.

28. During major Wembley Stadium event days, patrons shall not be permitted to congregate outside the premises, save
for ingress.

29. During major Wembley Stadium event days, all drinks glass bottles shall be decanted into either toughened glass,
polycarbonate material or any other type of plastic vessel.

30. During major Wembley Stadium event days, the DP&P(&W\@@@UW manager shall work in partnership with the Police




|and if necessary, comply with any direction given by a senior Police Officer.

Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

Following Review -- condition added

31. Staff training schedule as agreed with Metropolitan Police shall be implemented.

Annex 4 — Plans

See attached

Page 560



DOO l OMJ UOREAOUA JuRINEISSI § JBeg eysIiys

ey S e e Pt ol §
Wwawabue e elauat JOPUOT 80uUN0T uaiue) g Aegliadi |

ueyd ooy puncib - wawabuene _r.n.-colu.
hovsviesy 2 9vseani | —

T ) a5

B R




Phee 2




Basemap Map

11250 0 002 004 kilometres =+ Bwem
I I

Page 563



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Application for the Review of a Premises Licence following Expedited Review by Metropolitan Police for the premises known as Carlton Lounge (Tiger Bay), 232-234 Kingsbury Road, NW9 0BH, pursuant to the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003
	3.1 Form 693 - Application for a Summary Review of a premises Charlton Lounge
	3.2 Police Representations
	3.2.1 Supplementary Statment MS
	3.2.2 Exhibit MJS01 Witness Statement AP
	3.2.3 Exhibit MJS02 Witness Statement MB
	3.2.4 Exhibit MJS03 Witness Statement NIR
	3.2.5 Exhibit MJS04 Witness Statement AB
	3.2.6 Exhibit MJS05 Witness Statement MS
	3.2.7 Exhibit MJS06 Investigation Report 26.05.24
	3.2.8 EXHIBIT MJS7 & BRM02 Footage
	3.2.9 Exhibit MJS08 Investigation Report 6.7.24
	3.2.10 Exhibit MJS09 CAD 6.7.24
	3.2.11 Exhibit MJS10 Investigation Report 15.03.25
	3.2.12 Exhibit MJS11 CAD 15.3.25
	3.2.13 Exhibit MJS12 Investigation Report 6.5.25
	3.2.14 Exhibit MJS13 CAD 6.5.25
	3.2.15 Exhibit MJS14 Investigation Report 18.5.25
	3.2.16 Exhibit MJS15 CAD 1 18.5.25
	3.2.17 Exhibit MJS16 CAD 2 18.5.25
	3.2.18 Exhibit MJS17 Incident Report 24.5.25
	3.2.19 Exhibit MJS18 Instagram
	3.2.20 Exhibit MJS19 Newspaper Article
	3.2.21 Exhibit MJS20 Letter 30.05.25
	3.2.22 Exhibit MJS21 Witness Statement PC TB
	3.3 Licensing Rep
	3.4 NCT - Holding Rep
	NEW DOCUMENT ADDED - 3.4 .1 Nuisance Control Team Review Pack
	3.5 Representations in objection
	Rep 01
	Rep 02
	NEW DOCUMENT ADDED - Rep 03
	NEW DOCUMENT ADDED - Rep 05
	Rep 19
	Rep 27
	Rep 29
	Rep 30 - Further Reps
	Rep 30 - Picture 18
	Rep 30 - Pictures - 11a-11c
	Rep 30
	Rep 32
	Rep 33
	Rep 34
	Rep 35
	Rep 36
	Rep 37
	Rep 38
	Rep 40
	Rep 41
	3.6 Representations in Support
	Support 01
	Support 03
	Support 04
	Support 05
	Support 06
	Support 07
	Support 08
	Support 09
	Support 10
	Support 11
	Support 12
	Support 13
	Support 14
	Support 15
	Support 18
	Support 19
	Support 20
	Support 21
	Support 22
	Support 23
	Support 24
	Support 26
	Support 31
	Support 33
	Support 35
	Support 36
	Support 37
	Support 38
	Support 40
	Support 41
	Support 43
	Support 45
	Support 46
	Support 47
	Support 48
	Support 49
	Support 50
	Support 52
	Support 53
	Support 55
	Support 57
	Support 59
	3.7 Licence Part A_Redacted
	3.8 Plans
	3.9 OS Map




